Replication, Transcript, Smill Exhibits, Etc.

BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION CONSISSION SANTA FE, NIM MEXICO

CASE NO. 72

IN THE LATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF GEORGE F. EPEMINGTON, AL GREER, JOHN A. PIERCE, C. M. CARROLL, ROBERT L. FADDON AND L. G. STEARNS FOR AN ORDER TO MESCIND ORDER NO. 541 LIMITING AND FIXING SPACING OF GAS WELLS IN THE FULCHER BASIN FIELD IN SAN JUAN COUNTY, NEW MEXICO OF ONE WELL TO 160 ACRES SO AS TO REFURN TO THE CUSTOMARY 40-ACRE SPACING OF THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION.

Pursuant to notice by the Commission, duly made and published, setting May 8, 1946 at 10:00 o'clock A. M. for hearing in the abovementioned matter, said hearing was convened on said day at said hour in the Coronada Room at La Fonda Hotel, Santa Fe, New Mexico, the Commission sitting as follows:

Governor John J. Dempsey, Chairman Commissioner of Public Lands John E. Miles, Member State Geologist R. R. Spurrier, Secretary Carl B. Livingston

REGISTER

NAME

COMPANY

Gulf Oil Company Lloyd L. Gray H. R. Markley Phillips Petroleum Company Dan L. Mayer Phillips Petroleum Company A. H. Rippel Phillips Petroleum Company Phillips Petroleum Company R. B. F. Hummer H. B. Hurley Continental Oil Company W. G. Ricketts Amerada Petroleum Corporation J. E. Lowe Amerada Petroleum Corporation Al Greer Robert L. Maddox Dudley Cornell D. D. Bodie F. A. Catron A. K. Hontgomery N. B. Macey A. R. Greer G. H. Gray Harve H. Mayfield C. W. Faris Gordon A. Goodwin F. E. McPhillips George R. Gibson E. H. Shaw Foster Morrell Clenn Staley D. A. Powell George A. Graham-E. J. Gallagher Roy O. Yarbrough S. G. Sanderson John M. Spier R. U. Fitting, Jr. L. C. Herkness R. M. Ely F. C. LeFevre R. G. Schuehle Max M. Mahaffey D. R. HcKeithan C. C. Comer J. P. Cusack G. H. Card Weldon Brigance Senett White J. L. Dunlavey R. M. Jarboe

Cities Service Oil Company Charles Eneu Johnson Company Stanolind Oil Company Oil Conservation Commission Repollo Oil Company Magnolia Petroleum Company Shell Oil Company Richfield Oil Corporation Richfield Oil Corporation Richfield Oil Corporation Richfield Oil Corporation U. S. Geological Survey Lea County Operators Committee Drilling & Exploration Company State Land Office Gulf Oil Corporation Oil Conservation Commission Gulf Oil Corporation Charles Encu Johnson & Company Consulting Petroleum Engineer Charles Eneu Johnson & Company Cities Service Oil Company Cities Service Oil Company Texas-Pacific Coal & Oil Co. Cities Service Oil Company Phillips Petroleum Company Phillips Petroleum Company Samedan 051 Company Stanolind Gil Company Rowan Drilling Company Leonard Oil Company Skelly Oil Company Ko-Tex Oil Company

ADDRESS

Tulsa, Oklahoma Odessa, Texas Bartlesville, Oklahoma Bartlesville, Oklahoma Bartlesville, Cklahoma Fort Worth, Texas Tulsa, Oklahoma Midland, Texas Aztec, New Mexico Aztec, New Mexico Albuquerque, New Mexico Hobbs, New Mexico Santa Fe, New Mexico Santa Fe, New Mexico Artesia, New Mexico Aztec, New Mexico Midland, Texas Kermit, Texas Hidland, Texas Los Angeles, California Los Angeles, California Midland, Texas Midland, "texas Roswell, New Mexico Hobbs, New Mexico Hobbs, New Mexico Santa Fe, New Mexico Hobbs, New Mexico Hobbs, New Mexico Tulsa, Oklahoma Hobbs, New Mexico Midland, Texas Philadelphia, Pa. Hobbs, New Mexico Bartlesville, Oklahoma Midland, Texas Sartlesville, Oklahoma Sartlesville, Oklahoma Santa Fo, Hew Mexico Ardnore, Oklahoma Fort North, Texas Fort Worth, Texas Roswell, New Mexico Hobbs, New Mexico Hobbs, New Mexico

NAFE

COMPANY

H. O. and R. Company

ADDRESS

Hidland, Texas Farsington, New Mexico Santa Fo, New Mexico Roswell, New Mexico

J. A. House C. M. Carroll Oliver Seth Harry Leonard

Leonard Gil Company

"Notice for Publication State of New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission

"The Oil Conservation Commission, as provided by law, hereby gives notice of the following hearing to be held at Santa Ne, New Mexico at 10:00 A. M., May 8, 1946:

*Case 72.

"In the matter of the application of George F. Brewington, Al Greer, John A. Pierce, C. M. Carroll, Robert L. Maddox and L. G. Stearns for an order to rescind Order 541 limiting and fixing spacing of gas wells in the Fulcher Basin Field in San Juan County, New Mexico of one well to 160 acres so as to return to the customary 40-acre spacing of the Oil Conservation Commission.

"Given under the seal of said Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico on April 22, 1946.

"OIL CONSERVATION CONMISSION

"By:

"R. H. Spurrier, Secretary

"SEAL"

PROCEEDINGS

Mr. Livingston:

Miss Secretary, Mr. Ducley Cornell has asked that he be entered as attorney for the parties. Now a motion has been filed for a continuation of this particular hearing, the motion being by the Southern Union Gas Company for which purpose Mr. Manuel Sanchez appears as attorney, and is to be entered as attorney of record. If the Commission desires T will read the motion.

Mr. Sanchez:

This matter requires a great deal of study. We are not prepared here today. "e do not have any witnesses at all. Whether one well is allowed for every 169 acres or 4 wells for every 160 acres means a difference between \$15,000, the cost to drill a well up there, and perhaps involves a study of whether one well would be sufficient for 160 acres. All we are interested in is gas.

Governor Dempsey:

As I understand your application, it is not to have the Commission make an order requiring 4 wells to 160 acres, but making it permissible.

Mr. Sanchez:

My understanding, of course, is that it requires them.

Governor Dempsey:

Oh no, not at all. It would permit them to drill a well for each 160 acres, but would not require them to do so. You might be forced to drill an offset well, depending upon your lease.

Mr. Sanchez:

Governor Dompsey:

The commission has put this matter on the agenda today, and we do not want to bring all of these men back here.

Mr. Sanchez:

We will not want any more than a reasonable time.

Governor Dempsey:

Whatever testimony you bring in should be heard today. Let us hear what is to be said here first. Mr. Cornell, do you want to be heard now?

Mr. Cornell:

It seems to me this issue here this morning is very simple. Actually, I do not know whether it is going to require taking testimony. This is a hold-over from war-time regulations. The question of proper spacing for the Fulcher Basin Field would be a question involving study, but this is only a hold-over that the oil and gas operators here have to face. Then the M68C was issued December 21, 1941 it hit the petroleum industries like a bomb shell, limiting them to 640 acres. As its name indicates, M stands for material order, and limits the use of steel. Accognizing a difference in this shallow gas field from the larger reservoirs that the petroleum industries deal with, an exception, permitting drilling in this area on 160 acres, was granted. To get in line with that exception, the Commission issued this Order in question. Order 541 specifically is for the purpose of meeting this PAW situation that provides in order to get an exception under the 160-acre spacing they shall first get the permission of the Commission. It was tied in as a War Order, and as soon as the war was over the PAN immediately revoked their spacing order. That was PAO 4, revoked September 28 of last year. For over six months now Order 541 has been meaningless. By its ve By its very terms it was to be effective for the war and six months thereafter. If it is continued even for another week or two weeks to enable additional testimony, it is causing unnecessary restrictions in this field. I have in mind one of the signers of the petition who had a 120-acre lease. He made application to the PAW for exception, but was turned down. He is sitting with 120 acres in this field, has a contract to drill a well within a limited time, but is restricted by this Order from drilling. There is no way for him to get an exception. The only way he can do so is to obtain an exception from the PAN, and the PAN wound up its affairs promptly after the war, revoked its Order, and went out of existence on the 3th of this month. That is today. There may be some questions regarding the proper spacing in this field which will require some engineering testimony from the Commission. That would be proper in a new application, if you please, by the Southern Union, who is interested in having a spacing order, and if the basic 40-acre spacing is not satisfactory. It appears to me that it is not proper or necessary simply in order to get rid of this war-time regulation. We have several of the signers of this Order here. I will be glad to put them on, but it does not seem that it should be required at this time. We will be glad to meet any issues. If the Southern Union Gas Company wants to apply to the Commission for a new spacing order, it might be that the Order would be set and that we would not oppose it. This Order is out of date, and it seems to me it should be revoked here and now, then if there is going to be a question regarding spacing up there we will have a hearing. I will leave it to you gentlemen, and if you desire testimony I will put these gentlemen on the stand. This is just some dead timber that I believe the Commission is as anxious to close off their books as is everyone else. If you desire some testimony, as I say, I will be glad to call some of these gentlemen.

Governor Dempsey:

Unless they have something additional to offer than what you have offered, then the picture is just as you have stated it; that is, that this is a War Order now out of existence. Let us hear Hr. Sanchez.

Mr. Senchez:

We are informed that the U. J. Geological Survey is opposed to the new patterning to 40-acre spacing. Now what they have to say shout it I so not know.

Governor Dempsey:

Do you have anything in writing?

Mr. Sanchez:

Yes. The bouthern Union Production Company has discussed this matter with Foster Morrell. As you know, a large part of the acreage in this area is Federal land, and, of course, we should have some of the Government agencies here.

Governor Dempsey:

This meeting has been publicized.

Mr. Sanchez:

I understand that. I am called down here with 2 days' notice. If you think it advisable, I would be willing to agree, pending the filing of the application. As Mr. Cornell states, there is nothing at this time about new spacing by the Commission.

Governor Dempsey:

The Commission is asked to revoke the Order.

Mr. Sanchez:

When the Order is revoked they go back to the old rules that they be spaced every 40 acres. Pending that time, if they go on ahead and start spacing new wells we will be up against it unless we could have a new Order issued.

Governor Dempsey:

If the Commission should adjudicate this Order at this time it could be a war emergency regulation enforced by the PAW. There is nothing to stop you from coming in and asking for any kind of spacing regulation that you deem advisable.

Mr. Sanchez:

In the meantime we would be before the Commission all of the time. If we will submit our testimony now we would be convinced that we were right or else wrong, and we could appeal. If we come in with an application for a new spacing Order it continues this matter, and in this way we could dispose of the matter now.

Mr. Cornell:

Governor, I am fairly familiar with the attitude of the U. S. Geological Survey. They have more or less tried to continue this 160-acre spacing, but there is a certain give and take in that situation. It is not a strict order like this one where you can't get an exception. Now the operator up there operating on a Government lease will not have any particular difficulty. We have had a conference within the past month, and came to complete agreement. This is simply an agreement on the part of some individuals, and then Hr. Sanchez can come in and you are not going to have a flood of drilling on AO acres in the next year or two. It is not going to change the picture materially, that is in the field that has possibly 30 or 40 wells in it, and then when you have all of the information it may be that SO acres would be the spacing. That was the opinion of the Southern Union from their data. Possibly some other information might come in that would indicate 120. I believe it would relieve the situation all the way around to get this clear.

Governor Dempsey:

There is not going to be a great deal of drilling, occause you can't get steel now. Does anyone else wish to be heard on this matter?

Foster Morrell;

I will be glad to enter a few remarks in connection with the state-

aonts and concerning the J. S. Geological Survey. I think the request for the termination of the Order as drafted has considerable merit, but some consideration should be given for a replacement to some extent. In the last winter meeting of the Interstate Compact Coand wion a resolution was passed by the Commission recommending that States, where ever practical, carry into effect well spacing adopted by the PAN. The reason for that is to protect the equities of the operators who have already drilled, from other operators at a later date. In the majority of the Fulcher Easin Wield there are public lands. Now the development is extending North where we have a mixture of lands, largely fee, some State, and a few Federal tracts. Those tracts do not lend themselves to satisfactory 160-acre units without a lot of work, and it is questionable whether that could be satisfactory. If this Order is rescinded without some other replacements, there are situations where wells would be drilled on 40s, and to protect the property of others, wells would be drilled on 40s. Considerable discussion has been had with the Southern Production to take care of this matter of spacing, which would permit an operator to drill on whatever size tract he had, and get a fair proportion of the gas. I just offer this for your consideration, that if this Order is rescinded on the technicality

Governor Dempsey:

What do you mean by technicality?

Mr. Morrell:

That it was based on PAN regulations.

Governor Dempsey:

What, in your opinion, would have been the result had the PAN not made this 640 regulation?

Nr. Morrell:

The type and size of the well make it a matter that there would be waste to drill too many wells.

Covernor Dempsey:

If the PAW had not been created, and the 640-acre regulation was not put in as a war measure, what would have been your recommendation?

Mr. Morrell:

A man would have to be allowed to drill, but to protect the equity, the Commission could take the matter of withdrawals to account for that.

Governor Dempsey:

Would you recommend that where a man has less than 160 acres he should be permitted to drill on that?

Mr. Morrell:

He should not be prevented, but with notice that his allowable would not be in the same proportion if he had a larger basin.

Governor Dempsey:

At this particular time there is not going to be any great amount of drilling, even if you had the desire to do it. The members of the Commission feel that something should be done now on this particular Order, and we feel something should be done on a more permanent spacing, but it is unfair to have a man with 123 acres prohibited from drilling because the war Order requires 160. I do not know how the other members of the Commission feel, but I would be willing to rescind this Order today and give you an opportunity for a hearing. We would be very glad to set a hearing date in the very near future for spacing in that area. I am agreeable to terminating this Order today.

Governor Hiles:

That is agreeable with we.

Governor Dempsey:

If you can get together on this spacing we will have a hearing, and bear in mind that we desire to conserve the resources of our State.

Mr. Sanchez:

I would request the Commission that the matter of an order for respacing be set for, say, a hearing 30 days from today.

Governor Dempsey

It is agreeable to ne. Make it sooner if you want to. The Commission, I am sure, from what Governor Miles has said to me, and the Director of the organization, would be very sympathetic to a proper spacing up there, which would not penalize someone up there. I think we can come to a satisfactory agreement here.

Mr. Sanchez:

Suppose we fix a certain date. I do not have a calendar here, but as soon as convenient for the Commission.

Governor Dempsey:

June 4 is Tuesday. I know that date. From thereafter what date do you want?

Mr. Sanchez:

1

How long do you want to celebrate after June 4? We might get all of the information and we might come in with a stipulated proposal. Suppose we say we set the hearing for June 11?

Governor Dempsey:

Would it be satisfactory with you if the Commission advised you of the date some time within the near future?

Mr. Sanchez:

You fix the date, matever will be agreeable to the Commission, and it will be agreeable with us.

Mr. Livingston:

Before calling the next case, I will pass the register, and will everyone please register? The next case is No. 73 in the matter of the application of the Richfield Cil Cooperation for an order of approval of the unit agreement for the development and operation of the Comanche Area within T. 10S, R. 25E, and T. 11S, R. 25E, and T. 10S, R. 26E, and T. 11S, R. 26E, and T. 11S, R. 27E, N.M.P.H. constituting a compact unit area of 16,901.14 acres, Chaves County, New Merico. Mr. Gordon A. Goodwin is attorney for the Michfield Corporation.

Mr. Goodwin:

Do you have the file, Mr. Livingston? I may want to refer to it.

Governor Dempsey:

Is there anyone here who is $\langle \dots \rangle$ does to this unit agreement on 16,000 acres in Chaves County? As far at 1 know there is no opposition.

Mr. Goodwin:

There is no opposition, and it is in the same form as you last approved for us, with slight changes. Mr. Livingston has been over the agreement and has found no objections.

Governor Despsey:

The Commission has no objections, and will approve that. We don't want to bar you from making a speech, Mr. Goodwin.

Mr. Coodwint

I am not running for a political office at the moment.

Governor Dempsey:

What do you mean "at the moment"?

Mr. Livingston:

The next case is No. 74 in the matter of the application of the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico upon its own motion for a revision of Operators' Monthly Report, FormCll5, effecting all producing counties in New Mexico.

Mr. Spurrier:

Governor and gentlemen, this amended Form C-115, or proposed amendment, has been recommended by the engineers in the oil field to the Commission, and I won't go into the detail of it, because I am sure everyone here is familiar with it, and, Governor, with your permission, all I can do is to ask for objections, if there be any. It makes a change in the form to correct a condition now prevalent. Many of the operators who fill out this form do not understand it -- not due to lack of intelligence, but due to the way the form is worded.

Governor Dempsey:

I am sure of that. Do you recommend the changing of the wording of the form?

Mr. Spurrier:

Yes, sir.

Covernor Dempsey:

Will the Governor be able to understand it then?

lir. Spurrier:

I can't say, Governor.

Governor Dempsey:

Is there any objection on the part of the operators to the changing of this form?

Mr. Selinger:

I am with the Skelly Oil Company, and I have something to bring up in connection with that form, and which I would like for the Commission to give some serious thought to. It has to do with the Nomenclature as well, but I believe it is proper to bring it up at this time, and that is in connection with the reporting and requiring of separate tankage on wells with depths down to 5,000 feet. Under the present method all fields and units in the fields down to 5,000 feet have a proportionate factor known as one, and it is beyond 5,000 feet that we start getting larger allowables. There will be several wells which will produce in depths shallower than 5,000 feet. We have one large well and several small wells producing down to 5,000 feet. Under this present Homenclature and regulations of the Commission we are required to make separate reports on this form for each of those separate pays. We feel it is an economical waste and likewise a waste of administrative personnel to require the setting of a separate tank and have to fill. out a separate report each month for such well. I know that a good portion of the acreage lies on Government land, and this notice came rarticularly to my attention when the U. S. Geological Survey advised the operators that they would be required to set separate tankage and make separate reports.

Governor Dempsey:

Is there anything in that report that requires separate tankage?

Mr. Selinger:

Yes.

Governor Dem. ey:

Hr. Spurrier tells me not.

Mr. Selinger:

That is the point I want to get straight. This schedule shows the Fren Pool, and then it follows with the Grayburg-Jackson, and you have separate allowables set for a particular well, and under the reporting system we have to make a separate report for the Fren Pool and the wells in the units therein. We could not make a separate report for the well "A" in the Fren Pool and we could not make a separate report on well "E" in the Grayburg-Jackson Pool unless you have separate tanks. We do not think it justifiable to set a separate tank for smaller wells. Since it is Government property, we will have to take that up through the proper channels. The Commission, we feel, should not require the setting of separate tankage nor the requirement of separate reports for wells and units producing shallower than 5,000 feet for the purpose of report is for production only, and if the allowables are the same there is no purpose in requiring those additional burdens on the operators. Ordinarily when the State regulatory body issues a schedule setting forth separate fields, it carries the requirements of separate reports, and if the Commission would make the rule that such is not necessary we believe it would relieve a great deal of the burden.

Governor Dempsey:

When did you receive notice of hearing in this matter?

Mr. Selinger:

About 4 or 5 days ago.

Governor Dempsey:

It would be a great help for the Commission if we could get something in writing for the reasons of the opposition.

Mr. Selinger:

Governor, this is tied up with the hearings you had on the Nomenclature some time ago, and it is a joint proposition with the present and the previous case, but that matter was not clear in my mind. Perhaps it would be clear in the minds of the operators.

Governor Dempsey:

The Commission does not desire to burden you. The Order that Mr. Spurrier refers to reads that the records, the production, the casing, everything about these separate wells and pools shall be maintained toward the end of operation. It does not say you will use separate tanks. The Commission is concerned with the record. We want all of these operators to interpret this as the Commission interprets it. How do you interpret it, Mr. Spurrier? Do you require separate tankage?

Fr. Spurrier:

No. I think we should require that the oil be kept separate.

Governor Dempsey:

Is this a new form we are discussing? I don't think Mr. Selinger's case here is on Form C-115.

Mr. Selinger:

No. I tried to make it clear that it is in no way opposition to the present form.

Covernor Dempsey:

You don't object to the present form?

Hr. Selinger:

Oh, no, sir. There is some question in the minds of the operators.

Governor Dempsey:

Then there is nothing in this form that would change the situation you are talking about?

Mr. Selinger:

No. You would have to make out different reports, and that is this separation right there.

Governor Dempsey:

You want this form to correct an existing evil in your opinion?

Nr. Selinger:

the effect of the requiring of separate New operators are undecided. For example, you have well "A" in one pool and well "B" in another pool, and under that circumstance you report your wells by pools and you would have to report these wells on separate forms.

Governor Dempsey:

You are injecting something in this form that should be corrected in another matter. May don't you operators get together and suggest to the Commission the simplest way, and do that which the Commission requires?

Mr. Selinger:

I can only speak for myself. That confusion has only arisen in our minds within the last 30 days.

Mr. Spurrier:

Insofar as this particular form is concerned, I don't see that it is involved with Nr. Selinger's objection. This form is simply to straighten out the operators on what they are to report with reference to oil-gas ratios. There seems to be some confusion in the minds of operators as to what they are to report.

Governor Dempsey:

Now is there any objection to this new form in view of the statements made by the Director of the Department? If not, we will approve the form, and if you operators feel there is any burden or misunderstanding we will be very happy to have another hearing and straighten the matter out for you.

Mr. Spurrier:

I may state that this is the same old form revised.

Mr. Livingston:

The next case is No. 75 in the matter of the application of Charles Sneu Johnson and Company that it be issued a permit in lieu of or as supplemental to and amendatory of the permit issued to it by this Commission on May 25, 1945 to use up to 42,000,000 cubic feet of natural gas per day from the South Eunice Field in Lea County, New Mexico for the manufacture of carbon black in its plant approximately eight and one-half miles South of Eunice, New Mexico, said permit to continue in effect for a term of ten (10) years from the date of the issuance thereof. The applicant in said application further requests that this Commission's Order No. 539, in case 59, be amended with respect to the term thereof so as to have it conform with the term of the permit hereinabove applied for. Order 589, now requested to be amended, is the Order providing for the lifting of the gas-oil ratio for the South Eunice Field for the duration of the war and six months thereafter for the curpose of the use of gas from said field for the manufacture of carbon black when a carbon black plant with facilities is ready. Mr. : letcher Catron is attorney of record for the petitioner.

Mr. Catron:

As the notice indicated, this is merely an application to secure an

amendment, first of the Order which lifted the oil-gas ratio in the South Eunice Field, and, second, of the permit which was issued to the Johnson Company to use 40,000,000 cubic fleet of gas for the manufacture of carbon black. The original points was issued for a term of the duration in the emergency existing in the manufacture of rubber tires and other rubber products. The Order changing the oil-gas ratio read for the duration of the war and six months thereafter. The question has arisen as to whether either of the terms has ended. I think it is recognized that the war is not yet **ab** an end. Some have taken the view that when hostilities ceased the six months period began to run. I feel that is incorrect.

Governor Dempsey:

The legal status is that the war is not over, and will not be until so declared by the President of the United States.

Mr. Catron:

The language of the permit was put in that form with the idea of offering facilities for the manufacture of carbon black as long as there was an emergency in the manufacture of tires and rubber products. At the time that the hearing was held on the Order - that is, Order 589 in Case 59 - I did not participate but I was present. No objection whatever was made at that time to lifting that oil-gas ratio, as I remember, and I think the records will support me in that. The only question which was raised was as to how that gas was to be used, and, insofar as I can see, there has been absolutely no change in conditions. The very fact that this Commission lifted the Order, the very fact that the Commission subsequently issued its permit to the Johnson Company was in itself a finding by the Commission that the use of the gas for that purpose was not economic waste, and it was a sign that the increasing of the production of gas from that field was not detrimental to the field itself. So we come down merely to the question now of whether there is any reason why the permit issued and the Order lifting the gas-oil ratio should not be continued in effect for a sufficient term to enable the Johnson Company to go into this enterprise and recover its investment. There have been changes in the set up. I appreciate that at the time of the issuance of the permit we were still at war, and the fact that we were at war had some bearing on it. At that time the permit which was issued prescribed that the gas to be used was to be obtained from the Lea County Water Compressor Plant in that field. Since then it has been sold and the Lea County Water Company is no longer interested. It is now the plan of the Johnson Company to obtain the gas from the producers, and it has obtained an option from two of the producers who are the greatest producers of gas in that field. In order to carry this forward, the permit issued would have to be amended to eliminate the Lea County Mater Company and open it to the Johnson Company to obtain the gas from whatever source it can in that field. The permit and the Order should certainly conform as to term. In the application I prepared and filed I asked that the term be fixed at ten years. At the time of the original permit, the Commission was hesitant about any fixed term. As the Commission knows, when hostilities ceased the Government decided not to complete the plant, however, it has expended over two million dollars there, and the plant is not yet in condition to be operated at this time. It will take some million and a half dollars to complete the plant, and the Commission can see that the Johnson Company, which has negotiated for the purchase of the plant, cannot very well undertake to complete it unless it has some reasonable assurance that it will be able to obtain the gas and continue with the manufacture of carbon black, so their position is simply this. So far as the prime factor in which the Commission is interested has not changed. This Commission is concerned with whether there is waste in the use of gas for that particular purpose. It has found that there is no waste. I think that is amply corroborated by the fact that in Texas alone there are some 36 carbon black plants, and Texas is governed by the Interstate Compact Commission, just as New Mexico. In that respect I think we have apple backing to say there is no waste in using the gas for that purpose. The only other element of waste that may be of concern is in what respect a withdrawal of a greater amount of gas from the field would have on the field. That was also considered by the Commission at the time it issued its Order, otherwise the Commission would not have entered that Order. All we can ask is an explanation at the outset on the part of the Commission of what it regards as the terms of the permit and the Order, and then of some assurance that we can go ahead with the completion of this plant and have gas with which to operate for a long enough time to recover our investment. I personally felt there was no occasion for a public hearing because all of the facts had already been passed on, but it was considered advisable to have a public hearing on the matter. We are here, ready to offer evidence on the different points involved if considered necessary. As I say, though, this Commission has already made its findings, and has entered its permit and Order accordingly. Whether there are any objections I do not know, but, if so, I think we are in a position of waiting while we hear the objections, because our case is already made.

Governor Dempsey:

Any objections to the request made by the attorney for the Johnson Company?

Mr. Hunnier:

My name is R. B. F. Hummer. I am attorney for the Phillips Petroleum Company, and I desire to state our position. It is my understanding that this Order was made by the Commission during the war emergency, which, as I understand it, involved the shortness of the channel carbon black for the manufacture of tires, and the PAN being interested in securing carbon black for that purpose appealed to the Commission in Texas, and I assume to your Monorable Cormission here, to help. Under those conditions Phillips Petroleum Company did not object to the Order, but under present conditions we want to state our position. We do not have any production in the South Eunice Field of oil. We are interested in the gas production, because we now have casing head gas contracts for the purchase of gas. Our interest in the casing head gas purchases in the entire basin is for pipe line purposes. An application is now pending to build a pipe line which will extend from this basin out to California for the transportation of gas, and we have a contract with the applicant for a line from Dumas and the basin to supply some of their gas. We are interested as an operator for oil and gas in the State of New Mexico and in the Eunice Field. It is my information that so far as the gas is concerned there is some inner-connection between the two fields and that the withdrawal of gas from the South Funice Field or the Eunice Field proper might effect the oil in other fields. It is my information that the South Eunice Field produces both oil and gas, with 6,000 feet of gas to one barrel of oil, but to withdraw production control entirely from the gas and oil in the South Eunice Field, in the opinion of my company, is a mistake, and I think is not an aid to conservation. It is further the position of my Company that withdrawal of production control. in the State makes the Commission's efforts less effective with regard to production of gas and oil in other pools. We think to eliminate production control entirely would result in waste. We further take the position, and I state the facts as I understand them, that the purpose of the applicant here is to take the waste gas without processing it for gasoline purposes. All gas used for the carbon black purposes should first be processed to recover the gasoline content. That is required by law in the State of Texas, and we think it should be required by order of your Honorable Commission. Our position in connection with that matter is that if we were successful in obtaining the gas in this pool for the purpose already stated, we plan to process it to recover the Easoline content before the same is delivered to the pipe line for transportation. It is indespensible to our contract for furnishing the gas to the applicant, but if we do get it, it will go to a pipe line for the purpose of light and heat. That is our position in the matter, and in answer to the suggestion of the attorney for the applicant we thought we should state it.

Hr. Catron:

It is my understanding that insofar as the law in fexas requiring the extraction of gasoline, it applies only to sweet gas. We are not dealing with sweet gas here. It is my information that this particular gas is so lean that it would not be a paying proposition to extract the gas from it.

Hr. Hummer:

What is that based on?

Er. Catron:

I have it on report which I have in my file, and I think possibly on

correspondence with the Phillips Company itself. There are a good many features which could be brought out but these various factors have already been considered by the Commission. When it entered its Order it took those things into consideration. As to whether the extraction of additional (as from the South Annice Field might effect the Sunice Field, that is speculative. There again those elements were considered by this Commission at the time the Order was entered. We are not asking that the limit be taken off completely. We are merely asking that it be lifted sufficiently to enable this Company to obtain the gas necessary for the successful operation of that plant. We are confident that the expenditure already made by the Government of over two million dollars should be taken into consideration. If there is to be waste considered, after all, a waste of two and one-half million dollars of the taxpayers! money is something to be considered as against an enterprise in this State which will be for the benefit of the State. If I remember in the hearing in February this was one of the factors which led the Commission to word its Order as it did "for the express purpose of use of gas from said field for the manufacture of carbon black" (Case No. 59, Order 589). Now that Language would not have been put in had it not been considered by this Commission that the use of gas for that purpose in this State was more desirable than piping it out of the State to California or somewhere else. The enterprise which the Johnson Company is undertaking is within the State, and would be to the best interests of the State and its people. The question of whether there is still an emergency in the production of carbon black is really a side issue. This Commission has already found that the extraction of an additional amount of gas from that field would have no detrimental effect on the field itself. There is nothing in the way of extension to show there is any change in those respects, and we are merely asking for an amendment of the permit to open the gate to the Johnson Company to obtain its gas from other sources than the Lea County Mater Company, and then to have the Order and permit conform to the length of time. It is not essential that these orders be made for a period of ten years, and once having made a finding that the use of gas for this purpose is not waste, the element of time is immaterial. There is not apt to be any change. We do want to know that the Order and permit are in effect and that they will not expire arbitrarily in six months after the war has been proclaimed to be at an end. In other words, we would be agreeable to an amendment of both the permit and the Order, elinating the time element entirely, and just say that the Charles Eneu Johnson Company is granted a permit to use up to whatever maximum the Commission is willing to fix for the manufacture of carbon black, and that the Order be amended to read that the oil-gas ratio be lifed to whatever measure is necessary. There is nothing offered here which can be called a valid objection because the questions involved have already been passed upon. I will be glad to produce witnesses and convince the Commission both as to the need of carbon black at this time, which is a far greater need than we have ever had before, and to satisfy the Commission concerning the situation in that particular field down there.

Governor Dempsey:

I think there is some misunderstanding. When the Commission called a hearing in connection with the carbon black, it did so at the request of the WPB to get tires, of which there was a great shortage, and I do not know whether the Commission took into account whether there would be waste in the manufacture of carbon black, because the Commission was interested in making contributions to the war effort. I recall some opposition by those desiring to pipe the gas from New Mexico to California. The Commission felt then, and I feel now, that we should conserve our natural resources to the greatest extent possible, and I prefer to do so. Whether New Mexico would suffer if the gas is piped to California, I think, is a matter for the Commission to consider.

Colonel L. C. Herkness, after being first duly sworn, testified as follows:

Mr. Catron:

Please state your name.

Col. Herkness:

L. C. Hertmess.

In. Catron:

You are connected with the Charles Eneu Johnson Company?

Col. Herkness:

I am the President of that Company.

Mr. Catron:

You are familiar with the permit which was issued to your Company by this Commission back in June 1945 under which you were authorized to take 40,000,000 cubic feet per day from the South Sunice Field?

Col. Herkness:

I am.

Mr. Catron:

That plant, which was being erected by the Government, has not been completed?

Col. Herkness:

No. It is approximately 60% complete.

Mr. Catron:

Do you know what has been expended in the erection of the plant?

Col. Herkness:

\$2,642,000.

Mr. Catron:

Is any part of the plant in such condition that it could be operated?

Col. Herkness:

No.

Mr. Catron:

What, in the way of expense, would be entailed to complete the plant?

Col. Herkness:

The engineer's estimate is \$1,252,000.

Mr. Catron:

You have another plant in operation in New Mexico?

Col. Herkness:

We operate a plant that belongs to the Government at Hobbs.

Mr. Catron:

Are there other carbon black plants in operation in New Mexico?

Col. Herkness:

There is one at Eunice which belongs to the Covernment and is operated by the Panhandle Carbon Company, and another plant is at Sunice owned by the Columbia Carbon Company.

Er. Catron:

The original agreement at the time you had this contract with the Government was that gas which you were to use would be furnished by the Lea County Mater Company, was it not? Col. Herkne.

That is correct.

Hr. Catron:

What is your information as to the position of the Lea County Mater Company now furnishing you the gas?

Col. Herkness:

The Company cancelled that contract.

Mr. Catron:

Were you not directly informed that that company had sold its plant to the Phillips Petroleum Company?

Col. Herkness:

Yes.

Mr. Catron:

In the event you should now enter into a contract with the Government for the partially completed carbon black plant, you would have to obtain your gas from other sources?

Col. Herkness:

That is correct. We have an option from two companies - The Texas Pacific Coal and Oil Company and the Cities Service Oil Company.

Mr. Catron:

What, under the options with those companies, will you be called upon

to pay them?

Col. Herkness:

 $2\frac{1}{4}$ cents per 1,000 feet plus penalty royalty.

Mr. Catron:

What is your understanding as to the volume of gas production from those two companies as compared to other fields? Are those companies the largest producers in that field?

Col. Herkness:

Yes.

Mr. Catron:

In the event a permit should be issued to you under the conditions which you have requested, would it be your intention to limit the purchase of gas which you would make to these two companies?

Col. Herkness:

It is our understanding that we would take from all producers in the field who would care to furnish it to us. It is an understanding between our company and the oil companies.

fir. Catron:

Have you any information as to the price for gas of this type when sold to pipe line companies and for the purpose of extracting gas?

Col. Herkness:

That is out of my realm.

Mr. Catron:

Can you give the Commission a little information concerning the present

need for carbon black?

Col. Herkness:

The shortage of carbon black is more acute now than at any time. It is estimated that a minimum shortage of 150 million pounds will exist.

Mr. Catron:

I think that expresses the situation pretty well. Have you any other information on that particular subject?

Col. Herkness:

I have a letter which indicates that there is a shortage in export black, which conforms with that other letter.

(NOTE: At this point Mr. Catron read the letter in question, marked "Exhibit A" in the file of the petitioner.")

Mr. Catron:

Looking at it with a little longer view, as I understand it, there are different types of carbon black.

Col. Herkness:

Generally speaking, there are two types - channel black and furnace black.

Mr. Catron:

Can you give the Commission a little information relative to the use of the two types of black?

Col. Herkness:

Ordinarily speaking, channel black is used for the manufacture of rubber tires, and furnace black is used largely in the production of synthetic rubber.

lir. Catron:

As we get back to the normal production of rubber goods from crude rubber, the demands of channel black will remain consistent, while furnace black is liable to decrease. Is that correct?

Col. Herkness:

Yes, that is correct. It is to be expected that channel black will increase.

Hr. Catron:

Have you any information as to the gascline content of the gas from that field?

Col. Herkness:

All the information I have is from other people's reports.

Mr. Catron:

What in the way of carbon black can be derived from the gas in that field?

Col. Herkness:

From the analysis which I have seen, we anticipate a yield of 1.6 pounds per 1,000 feet.

Mr. Catron:

What would be the value of that?

Col. Herkness:

The black is worth 5 cents per pound.

Mr. Catron:

What would you estimate the total gross revenue from the operation of that plant?

Col. Herkness:

It is about one and one-half million dollars a year.

Mr. Catron:

Have you made any effort to figure what that would mean in the way of royalties to the State of New Mexico?

Col. Herkness:

No, I am not familiar with that.

Mr. Catron:

What would the production of rubber amount to in the way of revenue?

Col. Herkness:

The freight would amount to \$700 per day, and it would provide employment for about 30 people.

Mr. Catron:

What would you consider the labor requirements of the plant?

Col. Herkness:

Approximately 200 people for 7 or 8 months.

Mr. Catron:

I think that is all at this time. I have one thing I would like to state. When this thing first came up we found that by stripping the gas first we could produce only .9 of a pound to 1,000 feet because the gas was very lean. When gas becomes lean it is impossible to produce, and the conclusion of our engineers was that if the gas is stripped it could not be immediately processed.

Governor Miles:

These questions I want to ask may be out of order, and I am not familiar with them. Do these carbon plants operate under a special permit?

Mr. Catron:

It is my information that the Columbia Company started without a permit; that thereafter the Funhandle Company came in during the war and obtained a permit, and it was then subbested to the Columbia Company that it should make application for a permit.

Mr. Livingston:

The Columpia Company came in for a permit. Later it desired to increase its intake, and they came once with an application for an increase in the amount of gas to be consumed. $\frac{10}{2}$

Covernor .dles:

When this contract was consulled to the Los County Water Company, what did that include?

Gol. 'Erimese:

It was a contract to supply as gas. Who contract provided for the supply of gas, out we had to purchase the cas from the suppliers. Cher solu it

to us at a homer price that they purchased is for, of course.

Mr. Huaser:

Mas that a contract between the Government and the Lee County Tater Computy?

Col. Herkness:

No, between Charles Eneu Johnson and the dovernment.

Mr. Hummbr:

Did you have a contract with the Government?

Col. Herkness:

Yes. I still have.

Mr. Hummer:

I understood you to say that was concelled about the time the Lea County Water Company cancelled its contract.

Col. Herkness:

Technically it has never been cancelled. That contract is still in force and effect.

Mr. Hummer:

Do you have any option to purchase the plant under that contract, or are you competitive with others?

Col. Herkness:

We are competitive with others, but I do not see what that has to:do with what we are talking about.

Mr. Hummer:

The only point I whink it may have, if at all, would be my next question. If the Commission here grants you a permit, as you now request, it would give you an advantage over other compatitors in the purchasing of the plant, would it not?

Col. Herkness:

No. We have already released our option.

Mr. Hummer:

I do not believe you understood my question. I asked if the Commission grants you a permit it would give you an advantage over other competitors in purchasing the plant, wouldn't it?

Col. Herkness:

My enswer is no.

Fr. Hummer:

May do you desire a permit then, before you complete your purchasing arrangement with the Government?

Col. Morkness:

When I purchase from the Covernment I have to pay for it, and I don't want to pay for it and then find that I can't get a permit.

Hr. Humer:

Do you understand that if you are granted a parait up to the full 42 million feet par day it will require the entire output of gas from the South Bunice Field? Col. Herkness:

That, I think, is a question which could be better answered by oil experts.

lir. Hummer:

Do you know how much the open flow of gas is there?

Col. Herkness:

No•

Mr. Hummer:

You contemplate using raw gas, and not removing any of the gasoline contents?

Col. Herkness:

It would not be suitable if the gasoline is removed.

Mr. Hummer:

In the other plants you mentioned, which manufacture carbon black, do you know whether they use residue gas?

Col. Herkness:

Yes, they do.

Mr. Hummer:

Is that generally true with reference to carbon black plants in the State of Texas?

Col. Herkness:

Tes, it is generally true.

Governor Miles:

I did not get the full answer to these other plants being operated under a special permit.

Mr. Livingston:

If I may explain them, the permits heretofore issued have been issued under the Commission's general powers to prevent waste. Upon the application to use gas from a certain source for this particular purpose in a certain plant, the Commission gave its permit if it shall not constitute waste. The Columbia Company lead out first, then Panhandle, then Charles Eneu Johnson.

Governor Miles:

Who says to use up to a certain number of cubic feet of natural gas?

Mr. Livingston:

The original permit granted heretofore, that is now sought to be extended, was not quite that amount, and I presume that was perhaps a typographical error. The other permits had the maximum amounts.

Mr. Catron:

The 40 million cubic feet mentioned in the Order was simply round numbers without regard for the plant itself. This plant is composed of a certain amount of burning units, each of which has a consumption of so much a day, and to put the plant on a full operating schedule, 42 million feet would be the minimum.

Governor Mil. .:

What I am trying to arrive at is not the plant, but whether they are all operating under such an order as your order.

Mr. Catron:

Similar, but for different amounts. The amounts are the maximum amounts they may use, and they were all issued under the nature of an emergency.

Governor Dempsey:

Mr. Rippel, what is the largest plant operating in the State?

Mr. Rippel:

I believe it is the Panhandle Carbon Company, with 35 million cubic . feet.

Governor Dempsey:

What do you contemplate in the gas you expect to pipe from New Mexico to California?

Mr. Rippel:

For the first 5 years between 40 and 50 million feet from New Mexico. This is the Phillips Petroleum Company. We have a contract for the first 5 years to produce 80 million feet, and that not furnished from New Mexico will be furnished from Texas.

Governor Dempsey:

What is the disposition of this gas in question?

Mr. Catron:

It will be used in its present state if the permit is granted. These other plants use residue gas and use it under a different set up and because that gas is of a richer quality. This gas has been going to waste for years down there. Why, if these other companies are so interested in it, is that interest so new-born? What we are trying to do is to put that gas into use. These other companies have had the opportunity for ten or twelve years or longer. As I understand it, there are 11 million cubic feet of gas down there flared, if not more. That has been going on for years. It was not until recently that the necessity for the manufacture of carbon black has arisen. On the other hand, Phillips and the El Paso Natural Gas have known of that condition, but now is the first time they have made any effort to avail themselves of the gas.

Governor Miles:

The question was asked, but I do not believe it was answered, whether it would take all of the gas in the South Eunice Field.

Mr. Catron:

My information is that it would not.

Governor Miles:

Is any of that gas being used for any other purpose?

Mr. Catron:

It is not being used for anything now, insofar as I know.

Governor Dempsey:

In connection with your application for an amended order, there are no companies operating that have any ten-year permit.

Mr. Catron:

I am perfectly willing to consider my application amended insofar as that particular term is concerned. We want to feel that the Commission, in effect, backs up the findings which it already has made. In other words, that the use of this gas is not to be construed as waste, because as long as that is true the Commission is not interested in terminating the permit for that purpose. It is merely that it shall not be waste. As I say, I would like to have the Commission go on record as backing up the findings which it has already made, so that we may say "O. K.". The use of the gas for this purpose is not waste, and is used for advantage, both to the Nation and the State. That is the thing in a nut shell. We stand just where we began.

Mr. Spurrier:

I wish to make it clear that no gas-oil ratio has ever been lifted; the 40 million feet of gas has never been dedicated, because no carbon black plant was completed.

Mr. Hummer:

Mr. Herkness, I do not believe I clearly understand your statement as to your present application. Is it of such a nature that you are asking the Commission here to permit the use of this gas for carbon black purposes to anyone who might be a successful bidder?

Mr. Herkness:

It is very obvious that I would not have asked for a permit for anyone other than my own company.

Mr. Hummer:

You stated, as I understood, that you do not think that by getting your permit it would put you to an advantage over other competitive bidders.

Mr. Herkness:

I assume that if the Commission grants me a permit it would grant anyone else a permit under the same circumstances.

Mr. Hummers

You would be the only one who would have an exclusive permit under your application and your theory of it.

Mr. Herkness:

It seems to me that it is futile.

Mr. Catron:

I think I can answer that. After all, anybody who is negotiating with the Government for the purchase of that plant would want to be sure they would have a permit to get the gas. Now as to whether there are other concerns who are interested in acquiring this plant from the Government, it is time they came before this Commission to find out whether they can get the gas. The Johnson Company has been negotiating with the Government for many months, and it wants to know from this Commission whether it can get the gas. If the Company is granted the permit it will be in an advantageous position.

Mr. Hummer:

How could you answer the question, if your company is granted an ex-

Mr. Catron:

That will be up to the Commission. We are not asking for an exclusive permit.

Mr. Hummer:

If it is for the same plant, and there is an exclusive permit, no one else could bid for that plant.

Governor Dempsey:

I would not think so. I do not believe the purchase of the plant is a concern of this Commission. Mr. Catron, may I remind all of you gentlemen that there has not been an exclusive permit issued to anyone. The gas-oil ratio has not even been lifted. Is there anyone else who wishes to be heard on this matter?

Mr. Sanderson:

We are a small operator in the South Eunice Pool, and we would object to having the Commission remove all control over the production there for the fact that any one well might produce large volumes of gas unrestricted. To get 42 million feet as a whole would mean that the gas-oil ratio would be excessive. We have no objection to the company taking the gas, but we think the Commission should continue some kind of control over the production.

Governor Dempsey:

This Commission is not going to permit the gas to be raised to the point that it is going to be detrimental to the field, and that is the only thing in which I am interested. I think 10 years is too long to grant a permit. Frankly, I think this Commission does not have the authority to grant a ten-year permit.

Mr. Catron:

That we would be willing to waive. As long as there is not waste, which it is the objective of this Commission to prevent, there can be no objection to the use of gas for that purpose.

Governor Dempsey:

I am willing to grant this request.

R. W. Tesch:

I am a Chief Engineer for the Texas-Pacific Coal and Oil Company, and I would like to say at the outset that I have not been here for a number of years, and I am certainly glad to be back. I would like to review this matter briefly from the point of a producer in that field. We are the chief producers in that field, having 27 wells. We have been operating in that field for a number of years. It was only until the last few years that anyone was at all interested in doing anything about the gas in that field. We had no offers at all. It was lean gas. Now we are faced with the proposition of two companies competing for that gas -Phillips and Mr. Herkness. We are somewhat in the same position as the State is. As a matter of fact, our 27 wells are located on State acreage, and it is a matter of interest to the State as well as to ourselves as to the final outcome of the disposition of that gas. Our offer from Herkness is considerably more lucrative to us than from Phillips. Our offer from Phillips is a lot less, consequently our revenue and the State's revenue would be considerably less than if we sell to Herkness. Phillips was not interested in doing anything about the gas down there until there was competition. If your Order is not issued we will be forced to sell our gas at a less price than if we could sell to Herkness.

Governor Dempsey:

You are the largest producer in that field?

Mr. Tesch:

Yes, sir. We are primarily oil producers in that field, and, as a matter of fact, it will greatly increase the oil recovery in that field. As you know, every well reaches a point sometime when it is not economical to operate. I might say this: We are an old operator in West-Central Texas. There we are selling gas and producing oil that we would not produce if it was not from the revenue we get from the sale of the gas and the production of oil has been increased because we got additional revenue by the sale of the gas. This same thing will happen in the South Eunice field at some time. We will be able to keep our wells operating for a much longer time. It is all a matter of dollars and cents. One company wants us to sell gas cheaper than another company, and, naturally, we want to sell our gas for the highest price, and we are also interested in oil production, and we feel this is the only thing that will continue the life of that field.

Mr. Bodie:

We are the next largest producer in that field, and we are the discoverers of that field. We drilled the first well there in 1928. Up to now we have seen the gas dissipated from that field in large amounts, with no market. We are very much interested in seeing this Order amended, as requested by Mr. Herkness, that we can market our gas.

Governor Dempsey:

Have either of you gentlemen made any estimate of the increased revenue to the State regarding this matter?

Mr. Tesch:

Strictly from a price standpoint on the case, it amounts to between fifty and seventy-five thousand dollars to the State over a period of ten years.

Governor Dempsey:

I do not feel that this Commission can grant this company a 10-year contract.

Mr. Tesch:

That can be broken down to say it amounts to between five and six thousand dollars a year, which is revenue coming into the State which otherwise would be lost. I feel the fundamental question is the waste element. That is what this Commission is concerned with.

Governor Dempsey:

Mr. Bodie, how many wells do you have in the field?

Mr. Bodie:

22. Under 50% of the wells in the field. For our part, we have figured this out as to the difference in revenue, based on 40 million cubic fect of natural gas. The sale to the Johnson Company would net the operators \$800 per day. The sale to the Phillips Company, at its average price, would be \$568, or a difference of \$332 lost to the operators daily. The State's royalty, if sold to the Johnson Company, would be \$49.88. If sold to the Phillips Company it would be \$31.50, or an \$18 per day loss.

Governor Dempsey:

Mr. Rippel, do you have something you wish to say at this time?

Mr. Rippel:

The only thing is an answer as to why Phillips has not been down in that field before. Until we made this contract with the El Paso Natural Gas Company we did not have a sale for the residue gas. Since we do have a sale for the residue gas, it is profitable to us.

Covernor Dempsey:

I see no objection to complying with the request of the applicant here, not as to any length of time, because that we can't do. We want to treat all plants now operating exactly as we would treat the Johnson application. I am not qualified to say to what extent the gas-oil ratio be lifted, but to a degree sufficient to furnish this Company 42 million cubic feet, which it has applied for. We do not want to lose control, however, thus cutting our own throats.

Mr. Catron:

The Commission might readily see that kind of production is detrimontal to the field, and we are going to stop it. As suggested by Mr. Tesch, it can be lifted, and as the volume of gas required is met, the ceiling can be brought down to meet it. We have this situation. The plant is not yet complete, and it will probably take some seven or eight additional months to complete it in its entirety. When it reaches its maximum production capacity we will know exactly what the ratio will be to fill this 42 million cubic feet per day. The Commission would want to reserve the right to put a ceiling on that would not be detrimental to the field, and I think the operators feel the same way. I think that would be absolutely essential, but, on the authority which I have, you can readily produce the 42 million cubic feet we are asking here without having any waste at all.

Mr. Tesch:

I do not believe there would be any waste. I think there are 14 wells shut in on account of high gas-oil ratios, and wells producing now are only producing at 50% over their rate capacity. That would more than produce enough gas to meet this 42 million cubic feet.

Mr. Spurrier:

Approximately how much oil would be produced? Would it exceed 40 barrels per well per day?

Mr. Tesch:

No, it would not. If the field was allowed to produce 40 million cubic feet per day you could expect 500 barrels more oil per day still under the allowable. We are not interested in seeing gas flared down there. That is why we say the best way to approach this is to open the field and find out what the field will produce, because by the time this plant is completed there will be changes, and the Commission can reinstate a gas-oil ratio limit. To me this is the engineer's approach.

Covernor Dempsey:

Apparently the Commission has no objection to the request you are making, Mr. Catron, except as to the time limit.

Mr. Catron:

As I say, I am perfectly willing to eliminate the time element. All we are asking is the volume of gas necessary to operate the plant economically and properly.

Mr. Bodie:

At the present time the gas is being flared, with no measurements, and you have no idea how much is being wasted. It is not the intention of the Commission to write an order to eliminate the amount of gas which our company is purchasing under our contracts?

Governor Dempsey:

This gives your company the right, if they can obtain the gas, to purchase and use it. The Commission is not an agent for any company. The Commission has in mind limiting the gas-oil ratio to the outlet of the gas channel for all purchasers. Mr. Catron, do I understand there will probably be no gas flared in the South Eunice Field if your permit is issued?

Mr. Catron:

You are getting over my head, but insofar as the Johnson Company is concerned, it wants to utilize the gas furnished it entirely. Insofar as the producers are concerned, I presume they would rather sell it than flare it. It has been reported that approximately 11 million feet are being flared daily, and we anticipate those 11 million shall be a part of the 42 rillion.

Governor Dempsey:

There being nothing further, the Commission will adjourn.

I certify that the above is a transcript of the proceedings in this matter as taken from my shorthand notes.

Mary E. Martin, Senographer

Í. . . . PLEASE REGISTER 5-8-46 NAME COMPANY ADDRESS Wood & Lings Apoil of Tufac obje. Odesser Spec HPMcarkey tillips Pat. Co. Dand may by R. M. F. Hummer Phillips Patto Barthoulde, Orda, Phillips PerCo Bartlesidle OKCa H.B. HURLEY ContinentAL AGACO FT WORTH , Texis W.G.Ricketts AMERADA PETiCorp Talse, OKLA J.E.LON Midland, TExos Aztec N.M. AL Greer Kokeot L. Maddoh Matec, N.Mexico Dudley Cornell D.D. Bodie Attorney Albuquarque ... C.S. 0 - 1 Co. Hobbs N Mer F.a. Cotion a.M. Montgomery Santate H.m. Chas, Enge John fo. Stanoligd Santade nm WB Moleen Oil Coms. Comm antered, 11 m a. R. Then G. H. Gegy Aztec N. Mex. Repollo Oil Go. MipLAND, Texas, Rermit Tejas, Magnolia Petroleum Co, SHELL Qie O., INC Pratield Oil Corp. HARNE H. MAYFIELD W. FARIS MIDLAND, TEXAS Gordon A Goodwin Los angeles, Cal. FEIMSPhillips Bee R' Subern Midland Tepas E.H. Shaw U.S. Geological Survey Foster Morrell Roswell, N.M. Glenn Stoley D.A. Powell GEORGE A GRAHAM Lea County Operators Hobbs N.M. Dritting & Exploration Co State LANDOFFICE, SANTAFE 7 m E.J. Gallagher Gulf Oil Corporation Hobbs, NM John & Given Charles Sofen John & Constant Spens Charles Sofen John Spens Charles Sofen John & Constant & Constant Petroling Seguren Charles Constant Constant Petroling Constant Const Holeler H my Tulda vola Hobbs, 77 m. Midland, Tesan R. b. Filling Vulas Cities Service Oil Co. Bobles, M. Werk RG Schuehle To Maymonichaffey Midland Ter To Kas-Pagific Coular Oil Co Uties proise of to Bartlewille, Okla D.R. MCKeither Phillips Pete Co. Santa Fr IV M Sty and Standind 63 94 All Card FIWORDEN Welder, Breques howanderting & Hoorth Jeyas Rosevell, MIR Hober N. W 2.10 Just de J.W. Hrouper HOINC, Killes Winey Midhard Ter

Darmiglan 231 Santi Fe Roswell

O'M Cause Diver Self Quard Leonard Dil Co Harry Journa Leonard Dil Co

STATE BUREAU OF MINES & MINERAL RESOURCES

Box 871

Santa Fo, Now Moxico

JOHN M. KELLY

June 8, 1946

Honorable Glenn Staley Hobbs, New Mexico

Dear Glenn:

Ret	Case No.	72,	Order No.	647
			Order No.	

Please find enclosed copies of the above-captioned orders.

Order No. 649, Case No. 74 has only the effect of adopting the revised C-115 form. The rest of the Order is word for word as the same section it amends, except for the fact that the revised Form C-115 is adopted. In order to adopt the revised C-115 form it was necessary to amend Section 2 of Order No. 447. The amendment simply repeats the particular section, making the one change of adopting the revised Form C-115 referred to.

Very truly yours,

Chief Clerk and Legal Adviser

CBL:mem Encls

STATE BUREAU OF MINES & MINERAL RESOURCES

1.000

Box 871

Santa Je, New Mexico

JOHN M. KELLY

June 8, 1946

Mr. Dudley Cornell Attorney at Law Albuquerque, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Cornell:

Re: Case 72, Order No. 647.

Please find enclosed a copy of the above-captioned order.

Very truly yours,

Chief Clerk and Legal Adviser

CBL:mem Encl 1

STATE BUREAU OF MINES & MINERAL RESOURCES Box 871

Santa Fo, Now Moxico

JOHN M. KELLY DIRECTOR

June 8, 1946

Mr. George F. Brewington Attorney at Law Aztec, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Brewington:

Re: Case 72, Order No. 647

Please find enclosed a copy of the above-captioned order.

Very truly yours,

Chief Clerk and Legal Adviser

CBL:nem Encl

STATE BUREAU OF MINES & MINERAL RESOURCES

Box 871

Santa Fe, New Mexico

JOHN M. KELLY Director

May 27, 1946

Mr. Willard J. Allen Rogers and Allen Attorneys-at-Law Las Animas, Colorado

Dear Mr. Allen:

Re: Case 72 - Petition of George Browington, et al for rescinding of Order 541, Fulcher Basin Pool.

In reply to your letter of May 25, this Commission rescinded Order 541, 160-acre spacing for the Fulcher Basin Pool, at its hearing on May 8, however, the formal Order has not as yet been executed by the Commission. The Southern Union Production Company has, however, filed a petition for a hearing for an Order embracing some plan for spacing on a 160-acre basis. As to what plan that may be, the Commission is not yet advised. The patition will be set down for a hearing, perhaps in July, if there are any other matters to be heard at that time.

Very truly yours,

Chief Clerk and Legal Adviser

CBL:mem

BYRON G. ROGERS

WILLARD J. ALLEN

ROGERS AND ALLEN ATTORNEYS AT LAW LAS ANIMAS, COLORADO Lay 28, 1946

Nr. R. R. Spurier Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Sir:

I shall appreciate it very much if you will inform me as to the decision rendered by the Commission relative to the application of Ceorge F. Bruington, et al, for an Order to rescind Order 541 limiting and fixing spacing of gas wells in the Fulcher Basin Field in San Juan County.

The reason I make inquiry is because my Lother is the owner of the NNZ of 1-29-12, a part of which is situate in the Fulcher Basin.

Thank you for any courtesy you may extend in the above recard.

Very truly yours,

Willard J. Africa

WJA:

BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

CASE NO. 72

ORDER NO. 647

THE APPLICATION OF GEORGE F. BREWINGTON, AL GREER, JOHN A. PIERCE, C. M. CARROLL, ROBERT L. MADDOX AND L. G. STEARNS FOR AN ORDER TO RESCIND ORDER 541 LIMITING AND FIXING SPACING OF GAS WELLS IN THE FULCHER BASIN FIELD, SAN JUAN COUNTY, NEW MEXICO OF ONE WELL TO 160 ACRES SO AS TO RETURN TO THE CUSTOMARY 40-ACRE SPACING OF THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION.

ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

BY THE COMMISSION:

This cause came on for hearing at ten o'clock A. M. May 8, 1946 at Santa Fe, New Mexico before the Oil Conservation Commission of New Mexico, hereinafter referred to as the "Commission".

NOW, on this 8th day of May, 1946, the Commission having before it for consideration the testimony adduced at the hearing of said case and being fully advised in the premises;

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT:

SECTION 1. Order 541 limiting and fixing spacing of gas wells in the Fulcher Basin Field, San Juan County, New Mexico, of one well to 160 acres for the duration of the war and six months thereafter shall be and is hereby revoked.

SECTION 2. This order shall be effective on May 8, 1946.

Done at Santa Fe, New Mexico as of the day and year hereinabove designated.

OIL CONSERVATION/COMMISSION Chairman John Dempsey, John E. Miles

R. R. Spurrier, Secretary

MANUEL A. SANCHEZ ATTORNEY AT LAW SALMON BUILDING SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

May 6, 1946.

Mr. Carl A. Livingston, Attorney, Oil Conservation Commission, Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Dear Mr. Livingston:

I enclose herewith for filing Motion for Continuance in Case No. 40, Order No. 541, of the Oil Conservation Commission.

I will be on hand on the morning of the 8th to press this motion. However, I thought I would mail you this motion, as the Commission may want to know of the matter prior to the time of the hearing.

Yours very truly, Manuel 4. Sauchez

MAS/JF Enc.

Cure 72

BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

CASE NO. 40

ORDER NO. 541.

THE APPLICATION OF THE SOUTHERN UNION PRODUCTION COMPANY FOR 160 ACRE SPACING FOR GAS WELLS IN THE FULCHER BASIN FIELD DEFINED FOR THE PURPOSE OF SAID APPLICATION TO CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING LANDS: SECTIONS 34 and 35, TOWNSHIP 30 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST N.M.P.M., SECTIONS 1, 2, 3, E2 10, 11, 12 & 13, TOWNSHIP 29 NORTH, RANGE 12 WEST, N.M.P.M., SECTIONS 7, 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21, TOWNSHIP 29 NORTH, RANGE 11 WEST, N.M.P.M.

MOTION FOR CONTINUANCE

Comes now Southern Union Production Company by its attorney Manuel A. Sanchez and respectfully requests that the hearing on the matter of the spacing of the wells in the Fulcher Basin Field be deferred for a period of sixty days, and as grounds therefor states that the period of sixty days is necessary to further study the problem of the spacing of wells.

That at the present time the cost of a well is about §15,000.00, and that a 40 acre well spacing might not be economical or for the best interests of conservation.

That the questions presented that companies who have developed their leases on the 160 acre pattern will have to redrill their leases on the 40 acre pattern to protect themselves and the royalty owners from drainage from wells drilled on 40 acre spacing.

That the matter of the economical spacing of wells, economic development of the field and the matter of the interest of conservation are involved in the determination of the spacing of said wells, and that a study of this matter is required in order that a proper solution of the problem may be arrived at, and that the 60 day time for the study of said problem is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

Manuel G. Sauchez, Attorney for Southern Union

Production Company

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION State of New Mexico OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION The OII Conservation Commission, as provided by law, hereby gives no-tice of the following hearings to be held at Santa Fe, New Mexico at 10:00 A. M., May 8, 1946. Case 72. In the matter of the application

Case 72. In the matter of the application of George F. Brewington, Al Greer, John A. Pierce, O. M. Carroll, Rob-ert L. Maddox and L. G Stearns for an order to rescind Order No. 541 limiting and fixing spacing of gas wells in the Fulcher Basin Field in San Juan County, New Mexico of one well to 160 acres so as to return to the customary 40-acre spacing of the Oil Conser-vation -Commission. Case 73. In the matter of the application

In the matter of the application of the Richfield Oil Cooperation for an order of approval of the unit agreement for the develop-ment and operation of the Comment and operation of the Com-anche Area within T. 10S, R. 25E, and T. 11S, R. 25E, and T. 10S, R. 25E, and T. 11S, R. 26E, and T. 11S, R. 27E, N.M.P.M., constitut-ing a compact unit area of 16, 901.14 acres, Chaves County, New Marice Mexico.

Case 74. In the matter of the application of the Oil Conservation Commis-

sion of the State of New Mexico upon its own motion for a revision of Operators' Monthly Report, Form C-115, effecting all produc-ing counties in New Mexico. e 75

In the matter of the application In the matter of the application of Charles Eneu Johnson and Company that it be issued a per-mit in lieu of or as supplemental to and amendatory of the permit issued to it by this Commission on May 25, 1945 to use up to 42,issued to it by this Commission on May 25, 1945 to use up to 42,-000,000 cubic feet of natural gas per day from the South Eunice Field in Lea County, New Mexico for the manufacture of carbon black in its plant approximately eight and 'one-half miles South of Eunice, New Mexico, said per-mit to continue in effect for a term of ten (10) years from the date of the issuance thereof. The applicant in said application fur-ther requests that this Commis-sion's Order No. 589, in case 59, be amended with respect to the term thereof so as to have it con-form with the term of the per-mit hereinabove applied for. Or-der 589, now requested to be amended, is the Order provid-ing for the lifting of the gas-oil ratio for the South Eunice Field for the duration of the war and six months thereafter for the pur-pose of the use of gas from said field for the manufacture of car-bon black when a carbon black plant with facting is ready

field for the manufacture of car-bon black when a carbon black 'plant with facilities is ready. Given under the seal of said Com-mission at Santa Fe, New Mexico on April 22, 1946. OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION By: R. R SPURRIER, (SEAL)

(SEAL) Secretary. Pub: April 25, 1946

Affidavit of Publication

State of New Mexico, County of Santa Fe

ss.

I, C. B. Fleyd	, b	cing f	first d	łuły	ទមហា

declare and say that I am the (Business Manager) Hattunt of the Santa Fe

New Mexican , a daily newspaper, published in the English

Language, and having a general circulation in the City and County of Santa Fe, State of New Mexico, and being a newspaper duly qualified to publish legal notices and advertisements under the provisions of Chapter 167 of the Session Laws of 1937; that the publication, a copy which is hereto atached, was published in said paper once sachmark

for one time managements man depression and the second sec the regular issue of the paper during the time of publication, and that the notice was published in the newspaper proper, and not in any supplement, once entry for

one time wetweensentively sheafingt publication being on the

25th day of April 1946, mindentenergebline

for said advertisement has been (duly made), or (assessed as court costs); that the

undersigned has personal knowledge of the matters and things set forth in this affidavit.

ime at \$ 6.88 times, \$..... Tax \$.....

BILL

. \$ 6,88

7 Manager 25th Subscribed and sworn to before me this... day A.D., 194. 0 5 Notary Public My Commission expires 14,1949


Sometimes known as Hierding tion.
Sometimes known as Hierding tion.
Iovato, simetimes known as Anteeta in the sometimes known as Anteeta in the sometimes known as Anteeta Bortego de Lovato, sometimes known as a trees de Lovato, sometimes known as a trees and sometimes known as the sometimes.
Natines, sometimes known as the sometime at the sometimes known as the sometimes known as the sometimes to the sometimes.
Natines, sometimes known as the sometime at the sometimes at the sometimes known as the sometimes.
Natines, sometimes known as the sometime at the sometimes at the sometimes known as the sometimes.
Natines, sometimes known as the sometime at the sometimes at the sometimes the sometimes.
Natines, sometimes known as the sometime at the sometime at the sometimes at the sometimes the sometimes.
Natines, sometimes known as the sometime at the sometime at the sometimes the sometimes at the sometimes.
Natines, sometimes the sometimes at the sometimes.
Natines, sometimes at the sometime at the sometimes at the sometimes at the sometimes at the sometimes at the sometimes.
Natines, sometimes at the sometime at the sometimes at the sometime at the sometimes at the sometimes at the sometimes at the sometime at the sometimes at the sometime at the sometimes at the sometimes at the sometimes at the sometimes at the sometime at the sometimes at the sometimes at the some The service of the se .4 zales; Daniel Lovato; Joze Anteete sometimes known as Ricardita Gon

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT

NEW MEXICAN

Affidavit of Publication

SS.

County of Santa Fe	
-	being first duly sworn,
C. B. Floyd	being first duly swom, Santa Fe
declare and say that I am the (Business N	lanager) filting of the Santa Fe
New Mexican	anager) finalization and a county of Santa Fe, State of a deer

New Mexico, and being a newspaper duly qualified to publish legal notices and adver tisements under the provisions of Chapter 167 of the Session Laws of 1937; that the publication, a copy which is hereto atached, was published in said paper once warding and

one time museum were mission to make man the m the regular issue of the paper during the time of publication, and that the notice was published in the newspaper proper, and not in any supplement, once engineering for

25th day c April 1946., mdnibmianouhlinn

My Commission expires

normannan, 19......; that payment for said advertisement has been (duly made), or (assessed as court costs); that the undersigned has personal knowledge of the matters and things set forth in this affidavit.

day

Manager A.D., 194 (

Λ.

M14, 1949

Notary Public

PUBLISHER'S BILL

_____lines, _____times, \$.....

.....

Tax \$.....

State of New Mexico,

Total \$ 6,88

Received payment,

Ву.....

F CITIZENS BANK OF AZTEC Aztec, New Mexico, April 26, _194_46 Uni 72 _received with enclosures as stated. 17th We credit your account: Yours of We enter for collection: All items are credited subject to final payment. Dear Sir: Received yours of 17th regarding rescinding No 541. 0 John A. Pierce Yours 11.63



LEASES :: PIPE

L. G. STEARNS DRILLING CONTRACTOR

April 27, 1940

Mr. Cerl R. Livingston State Bureau of Mines & Mineral Resources Box C'l Sente Re, Mer Nexico

Corr Tr. Livinestor: .

Ents is to reimorded period of your posice of Apuil 23, 1946 concerning the heaving of 9100 72, which is to be bold at Sente De on Day 3, 1943.

Verr ms

LBS: o

State of New Mozico, County of San Juan, Town of Aztec:

I, Geo. B. Bowra, Editor of the Aztec Independent-Roview, a weekly newspaper published at Aztec, Now Morico, do hereby swear under oath that the attached Notice by Publication of Hearing

was published once a week in said newspaper for <u>one</u> successive weeks, the first publication being on the <u>26th</u> day of <u>April</u>, 1946, and the last publication being on the <u>26</u> day of <u>April</u>, 1946; that said newspaper is of general circulation and is a legal newspaper qualified to publish said publication as required by law. Publication fee \$2.32

Subscribed and sworn to before	me this 26 day of April, 1946 1947 Augustary Public
•	
My Commission Expires Oct. 21,	1947 / bruch alle
	Notary Public

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION State of New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission The Oil Conservation Commission, as provided by law, hereby gives notice of the following hearing to be held at Santa Fe, New Mexico at: 10:00 A.M., May 8, 1946. Case 72

In the matter of the application of George F. Bruington, Al Greer, John A. Pierce, C.M. Carroll, Robert L. Maddox and L. G. Stearns for an order to rescind Order 541 limiting and fixing spacing of gas wells in the Fulcher Basin Field in San Juan County, New Mexico of one well to 160 acres so as to return to the customary 40 acres space of the Oil Conservation C. mmission.

Given under the seal of said Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico on April 22, 1946 (SEAL)

Oil Conservation Commission, R.R. Spurrier, Secretary. Pub. Aztec Independent-Review,

April 26, 1946

NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

GOVERIOR JOHN J. DEMPSEY LAND COMMISSIONER JOHN E. MILES

STATE GEOLOGIST R. R. SPURRIER SECRETARY AND DIRECTOR



- Santa Je, New Mexico

April 17, 1946

Mr. George F. Brewington Mr. Al Greer Mr. John A. Pierce Mr. C. M. Carroll Mr. Robert L. Maddox Mr. L. G. Stearns

Aztec, New Mexico

Gentlemen:

Re: Case 72. Application for an order to rescind Order No. 541

The above-captioned case has been set for hearing at Santa Fe, Mexico on May 19, 1946 at 10:00 A. M. F STM Will each of you please acknowledge receipt of this notice? New Mexico on May

Very truly yours,

Carl B. dive

 \leq

Chief Clerk and Legal Adviser

mem

Aztec N.M.

Receipt of notice of above hearing acknowledged this 24th day of April, 1946.

Geo.F.Bruington

STATE BUREAU OF MINES & MINERAL RESOURCES Box 871

Santa Fe. New Mexico

JOHN M. KELLY DIRECTOR

April 23, 1946

Mr. George F. Brewington Mr. Al Greer Mr. John A. Pierce Hr. C. M. Carroll Mr. Robert L. Maddox Mr. L. G. Stearns

Astec, New Maxico

Gentlemens

Re: Case 72. Application for an order te rescind Order No. 541

Please disregard the letter of this Commission of April 17, 1946 in which you were advised that the above-captioned case had been set for hearing at Santa Fe on May 9, 1946 at 10:00 A. H.

You are informed that the above-captioned case has now been set for hearing at Santa Fe on May 8, 1946 at 10:00 A. N.

Please acknowledge receipt of this notice.

Very truly yours,

Carl & divingston

Chief Clerk and Legal Adviser

non

Al: Will you please go to the office of the Aztec Independent Review, and advise that office that the only change in the

Mytec, April 25-46 Ogete, April 25-46 Woties received Terday and apter. Indefendent Review office wotiful de Grey.

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION STATE OF NEW MEXICO OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

The Oil Conservation Commission, as provided by law, hereby gives notice of the following hearing to be held at Santa Fe, New Mexico at 10:00 A. M., May 8, 1946:

Case 72.

In the matter of the application of George F. Brewington, Al Greer, John A. Pierce, C. M. Carroll, Robert L. Maddox and L. G. Stearns for an order to rescind Order 541 limiting and fixing spacing of gas wells in the Fulcher Basin Field in San Juan County, New Mexico of one well to 160 acres so as to return to the customary 40-acre spacing of the Oil Conservation Commission.

Given under the seal of said Commission at Santa Fe, New Mexico on April 22, 1946.

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

R. R. Spurrier, Secretary By:

SEAL

STATE BUREAU OF MINES & MINERAL RESOURCES

Box 871

Santa Fe, New Mexico

JOHN M. KELLY Director

April 23, 1946

The Astec Independent Review Aztec, New Mexico

Gentlemen:

Re: Notice of Publication - Case 72.

Under date of April 22, 1946 you were furnished a notice of the above captioned case for publication.

There is enclosed a notice of the said Case 72, to be substituted in lieu of the one furnished you in the abovementioned letter, the only change being that the date of the hearing is May 8, 1946 rather than May 9. It will be appreciated if you will make this change before the notice is published, following the instructions given in the letter of this Commission to you under date of April 22.

Very truly yours,

Chief Clerk and Legal Adviser

Encl mem

STATE BUREAU OF MINES & MINERAL RESOURCES

Box 871

Santa Je, New Mexico

JOHN M. KELLY

DIRECTOR

April 23, 1946

Mr. George F. Brewington Mr. Al Greer Mr. John A. Pierce Mr. G. N. Garroll Mr. Hobert L. Maddox Mr. L. G. Stearns

Astes, New Mexico

Gentilements

Re: Case 72. Application for an order to rescind Order No. 541

Please disregard the letter of this Commission of April 17, 1946 in which you were advised that the above-captioned case had been set for hearing at Santa Fe on May 9, 1946 at 10:00 A. H.

You are informed that the above-captioned case has now been set for hearing at Santa Fe on May 8, 1946 at 10:00 Å. M.

Please acknowledge receipt of this notice.

Very truly yours,

Chief Clerk and Legal Adviser

四日間

Al: Will you please go to the office of the Aztec Independent Review, and advise that office that the only change in the notice which was mailed it is the changing of the date from May 9 to May 8? Thanks.

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION STATE OF NEW HEXICO OIL CONSERVATION CONFLOCION

The Oil Conservation Compinsion, as provided by law, heroby gives notice of the following hearing to be held at Santa Fe, New Mexico at 10:00 A. M., May 8, 1946:

Case 72.

In the matter of the application of George F. Browington, Al Greer, John A. Pierse, C. M. Carroll, Robert L. Maddox and L. G. Stearns for an order to resaind Order No. 541 limiting and fixing spacing of gas wells in the Fulcher Masin Mield in San Juan County, New Mexico of one well to 160 acres so as to return to the customary 40-more spacing of the Oil Conservation Countssion.

Case 73.

In the matter of the application of the Richfield Oil Cooperation for an order of approval of the unit agreement for the development and operation of the Comanche Area within T. 105, R. 25E, and T. 115, R. 25E, and T. 105, R. 26E., and T. 115, R. 26E, and T. 115, R. 27E, N.M.P.M., constituting a compact unit area of 16,901.14 acres, Chaves County, Hew Mexico.

Case 74.

In the matter of the application of the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico upon its own motion for a revision of Operators' Monthly Report, Form C-115, effecting all producing counties in New Mexico.

Case 75.

In the matter of the application of Charles Enew Johnson and Company that it be issued a permit in lieu of or as supplemental to and amendatory of the permit issued to it by this Commission on May 25, 1945 to use up to 42,000,000 cubic feet of natural gas per day from the South Eunice Field in Lea County, New Nexico for the manufacture of carbon black in its plant approximately might and one-half miles South of Eunice, New Moxico, said permit to continue in effect for a term of ten (10) years from the date of the issuance thereof. The applicant in said application further requests that this Camission's Order No. 589, in case 59, be anended with respect to the term thereof so as to have it conforms with the term of the permit Mareinabove applied for. Order 589, now requested to be usended, is the Order providing for the lifting of the gas-oil ratio for the South Eurico Field for the duration of the war and six months thereafter for the purpose of the use of gas from said field for the manufacture of carbon black when a carbon black plant with facilities is ready.

Given under the seal of said Consission at Santa Fe, New Nexico on April 22, 1946.

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

By:

R. R. Spurnier, Secretary

STATE BUREAU OF MINES & MINERAL RESOURCES

Box 871

Santa Io, Now Moxico

JOHN M. KELLY

April 22, 1946

The Asteo Independent Review Asteo, New Mexico

Gentlemen:

Re: Notice of Publication - Case 72.

Please publish the enclosed notice once, immediately. Please proof-read the notice carefully and send a copy of the paper carrying such notice.

UPON COMPLETION OF THE PUBLICATION, PLEASE SEND PUBLISHER'S AFFIDAVIT.

For payment please submit statement in duplicate accompanied by voucher executed in duplicate. The vouchers must be signed by a notary in the space provided on the back of the voucher. The necessary blanks are enclosed.

Very truly yours,

Chief Clerk and Legal Adviser

mem Encl

A copy of the voucher, mentioned above, will be mailed to you in tomorrow's mail.

PETROLEUM ADMINISTRATION FOR WAR

WASHINGTON

FEB 2 7 1948

Rugard

mission,

1.0. is to advise you this Administration no long governing the spacing of wells.

ry 15, this wooked and regulations

I trust that this will answer your inquiry satisfactorily.

Yours very truly,

David M. Hudson, Acting Chief Counsel.



PETROLEUM ADMINISTRATION FOR WAR

WASHINGTON

REB 2 7 1948

Mr. Carl B. Livingston, Chief Clerk & Legal Adviser, New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission, Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Dear Mr. Livingston:

Replying to your request of February 15, this is to advise you that PAO-11 has been revoked and this Administration no longer has any regulations governing the spacing of wells.

I trust that this will answer your inquiry satisfactorily.

Ru

Yours very truly,

and no An don David M. Hudson,

win)

Acting Chief Counsel.



OIL JONSERVATION COMMISSION SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO



February 21, 1946

PAW alle

Mr. Al Greer Box 337 Astec, New Mexico

Dear Al:

Referring to our conversation of a few days ago, please be advised as follows:

Although PAW is apparently no longer functioning and therefore Section 2 of Order No. 541 (The Fulcher Basin Gas Field 160 acre Spacing Order) can no longer be effective, it seems best that you should petition the Commission for a hearing to rescind Order No. 541. (Carl Livingston can help you do this).

The Commission can promulgate no order without petition for hearing and likewise can not dissolve the same order without hearing; remembering that the order in question is effective for the duration of the war plus six months.

Very truly yours,

RRS:MS

OIL CONSERVATION CMISS SANTA FE, NEW MO

ł



February 1:1946

AIRMAIL

Petroleum Administration f War Oil and Gas Division Washington, D. C.

> Re: PAO-11 Case 3-NO-15

Gentlemen:

Please advise if the spring order limiting one well to 40 acres for oil and oncell to a section for gas well? has been revoked.

Specifically as to the ulcher Basin, San Juan County, New Mexico, in 1943 an exception was granted by your department permitting on gas well to 160 acres. It is therefore desired to kow if the restriction of one gas well to 160 acres for that area still is in effect.

This information willbc greatly appreciated by this department as soon as possible.

Very truly yours,

Chief Clerk & Legal Adviser

CBL:MS 4-11,-41, Forentia Manual stated PERM when I when the provide the property offer if the the property of the property

OIL CONSERVATION OMMISS

February 15, 1946

AIRMAIL

Petroleum Administration for War Natural Gas and Natural Gasoline Division 245 Mellie Esperson Building Houston, Texas

> Re: PAO-11 Case 3-NO-1915

Gentlemen:

Please advise if the spacing order limiting one well to 40 acres for oil and one well to a section for gas wells has been revoked.

Specifically as to the Fulcher Basin, San Juan County, New Mexico, in 1943 an exception was granted by your department permitting one gas well to 160 acres. It is therefore desired to know if the restriction of one gas well to 160 acres for that area still is in effect.

This information will be greatly appreciated by this department as soon as possible.

Very truly yours,

Chief Clerk & Legal Adviser

CBL:MS

Care LIO

OFFICE NO. 543, MENERCENCE (-22-43) THE FULTHER EASING GAR LOTELE RACHAGES FRACTED DADLE

1. That for the purpose of establiching a uniform spacing plan within the Fulcher Pasin Gas Field, as hereinafter defined, the spacing for gas wells shall be according to the following plan:

The unit shall consist of M60 acros in an apprevisate separe as defined by the United States Public Land Surveys. One gas well shall be permitted to each of such units, but no well shall be located closer than 330 feet to the exterior boundary of any such unit.

2. Provided: where such unit consists of tracts of diverse evenership and the owners are unable to consumate a unitizing agreement, no owner of less than 160 acre unit shall be denied his right to drill and produce, but in such case the well shall be operated and produced in such manner as to prevent injury to neighboring leases or properties. In such case, however, no owner of a tract smaller than the unit shall be granted permission to drill unless he shall first obtain an exception therefor from the Fetrolean Administrator.

3. For the purpose of the order herein, the Fulcher Basin Field is defined to consist of the following lands:

> Sections 34 and 35, Township 30 North, Lange 12 Yest, N.N.F.M.: Sections 1, 2, 3, 12 10, 11, 12 and 13, Township 29 North, Range 12 West, N.M.P.M. Sections 7, 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21, Toynship 39 North, Range 11 West, N.H.P.M.

4. This Order shall become effective on the 22nd day of June, 1943, and shall continue for the duration of the present war and for six months.

Azteo, New Mexico, July 15th, 1944.

Potroluem Administrator for War. Nellie Epperson Building, Ho ston, Texas, Gentlemen:

Rej PAD-11 Case 3-NG-1515.

I have your letter of the 7th inst., in referance to my application for waiver of exceptions as to drilling w well for oil and gas on lands in San Juan County, New Mexico, described as SaNE; and NNY NE; Section 8, wp. 29 N.Range 12 W., which suggests that I attempt to obtain contiguous agreage to form a drilling unit of 160 acres.

The regulations of the State Conse vation Commission require the acreage to be in en approximate square form as defined by the 0.8. Fublic land surveys.

I made an attent as your records will show, to obtain the other 40 acre rect in this NEI Sec. 2, and was unable so to do, and was unable to obtain participation as set forth in regulation #1503.26.

obtain participation as set forth in regulation #1503.25. By investigation shows that that there are no other 40 acre tracts adjoining the 130 acres beld by me that can be obtained, so as to form a square, other tracts adjacent are in Government permits or leases and the 160 acres immediatly south has already been developed by drilling. Apparently most of the adjacent lands are held or controlled by the Southern Union Cas Company, who are doing their own developement work, and their holding are not available.

work, and their holding are not available. Mr Dudley Cornell the as I understand is a government employee and connected with the Oil development effort or regulations, and who has an office in the same building you occur, and who attempted to obtain the lease on the lands now covered by my lease, appears to hold a Government Permit or Lease, Santa Fe (065557 on near by lands to my lease lands. Hone of his lands joins directly, but might be called contiguous, as to one forty acre tract, but would not form a square. Whether Mr Cornell, who has been developing acreage hold by bimself and associated in the Fulcher Basin would be willing to put up his part of the cost of a well to be drilled by me on my 120 acre lease is a question, as is also the difficulties of attempting to consolidate fee title lands as is also the difficulties of attempting to consolidate fee title lands with government landa.

I have been dissapointed in not being able to get a decision in this matter which has been pending since March last, expectally your wire to me of date June 29th which states that matter was inadvertantly delayed.

Please make a decision in this matter so that I may proceed one way or the other, respectfully calling your attention to the letter to your office sent by Mr John M.Kelly, Director of the N.M.Oil Conservation Commission of date march 25,1944.

Yours truly.

aa to Mr John M.Kelly, Director, N.N.O.C.C. Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Al Greer.

PETROLEUM ADMINISTRATION FOR WAR

HOUSTON, TEXAS

July 7, 1944

Subject: PAO-11 Case 3-HG-1515

Mr. Al Greer Aztes, Mon Mexico

Dear Mr. Greert

With further reference to your application to drill a gas well in the Fulcher Basin Field, and in view of the refusal of the owners of the NET of NET of Section 2-29N-12N, it is suggested that you endeavor to consolidate other contiguous acreage, in order to form a drilling unit of 160 acres, and supplement your pending application accordingly.

Yours very truly,

[8] Heavy L. Derm

Henry H. Brown District Director Natural Cas and Natural Casoline Division

bec: Kr. John M. Kelly, Director V New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, N.M.

bcc: Mr. L. G. Snow, U. S. Geological Survey, Roscell, N. M.

TROLEUM ADMINISTRATION FOR WAR

HOUSTON 1, TEXAS June 16, 1944

Subject: PAO-11 Case 3-NG-1515

Mr. John M. Kelly, Director, New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Kelly:

With further reference to the application of Mr. Al Greer to drill a gas well on a 120-acre tract in the Fulcher Basin ^Field, we are enclosing a copy of letter received from Mr. ^Snow of the U.S.G.S. at Roswell, in reply to our letter of June 7, a copy of which has already been forwarded to you.

It is regretted that in the face of objections raised by Mr. Snow this Office does not desire to recommend the requested grant of exception.

We wish to take this opportunity to express our appreciation of the splendid cooperation which your office has given us in the past, and we hope these pleasant relations may continue to prevail.

Yours very truly, Henry 4. Brown

Encl.

District Director Natural Gas and Natural Gasoline Division

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR GEOLOGIUAL SURVEY

P. O. Box 997 Roswell, New Mexico June 13, 1944

Mr. Henry M. Brown District Director Natural Gas and Natural Gasoline Division Petroleum Administration for War 245 Mellie Esperson Building Houston, Texas

Re: Case 3-NG-1515 (G-1256)

o p v

Dear Mr. Brown:

Receipt is acknowledged of your letter of June 7, 1944 requesting our comments or any recommendations we may wish to make regarding reconsideration of your denial to drill a gas well on the 120-acre tract described as the $S_2^{1}NE_4^{1}$ and $NW_4^{1}NE_4^{1}$, sec.2, T.29 N., R.12 W. Fulcher Basin field, on the basis that inadequate acreage was assignable to the well.

This office considers the establishment of an acceptable uniform drilling pattern for the entire Fulcher Basin gas field, the majority of the acreage of which is owned by the United States, to be essential and we have recommended and concurred in the spacing pattern of one well to 160 acres. All exceptions to date, and we have a record of six in the Fulcher Basin gas field, have been based on one well to 160 acres and where government lands were involved we have required that units of less than 160 acres be consolidated before granting permission to drill. Should exceptions now be granted to drill gas wells on less than 160 acres the whole spacing pattern for the field may be disrupted, and all lessees holding tracts of less than 160 acresmay reasonably apply for exceptions on the same basis:that their lands are being drained.

With reference to the particular case your attention is called to the two exceptions granted the Southern Union Production Company to drill in the NW $\frac{1}{4}$ SE $\frac{1}{4}$ and NW $\frac{1}{4}$ SW $\frac{1}{4}$, sec. 2, $\frac{T}{2}$.29 N., R. 12 W. To maintain the spacing pattern established wells, if and when drilled, should be drilled in the NW $\frac{1}{4}$ NE $\frac{1}{4}$ and NW $\frac{1}{4}$ NW $\frac{1}{4}$ of sec. 2. This office required that the two 80-acre tracts in the SW $\frac{1}{4}$ of sec. 2 be consolidated before approving notice of intention to drill, and this was done prior to the request for an exception from your office.

We have also advised the Southern Union Production Company in connection with the proposed drilling of a well in sec. 18, T. 29 N., R. 11 W. that it would be necessary to form a 160-acre drilling unit before drilling would be approved. Two Federal leases were involved and a proposed form of agreement for unitization of the tract was forwarded to the company for consideration.

PETROLEUM ADMINISTRATION FOR WAR Suite 245, Mellie Esperson Building HOUSTON, TEXAS

June 7, 1944

Subject: Case 3-NG-1516 (G-1256)

Mr. L. G. Snow, Supervisor Oil and Gas Operations U. S. Geological Survey P. O. Box 997 Roswell, New Maxico

Dear Mr. Snow:

Under date of April 4 we forwarded you a copy of our denial of the application of Al Greer, Astec, New Mexico, to drill a gas well on the 120-acre tract described as the S_2^{\pm} NS2 and NW NE2 of Section 2-29N-12W, Fulcher Basin Field, on the basis that inadequate acreage was assignable to the well.

However, Mr. Kelly, Director of the New Mexico Gil Conservation Commission, has written a letter in support of the application, stating that the owners of the NB¹/₂ of Section 2 have been offered an opportunity to participate in the production from the quarter-section drilling unit but have refused to join the unit; and that the 120-acre tract in question is being drained by an offset gas well located enne 800' south of the lease boundary. Therefore, Mr. Kelly has expressed the willingness of the Commission to grant Greer a permit on the 120acre tract with the well located \$30' S and W of the C of NB¹/₂ of Section 2.

In addition, Mr. Greer has filed documentary evidence to show an offer of participation was made to and refused by Mr. Earl Dragoo and Mr. Jim Hutton, owners of the NE NET.

On the basis of such doouwontary evidence, and the Commission's attitude, this Office is disposed to reconsider the Greer application. However, before taking definito action, we shall appreciate receiving any comments or recommendations which you may wish to make.

Yours very truly,

FORVICTORY BUY UNITED WAR BONDS STAMPS

oc: Mr. John M. Kelly,

Henry H. Brown District Director Natural Gas and Natural Casoline Division

PETROLLUM ADMINISTRATION FOR WAR

STRAIGHT MESSAGE

WASHINGTON, D. C. MAY 4, 1944.

JOHN M. KELLY, DIRECTOR OIL CONCENNATION COMMISSION, STATE CAPITOL, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO.

RE CREER'S APPLICATION DRILL GAS WELL SAN JUAN COUNTY, NEW MEXICO. HAVE DISCUSSED CASE WITH DUCKER, NATURAL GAS DIVISION. THEY ARE HAVING DISTRICT OFFICE WRITE YOU FULL PARTICULARS REGARDING DENIAL OF THIS APPLICATION.

> J. E. HESTON, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF PRODUCTION.

CONFIRMATION V

PETROLEUM ADMINISTRATION FOR WAR 247 Mellie Esperson Building HOUSTON 1, TEXAS DISTRICT III

May 8, 1944

Mr. John M. Kelly, Director New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Dear Mr. Kelly:

We are writing you to relate the circumstances surrounding our recent denial to Mr. Al Greer, Case No. 3-1256 (3-NG-1515) to drill a gas well on the Beck Lands in Section 2-2N-12W, Fulcher Basin Field, San Juan County, New Mexico. As you know, this application for exception was denied predicated on the fact that only 120 acres was assigned to the well, compared to our previous policy of authorizing gas well drilling, consistent with your regulations, requiring 160 acres to each well.

Through an oversight, we failed to recognize your comments by letter dated March 25th, presuming that if Mr. Greer made further attempts to consolidate appropriate acreage, it would be more consistent to maintain the present policy agreed upon by your office and ours.

We are now advised there are other pending circumstances which warrant reconsideration of this case and we would appreciate your advising Mr. Greer of these facts, suggesting to him that a supplemental application be filed.

We would certainly appreciate any further comments that you may care to make so that this application could be handled in the proper manner.

Sincerely yours

Henny M. Brown District Director of Natural Gas and Natural Gasoline Division

cc: Mr. Al Greer Box 337, Eztec, New Mexico



OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

May 5, 1944

Mr. Al Greer Aztec, New Mexico

Dear Al:

Attached is copy of telegram I have just received. Just as soon as we receive further information it will be forwarded to you.

•

Kindest regards.

Very truly yours,

John M. Kelly Director.

JIK INS



PETROLEUM ADMINISTRATION FOR WAR

HOUSTON 1, TEXAS

March 28, 1944

New Mexico Oil Conservation Commission Santa Fe, New Mexico

Attention: Mr. John M. Kelly, Director

Dear Mr. Kelly:

Thank you very much for your letter dated March 25 with reference to Mr. Al Greer's application for a gas well in the NE_{\pm}^{1} Section 2, Township 29N-Range 12W, San Juan County, New Mexico.

In view of the difficulty Mr. Greer is having in securing an appropriate unit, we shall be glad to review his application for the well, assuming of course he will supply the information requested in our letter of March 6.

We are sending Mr. Greer a copy of this letter, along with Recommendation No. 32, which sets forth the requirements for the formation of appropriate drilling units. We are suggesting that Mr. Greer submit a letter of offer to and reply from Messrs. Dragoo and Hutton, of Farmington, N. M.

At such time as we receive these data, we shall be glad to take action upon Mr. Greer's request.

Thank you very much for your cooperation.

Sincerely, yours,

Henry M. Brown District Director of Natural Gas and Natural Gasoline Division

cc to: Mr. Al Greer Aztec, New México.

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO

March 25, 1944

Petroleun Administration for War-Houston, Texas

Omilement:

Hr. Al Greer of Asteo, New Mexico, has requested the approval of this Coundesion to drill a gas well in the HE2 Section 2, Township 295-Range 12M, H.M.P.M. This is in an area that both the Oil Conservation Coundesion and the PAW have set up for 160 acre spacing.

Hr. Greer informs me he is the owner of 120 acres out of the NE, and that 40 acres, being the NE of the NE, are at the present owned by Mr. Dragoo and Mr. Button of Farmington, Hew Mexico. Mr. Greer has endeavoured to have these gentlement join with him to make a 160 acre drilling unit, which they have refused to do. At the present time Mr. Greer's Land is being drained by an offset gas well located some 800 feet south of the south boundary of his lease.

This is to inform you that this Commission will be in favor of Nr. Greer filing for and obtaining an exception to P.A.N. Order which would permit him to drill a gas well on his present lease of 120 mores and to locate the gas well 330 fest couth and most of the center of the NEA of Soction 2, Township 20%, Pange 12N.

Very truly yours,

John M. Kolly Director

JAKINS 3 cc to Al Greer

Azteo, New Mexico, March 17th, 1944.

Messrs Jim Hutton and Barl Dragoy, Farmington, New Mexico. Gentlemen;-

You will recollect that we have had some conservations in reference to your leasing to me the NENE' Section 2, Twp 29 N. Range 12 ". which yo hold by Tax Deed and you have informed me you did not mish to lease the land for oil and gas. As I informed you I have a lease of the Beck land, the South half of the northeast quarter and the northwest of the north-

west quarter of this "ection two and I contemplate drilling a well on this Beck Land for oil and ges to the Pictured Cliff formation, approximately 2900 feet in depth at a cost of between \$12,000.00 and \$ 15,000.00

3 15,000.00 The territory in election is in a restricted area for drilling whereunder 160 acres is required for drilling to be in one block. Under such regulations I, as in operator, in the drilling of a well on the Back based and ask you to participate in the drilling of a well for oil and gas and include your land in the block. Under this participation you would be required to pay your proportional cost (one fourth) of the drilling of the well and its upkeep and would, event of production of oil or gas, participate proportionally. I am taking this matter up with the New Hexloo Oil and Gas Conservation Commission, at Santa Fe, March 24th, 1944 and if you wish to participate in the drilling, and include your land, please advise both myself and the Commission on or before March, 23 1944. Yours truly.

Yours truly.

Al Greer. Box 337, Aztec, New Mexico.

State of New Mexico)) 8 S County of San Juan

Mr. Al Greer Azteo, New Mexico

participate.

Dear Mr. Greer: We appreciate your invitation to join you in drilling a well on the above described lands, however owing to the fact that we intend to drill a well for oil on our forty acres, we don't want to tie up our land in any other deal, therefore we refuse to

March 17, 1944

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 17th day of March 1944 Zelevent P Viceda

NY COMMISSION EXPRESAPEL PUBLIC

Yours truly Earl Drafoo Fermington, H.M.

infulto Jim Hutton, Farmington, M.H.

STATE BUREAU OF MINES & MINERAL RESOURCES

Box 871

Santa Fo, Now Moxico

April 17, 1946

JOHN M. KELLY DIRECTOR

> Mr. George F. Brewington Mr. Al Greer Mr. John A. Pierce Mr. C. M. Carroll Mr. Robert L. Maddox Mr. L. G. Stearns

Aztec, New Mexico

Gentlemen:

Re: Case 72. Application for an order to rescind Order No. 541

The above-captioned case has been set for hearing at Santa Fe, New Mexico on May 10, 1946 at 10:00 A. M.

Will each of you please acknowledge receipt of this notice?

Very truly yours,

Chief Clerk and Legal Adviser

mom

BEFORE THE CIL AND GAS CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO.

No._

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION TO RECIND ORDER No.541 (Case No.40) PERTAINING TO SPECING OF WELLS IN THE "F LCHER BASIN FIELD" IN SAN JUAN COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

To, The Oil & Gas Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico.

Gentlemem; -

Your petitioners respectully show;

THAT WHEREAS, of date April 27,1943, your Commission made and entered and Order, under No.541 (Case No.40) limiting and fixing spacing of wells, drilled or to be drilled for oil and gas, in what is known as the "Fulcher Basin Field" in San Juan County, New Mexico, whereunder drilling was limited to units of not less than 160 acres.

That said Oder, as your petitioners are informed, was adopten to conform to a like Order made by Federal P.A.W., and which said Order has now been recinded by such Government Agency.

The underisgned, owners and lessee's of lands wituated within the territory covered by said Oder No.541, now respectfully show to the Commission that a continuance of such Odder prevents due developement of the lands within such territory embraced in said Order, for both oil and gas, and is a detriment to all land owners and lessee's and the general public.

WHEREFORE, your undersigned petitiones respectfully ask that said Order No.541 be recinded, as to all lands embraced therein, and that lands embraced and situated in said described territory be permitted to be developed for oil and gas, under the same rules and regulations as existed prior to the entry of said Order N.541. Dated April _____, 1946.

mal with w

Rophication, Transcript, Small Exhibits, Etc.

10 So Replication, Transcript, Small Exhibits, Etc. Buttau Oli Company 7. COMANCHE

B Cine 73 - Frie 2

I-SEC. NO. 452

-

UNIT AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT AND OPERATION OF THE COMANCHE AREA, CHAVES COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

U. S. COOLOGICAL SURVEY. ICECEIVED SEP 2 3 1946 Roswell, New Mexico

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into as of the <u>lst</u> day of <u>July</u>, 1946, by and between the parties subscribing, ratifying or consenting hereto, and herein referred to as the "parties hereto,"

WITNESSETH:

THAT, WHEREAS, the parties hereto are the owners of operating, royalty, or other oil or gas interests in the unit area subject to this agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the parties hereto to conserve natural resources, prevent avoidable waste, and secure other benefits obtainable through development and operation of the unit area subject to this agreement under the terms, conditions and limitations hereinafter set forth, under and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 17, 27 and 32 of the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, entitled "An Act to promote the mining of coal, phosphate, oil, oil shale, gas and sodium on the public domain", 41 Stat. 443, 448, 450, as amended or supplemented by the Acts of March 4, 1931, 46 Stat. 1523, and August 21, 1935, 49 Stat. 676; 30 U. S. C. 226, 184, and 189; and

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico is authorized by an Act of the Legislature (Chap. 88, Laws of 1943) to consent to or approve this agreement on behalf of the State of New Mexico, in so far as it covers and includes lands and mineral interests of the State of New Mexico; and

1.
WHEREAS, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico is authorized by an Act of the Legislature (Chap. 72, Laws of 1935) to approve this agreement and the conservation provisions hereof;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the promises hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. <u>ENABLING ACT AND REGULATIONS</u>. The Act of Congress, approved February 25, 1920, <u>supra</u>, as amended, and the Acts of the Legislature of the State of New Mexico (Chap. 72, Laws of 1935 and Chap. 98, Laws of 1943) and all pertinent regulations heretofore or hereafter issued thereunder, including operating regulations, are accepted and made a part of this agreement.

2. <u>DEFINITIONS</u>. For all purposes of this agreement certain terms used herein are defined as follows:

(a) "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Interior of the United States and those persons or agencies duly authorized to act for and in his behalf.

(b) "Supervisor" shall mean the Oil and Gas Supervisor of the "nited States Geological Survey and those persons or agencies duly authorized to act for and in his behalf.

(c) "Commissioner" shall mean the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico.

(d) "Commission" shall mean the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico and those persons duly authorized to act for and in its behalf.

(e) "Working Interest Owner" shall mean a party owning the rights to operate upon unitized lands for the purpose of exploring, discovering, developing, and producing unitized substances.

(f) "Royalty Cwner" shall mean a party hereto or consenting hereto owning interests in unitized lands, or leases or other agreements pertaining to unitized lands, other than the rights to operate upon unitized lands for the purpose of exploring, discovering, developing, and producing unitized substances.

(g) "Paying quantities", in regard to any obligations of Unit Operator to drill any well or to continue drilling additional wells, shall mean a quantity of the unitized substances sufficient to repay the cost of drilling, equipping and operating the well and a small profit in addition thereto.

(h) "Unitized lands" shall mean such parts of the unit area as are committed hereto and are described opposite the signatures of the parties hereto.

3. UNITIZED SUBSTANCES. All oil, gas, natural gasoline and associated fluid hydrocarbons producible from land subject to this agreement, in any and all sands or horizons, are unitized under the terms of this agreement and hereinafter are called "unitized substances".

4. UNIT AREA. The following described lands, all situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, are hereby designated and recognized as constituting the unit area:

New Mexico Principal Meridian, New Mexico T, 10 S., R. 25 E., sec. 36, $S_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}}SE_{4}^{\frac{1}{2}}$. T. 11 S., R. 25 E., sec. 1, all; sec. 2, $E_{2}^{1}SE_{4}^{1}$; sec. 11, $E_{2}^{1}E_{2}^{1}$; sec. 12, all; sec. 13, all; sec. 14, $E_{2}^{1}E_{2}^{1}$ sec. 23, E¹₂NE¹₄; sec. 24, all; sec. 25, NE_{4}^{1} , $NE_{4}^{1}NW_{4}^{1}$, $NE_{4}^{1}SE_{4}^{1}$. T. 10 S., R. 26 E., sec. 31, lots 3, 4, $E_{2}^{1}SW_{4}^{1}$, SE_{4}^{1} ; sec. 32, S¹/₂; sec. 33, S¹/₂; sec. 34, $S_{2}^{1}S_{2}^{1}$ sec. 35, SW1SW1. T. 11 S., R. 26 E., (fractional) sec. 1, lots 1, 2, 3, 4, $S_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}}$; sec. 2, lots 5, 6, 7, 8, $S_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}}$; sec. 3, lots 1,2,3,4, $S_{\frac{1}{2}}^{\frac{1}{2}}$; sec. 4, lots $1, 2, 3, 4, 5, SE_{4}^{\perp}$; sec. 9, lots 1,2,3,4, E¹/₂; sec. 10, all; sec. 11, all; sec. 12, all; sec. 13, all; sec. 14, all; sec. 15, ell; sec. 16, lots 1,2,3,4, sec. 21, lots 1,2,3,4, sec. 22, all; sec. 23, all; sec. 24, all; sec. 25, N¹/₂, SW¹/₄;

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., (continued) sec. 26, all; sec. 27, all; sec. 26, lots 1,2,3,4, $E_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}}$; sec. 32, lots 1,2, $NE_{4}^{\frac{1}{4}}$; sec. 34, $N_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}}$, $N_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}S}$; sec. 35, $N_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}}$, $N_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}S}W_{4}^{\frac{1}{4}}$. T. 11 S., R. 27 E., sec. 6, lots 1,2,3,4,5,6, $E_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}S}W_{4}^{\frac{1}{4}}$, sec. 7, lots 1,2,3,4, $NE_{41}^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $E_{2}^{\frac{1}{4}}W_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}}$; sec. 18, lots 1,2,3,4, $E_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}}W_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}}$; sec. 19, lots 1,2,3,4.

The above described unit area shall be enlarged or contracted whenever such action is necessary or desirable to conform with the purposes of this agreement. Notice of any proposed enlargement or contraction shall be given by the Unit Operator to all parties affected thereby, at least thirty (30) days prior to submission to the Secretary, the Commissioner, and the Commission, with proof of service of such notice. Such enlargement or contraction shall be effective as of the date prescribed in the notice thereof upon approval by the Secretary, the Commissioner, and the Commission.

"Exhibit A" attached hereto is a map on which is outlined the herein-established unit area, together with the ownership of the land and leases in said area. "Exhibit B" attached hereto is a schedule showing the nature and extent of ownership of oil and gas rights in all land in the unit area to which this unit agreement will become applicable by signature hereto, or to a counterpart hereof, by the owners of such rights. It is hereby understood and agreed that all owners of rights set forth in said Schedule B are eligible to become parties to this agreement. Said exhibits shall be revised by the Unit Operator whenever any change in the unit area or ownership of rights renders such change necessary, and the revised exhibits shall be filed with the record of this agreement,

5. UNIT OPERATOR. RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, is hereby designated as Unit Operator and by signature hereto agrees and consents to accept the duties and obligations of Unit Operator to conduct and manage the operation of said unitized lands for the discovery, development and production of unitized substances as hereinafter provided. Hereinafter whenever reference is made to the Unit Operator, such reference

is understood to mean the Unit Operator acting in that capacity and not as an owner of interests in unitized substances, and whenever reference is made to an owner of unitized substances such a reference shall be understood to include any interests in unitized substances owned by the Unit Operator.

The Unit Operator shall have the right to resign at any time provided that any well drilled hereunder is placed in a satisfactory condition for suspension, or is satisfactorily abandoned under the federal oil and gas operating regulations, if on federal land, and under the laws of the State of New Mexico and the rules and regulations of the Commission, if on state or patented land; but no Unit Operator shall be relieved from the duties and obligations of Unit Operator for a period of three (3) months after notice of intention to relinquish such duties and obligations has been served by him on all other parties hereto and the Secretary and the Commissioner, unless a new Unit Operator shall have been selected and approved and shall have taken over and assumed the duties and obligations of Unit Operator prior to the date on which relinquishment by or removal of Unit Operator becomes effective. The parties hereto or a duly qualified new unit operator may purchase at its then depreciated market value all or any part of the equipment, material and appurtenances in or upon the land subject to this agreement, owned by the retiring unit operator, in its capacity as such operator, or make other arrangements satisfactory to the retiring unit operator for the use thereof, provided that no such equipment, material or appurtenances so selected for purchase shall be removed prior to the effective date of Unit Operator's retirement. Any equipment, material and appurtenances not so purchased or arranged for as to the use thereof within said time limit may be removed by the retiring Unit Operator at any time within six (6) months after his relinquishment or removal becomes effective, but if not so removed shall become the joint property of the owners of working interest rights in land then subject to this agreement. The termination of any rights as Unit Operator under this agreement shall not of itself

terminate any right, title or interest which the Unit Operator may then have in the unitized substances, but the Unit Operator shall have the right and option in connection with its resignation to reassign or retransfer to its several predecessors in interest all of its interest in the lands and leases severally acquired from them, together with its working interest in the unitized substances, and upon such delivery be discharged from any future liability as a working interest owner hereunder; said reassignments to be effective as to said transferee thereupon, subject, however, to the approval of the Secretary as to transfers of interest in lands of the United States, and subject, however, to the approval of the Commissioner as to interests in lands of the State of New Mexico.

6. SUCCESSOP UNIT OPERATOR. Whenever the Unit Operator shall discontinue or relinquish his rights as Unit Operator or shall fail to fulfill his duties and obligations as Unit Operator under this agreement, the owners of the majority of the unitized working interests in the participating area on an acreage basis, or the owners of working interests according to their total acreage interest in the unit area until a participating area shall have been established, shall select a new Unit Operator; provided that if the majority of the working interest rights which are at any time qualified to vote in selecting a new Unit Operator are owned by one party to this agreement then a vote of at least two owners of working interests qualified to vote shall be required to select a new operator. Such selection shall not become effective until (a) a unit operator so selected shall agree and consent in writing to accept the duties and responsibilities of Unit Operator, and (b) the selection shall have been approved by the Secretary and the Commissioner. In the absence of the selection of an acceptable Unit Operator by the Working Interest Owners within six (6) nonths after notice by Unit Operator of intention to relinquish its rights as Unit Operator, this unit agreement shall automatically terminate. The Unit Operator shall be subject to removal by the Working Interest Owners in the same manner as herein provided for

the selection of a new Unit Operator.

7. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF UNIT OPERATOR. Except as hereinafter specified, the exclusive right, privilege and duty of exercising any and all rights of the parties hereto which are necessary or convenient for prospecting for, producing, storing, and disposing of the unitized substances are hereby vested in the Unit Operator and shall be exercised by said Unit Operator as provided in this agreement. Acceptable evidence of title to said rights shall be deposited with the Unit Operator and, together with this agreement, shall constitute and define said Unit Operator's rights, privileges and obligations in the premises; provided that nothing herein shall be construed to transfer title to any land, or to any operating agreement or leases, it being understood that under and pursuant to this agreement the Unit Operator shall exercise the rights of possession and use vested in the parties hereto only and exclusively for the purposes herein specified. Unit Operator shall pay all costs and expenses of development and operation with respect to the unitized land and shall operate at the expense and for the benefit of all Working Interest Owners. Such costs shall be charged to the account of the owner or owners of working interests and Unit Operator shall be reimbursed therefor by such owners and shall account to the Working Interest (wmers for their respective shares of the revenue and benefits derived from operations hereunder, all in the manner and to the extent provided under private agreement between the Unit Operator and the Working Interest Owners. No such private agreement shall be deemed either to modify any of the terms and conditions of this unit agreement or to relieve Unit Operator of any right or obligation established under this unit agreement, and in case of any inconsistency or conflict between this unit agreement and the private agreement this unit agreement shall prevail. Two authenticated copies of any such private agreement executed pursuant to this section shall be filed with the Oil and Gas Supervisor and if state lands are involved iwo authenticated copies of such agreement shall be filed with the Commissioner. No part of the costs and expenses of operations

shall be charged to the Royalty Owners.

The development and operation of land subject to this agreement under the terms hereof shall be deemed full performance by Unit Operator of all obligations for such development and operation with respect to each and every part or separately owned tract subject to this agreement, regardless of whether there is any development of any particular part or tract of the unit area, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in any lease, operating agreement, or other contract.

It is understood that three shallow wells are now located within the unit area and are incapable of yielding sufficient production to justify establishment of a participating area therefor. Two of these wells are situated in the $NE_4^1NE_4^1$ sec. 15, and one in the $NE_4^1NW_4^1$ sec. 15, T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M. These three wells shall be operated independently and separately by the owner of the operating rights in such wells at the sole cost and expense and for the sole benefit of such owner as long as said wells are produced solely from formations above a depth of 1,500 feet below the surface. It is agreed that these wells shall not be deepened below a depth of 1,500 feet from the ground surface and no plan of development for these wells shall be required. Except as to the leases on which the three wells are situated, they shall not be considered as productive wells for any of the purposes or under any of the provisions of this agreement.

8. FURTHER EXPLORATORY DRILLING. Within six (6) months from the effective date of this agreement Unit Operator shall begin to drill an adequate test well at a location upon the unitized lands to be approved by t1 : Supervisor, if such location is upon lands of the United States, and if upon state lands or patented lands, such location shall be approved by the Commission, and having commenced such operations shall continue such drilling diligently until said well shall have been drilled to a depth of not less than six thousand six hundred (6,600) feet, unless oil or gas which can be produced in paying quantities is encountered in said well at

a lesser depth, or unless, at a lesser depth, an igneous or metamorphic formation or some other condition or formation is encountered which would render further drilling inadvisable or impracticable. If said first well, drilled as aforesaid, fails to encounter the unitized substances, Unit Operator or his successor shall thereupon commence within six (6) months after the completion of the former well, and drill, one at a time, additional wells, allowing six (6) months between wells, until a productive well is completed to the satisfaction of the Supervisor and Commissioner, or until it is reasonably proved that the unitized land is incapable of producing the unitized substances in paying quantities; provided that the Secretary and Commissioner may grant extension of time for the commencement of any such well; and provided further that nothing herein contained shall preclude any Unit Operator from resigning at any time as provided in section 5 hereof. Upon failure to comply with the drilling provision of this section, the Secretary and the Commissioner may, after 60 days written notice to Unit Operator, declare this unit agreement terminated, unless the Unit Operator shall prior to the expiration of the 60-day period take appropriate steps to cure such default.

9. PLAN OF FURTHER DEVELOPIENT AND OPERATION. Within sixty (60) days from completion of a well capable of producing the unitized substances, as aforesaid, Unit Operator shall submit for the approval of the Supervisor, the Commissioner, and the Commission an acceptable plan of development for the unitized lands, which plan or a subsequent modification thereof, when so approved, shall constitute the further drilling and operating obligations of Unit Operator. Said plan and its subsequent modifications shall provide for exploration of the unitized area and for the determination of the commercially productive limits thereof in each and every productive formation and to this end shall be as complete and adequate as the Supervisor, the Commissioner, and the Commission may determine to be necessary and advisable for timely development and proper conservation of the oil and gas resources of the unitized area and shall (a) specify the number and locations of any wells

io be drilled and the proposed order and time for such drilling; and (b) specify the operating practices regarded as necessary and advisable for proper conservation of natural resources. Reasonable diligence shall be exercised by the Unit Operator in complying with the drilling and moducing obligations of the approved plan of development and said plan shall be modified or supplemented in whole or in part from time to time as may be required to meet changed conditions or to protect the interests of all parties to this agreement, and the further obligations of the Unit Operator shall be conformed thereto; provided further that in no event shall the Unit Operator under any such plan, or otherwise, be under any obligation to drill any well to any formation that does not afford a fair possibility for encountering the unitized substances in paying quantities. Well drilling operations, including well completions, producing practices and well abandonments, shall be in accordance with the Plan of Development and Operation. All operations there under shall be subject to the approval of the Supervisor as to wells on federal land, and by the commiss ion for wells on state and private land,

During any period when it shall appear that an acceptable plan of development cannot be adopted because of the inability of the Supervisor, the Commissioner and the Commission to agree upon the terms thereof, the Unit Operator may, in accordance with the applicable regulations referred to in section 1 hereof, proceed with reasonable diligence to drill other wells to determine the limits of production and to develop the productive portion of the unitized lands, and may and shall operate all productive wells in conformity with good operating practices, and the conservation principles of this agreement.

10. <u>PARTICIPATION AFTER DISCOVERY</u>. Upon completion of a productive well as aforesaid, Unit Operator shall submit for the approval of the Secretary, the Commissioner and the Commission a schedule of land based on subdivisions of the public-land survey, including all subdivisions one-half or more of the acreage of which is then regarded as reasonably proved to be productive of unitized substances in paying quantities; all land in said schedule when

approved to constitute a participating area, effective as of the date of first production from such participating area. Said schedule shall set forth the percentage acreage interest of each owner of rights in the participating area thereby established. Such percentage acreage interest shall, except as otherwise provided in this agreement, govern the allocation of production from the participating area. With the approval of the Secretary, Commissioner and Commission, a separate participating area may be established for any separate deposit of unitized substances or for any group of such deposits. The participating area or areas so established shall be revised from time to time, in like manner and subject to like approval, whenever such action appears proper as a result of further drilling operations or otherwise, to include additional land then regarded as reasonably proved to be productive in paying quantities or to exclude land then regarded as reasonably proved not to be productive in paying quantities, and a new schedule of percentage acreage interests conformable thereto shall thereupon be fixed. No land once included in a participating area shall be excluded from such participating area on account of depletion of the unitized substances therefrom. It is the intent of this section that a participating area shall at all times represent as nearly as possible the area known or reasonably estimated to be productive in paying quantities.

On the first day of the month following approval of a revised schedule of percentage acreage interests, as herein provided, the allocation of unitized substances and the costs of operations shall be accordingly apportioned and adjusted retroactively as of the date of the completion of the first well capable of producing unitized substances in paying quantities in the participating area; except that no retroactive adjustment shall take into consideration any benefits of operations paid and any costs of operations received by Unit Operator by reason of any lands which shall have been excluded from a participating area because such lands are regarded as reasonably proved not to have been capable of producing unitized substances in paying quantities. Likewice there shall be no retroactive

adjustment in royalty rates or in the values of unitized substances. If any lands shall be excluded from a participating area because such lands are regarded as reasonably proved not to have been capable of producing unitized substances in paying quantities, such lands shall not share thereafter in the costs or benefits of operations. The holder of the interests in such lands so excluded shall not be obligated to repay any benefits allocated to such lands theretofore received, nor shall such holder be entitled to recover any part of the costs allocated to such excluded lands and theretofore paid by him, except any excess of costs so paid over benefits so received.

Until a participating area or a revision thereof has been approved as herein provided, or in the absence of agreement at any time between the Unit Operator, the Secretary, the Commissioner and the Commission as to the proper boundaries, or as to a revision, of a participating area, the portion of all payments affected by such absence of agreement, except royalties due the United States and the State of New Mexico, may be impounded in a manner mutually acceptable to the Working Interest Owners.

Whenever it is determined, subject to the approval of the Oil and Gas Supervisor, the Commissioner, and the Commission, that a well drilled under this agreement obtains production insufficient to justify inclusion of the land on which it is situated in a participating area, the production of such well shall be allocated solely to the land on which the well is situated as long as that land is not part of a participating area established for the pool or deposit from which such production is obtained.

11. <u>DEVELOPMENT OF IANDS OUTSIDE THE PARTICIPATING AREA</u>. Any party hereto other than Unit Operator owning or controlling a majority of the working interest rights in any unitized tract included in the nonparticipating area having thereon a regular well location may drill a well at such location at his own expense, unless within ninety (90) days of receipt of notice from said party of his intention to drill the well Unit Operator elects and commences to drill such well in like manner as other wells are drilled by Unit Operator under this agreement.

If such well is not drilled by Unit Operator and results in production such that the land upon which it is situated may properly be included in a participating area, the party paying the cost of drilling such well shall be reimbursed one hundred twenty-five per cent (125%) of the average cost of drilling similar producing wells in the unitized area, and the well shall be operated pursuant to the terms of this agreement, all as though the well had been drilled by the Unit Operator.

If any well drilled by Unit Operator or by a Working Interest Owner, as provided in this section, obtains production insufficient to justify inclusion in a participating area of the land on which said well is situated, and Unit Operator elects to abandon any such well drilled by it, said Working Interest Owner, at his election, within thirty (30) days of determination of such insufficiency, shall be wholly responsible for and may operate and produce and abandon the well at his sole expense and for his sole benefit. If such well is drilled by Unit Operator, said Working Interest Owner shall pay the Unit Operator a fair salvage value price for the casing and other equipment left in the well and the cost of drilling such well shall be charged as a cost of operations hereunder.

Wells drilled at the sole expense of any Working Interest Owner other than Unit Operator or produced at the sole expense and for the sole benefit of such Working Interest Owner shall be subject to the drilling and producing requirements of this agreement the same as though drilled or produced by Unit Operator, and royalty in amount or value of production from any such well, as well as rental charges, if any, shall be paid by such Working Interest Owner as specified in the lease affected, unless otherwise authorized in writing by the lessor.

12. <u>ALLOCATION OF PRODUCTION--ROYALTIES</u>. Except as otherwise provided in this agreement, all unitized substances produced under this agreement, except any part thereof used for production and development purposes thereunder, or unavoidably lost, shall be deemed to be produced equally on an acreage basis from the several tracts of land comprising the

participating area and, for the purpose of determining any benefits that accrue on an acreage basis as a result of operations under this agreement. each such tract shall have allocated to it such percentage of said production as its area bears to the said participating area, except that if, as a result of a change in the boundaries of a participating area, any tract of land in the participating area, as revised, shall not have received its allocated share of the unitized substances due to it upon such apportionment and adjustment, and any other tract shall have received more than its allocated share of the unitized substances than are due to it upon such apportionment and adjustment, then all unitized substances accruing to the total acreage of the participating area after the date of such apportionment and adjustment shall be allocated to such tract or tracts as have not received their allocated share of the unitized substances due such tract or tracts upon such apportionment and adjustment, until the amount of unitized substances due any such tract or tracts as a result of said apportionment and adjustment has been fully satisfied. So long as all the unitized substances produced hereunder accruing to the total acreage of the participating area are being allocated to less than all of the tracts in the participating area, as above provided, the unitized substances shall be divided among such tracts on an acreage basis in the ratio that the acreage of any such tract bears to the total acreage of all such tracts. Provided further, that if production should fail or cease for any cause prior to the date any tract shall have received the proportionate share of the unitized substances to which it is entitled upon any such apportionment and adjustment, Unit Operator shall not be liable to make up any deficiency, the parties hereto agreeing that they will look only to the unitized substances produced hereunder for the purpose of setisfying any allocated unitized substances pursuant to this agreement. It is hereby agreed that production from any part of the participating area shall be allocated as provided herein regardless of whether any wells are drilled on any particular part, or tract of said area.

Unit Operator shall not be required to pay royalties on unitized substances produced under this agreement and used by Unit Operator in its operations hereunder or unavoidably lost. Unitized substances produced from a participating area and used in conformity with good operating practice under an approved plan of operation for repressuring or cycling in such participating area shall not be allocated on an acreage basis as herein provided and shall be free from any royalty charge.

If Unit Operator introduces gas obtained from sources other than the unitized substances into any participating area hereunder for use in repressuring, stimulation of production or increasing ultimate recovery in conformity with a plan first approved by the Supervisor, the Commissioner and the Commission, a like amount of gas with a proportionate deduction for plant fuel consumption and shrinkage may be drawn from the formation into which the gas was introduced, royalty free and free from allocation as provided for herein, as to dry gas but not as to the products extracted therefrom, provided that such withdrawal shall be at such time as may be provided in the plan of operation or as may otherwise be consented to by the Supervisor, the Commissioner and the Commission as conforming to good petroleum engineering practice, and provided further that such right of withdrawal shall terminate on the termination of the unit agreement.

Except as otherwise herein provided, royalties shall be paid or delivered as provided by existing leases or contracts, at the lease or contract rate upon the unitized substances allocated to the lease or tract. Settlement shall be made on or before the 20th day of each month for the unitized substances produced and allocated during the preceding calendar month. Such royalties shall be paid by Unit Operator who shall distribute the cost thereof to the appropriate parties conformably with their respective royalty obligations, but nothing herein shall operate to relieve the lessees, or any of them, of their obligation to pay rentals and royalties under the terms of their respective leases.

The right is hereby secured to the United States and the State of

New Mexico under existing or future laws and regulations to elect to take their respective royalty shares in kind or value.

13. GOVERNMENT ROYALTIES. Royalty due the United States on account of federal lands subject to this agreement within the unit area shall be computed as provided in the operating regulations and shall be paid as to all unitized substances produced from a participating area on the basis of the amounts thereof allocated to such land, as provided herein, at the rates specified in the respective federal leases; provided, that for leases on which the royalty rate depends on the daily average production per well, said average production for any participating area shall be determined as of the month the unitized substances are allocated in accordance with the operating regulations as though all the unitized lands within the same participating area were a single consolidated lease. During the period of the National Emergency proclaimed by the President on May 27, 1941, Proclamation No. 2487 (55 Stat. 1647), upon a determination by the Secretary of the Interior that a new oil or gas field or deposit has been discovered by virtue of a well or wells drilled under this agreement, the royalty on production from such new field or deposit allocated to Federal land subject to this agreement at the time of such discovery shall, during the 10-year period following the date of such discovery, be paid in value or delivered in kind at a flat rate of 12-1/2 per centum unless a lower rate is prescribed in the lease.

14. <u>RENTALS</u>. Unit Operator, from and after the effective date of this agreement, on behalf of the respective Working Interest Owners, shall pay all rentals of whatsoever kind thereafter accruing to the United States, the State of New Mexico and/or landowners on account of unitized land, and all such rentals paid by Unit Operator shall be charged to the accounts of the appropriate Working Interest Cwners in conformity with their respective rental obligations; provided that nothing herein contained shall operate to relieve the lessees and/or Working Interest Owners, or any of them, of their obligation to pay rentals under the terms of their respec-

tive leases or other agreements, and all such sums so advanced by Unit Operator shall be repaid to Unit Operator as provided in the private agreement hereinabove referred to between Working Interest Owners. Rental for land of the United States subject to this agreement at the rate specified in the respective leases from the United States shall be paid, suspended, or reduced as may be determined by the Secretary pursuant to applicable law and regulations. The Unit Operator may apply the government's allocated royalty share of the unitized substances allocated to any federal lease during any year to repayment for government rentals advanced thereunder for that year to the same extent as otherwise allowed in the case of a nonunitized government lease.

15. <u>CONSERVATION</u>. Operations and production of unitized substances shall be conducted so as to provide for the most economical and efficient recovery of unitized substances to the end that maximum ultimate yield may be obtained without waste. Production of unitized substances shall at all times be without waste as defined by or pursuant to state or federal law.

16. <u>DRAINAGE</u>. Unit Operator shall take appropriate and adequate measures to prevent drainage of unitized substances from unitized land by wells on land not subject to this agreement, or, with the approval of the Secretary as to federal interests and of the Commissioner as to state interests, and at the election of the Unit Operator as to private interests, pay the royalty owners a fair and reasonable compensatory royalty, as determined by the Supervisor as to federal interests, and the Commissioner as to state interests subject to this agreement, and by agreement between the Unit Operator and regalty owners, as to private interests.

17. LEASES AND CONTRACTS CONFORMED TO AGREEMENT. The parties hereto holding interests in leases embracing unitized land of the United States or of the State of New Mexico consent that the Secretary and Commissioner, respectively, may, and said Secretary and Commissioner, by their approval of this agreement, do hereby establish, alter, change or revoke

the drilling, producing, and royalty requirements of such leases and the regulations in respect thereto, to conform said requirements to the provisions of this agreement, but otherwise the terms and conditions of said leases shall remain in full force and effect.

Owners and lessors of privately owned lands or of interests therein, including royalty interests, and including their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, by subscribing, ratifying or consenting to this agreement, in person or by attorney-in-fact, do hereby severally agree that the respective leases oovering their several lands or interests therein, may be and remain in force and effect for the respective primary terms therein stated, and so long thereafter as oil or gas may be produced therefrom in quantities sufficient to justify the cost of production; and also in the event that any of the land embraced in any such lease is during the primary term of such lease included within a participating area duly selected and approved under this unit plan of development, so that such owner becomes entitled to a share in the proceeds of production from the participating area, payable at the respective lease rates on the production allocated on an acreage basis to the portion of the lease within the participating area as herein provided, then each such lease is hereby extended, without further delay rental obligation, as to the land embraced therein which is so included in such participating area, for the full term of this unit agreement as herein stated.

The Secretary, Commissioner and, except as otherwise provided in the preceding paragraph of this section, all parties hereto further determine, agree and consent that during the effective life of this agreement, drilling and producing operations performed by the Unit Operator upon any unitized land will be accepted and deemed to be operations under and for the benefit of all unitized leases subject hereto; that no such lease shall be deemed to expire by reason of failure to produce wells situated on land therein embraced; that if a discovery of a valuable deposit of unitized substances is made anywhere on the unitized land, each such lease in effect

on or after the date of such discovery shall be deemed to continue in force and effect as to land in the unit area, as long as unitized substances are produced anywhere on unitized land in paying quantity; that prior to such discovery of unitized substances anywhere on unitized land, the expiration date of each unitized lease shall be the date prescribed in such lease, subject to such preferential right to a new lease as may be authorized by law; and the suspension of all operations and production on the unitized land pursuant to direction or consent of said Secretary and Commissioner shall be deemed to constitute such suspension pursuant to such direction or consent with respect to each such lease, and that no lease shall expire on account of such suspension, as to land in the unit area. Suspension or continuation of independent operations or production of wells by other than Unit Operator under the provisions of this agreement shall be governed by the terms of the lease for the land on which such wells are situated and shall have no relation to suspension or continuation of operations by the Unit Operator or the effect thereof under the terms of this agreement.

The parties hereto holding interests in leases subject to this agreement embracing lands other than those of the United States or of the State of New Mexico or holding interests in any other agreements that involve oil and gas rights in lands in the unit area, consent and agree, to the extent of their respective interests, that all such leases and agreements shall conform to the provisions of this agreement,

18. <u>COVENANTS RUN WITH LAND</u>. The covenants herein shall be construed to be covenants running with the land and running with the interests of the parties hereto to the extent of such interests until this agreement terminates, and any grant, transfer or lease of interest in land or leases subject hereto shall be and hereby is conditioned upon the assumption of all privileges and obligations hereunder by the grantee, transferee, lessee, or other successor in interest, and as to federal land, shall be subject to approval by the Secretary, and as to lands of the State of New Mexico, shall be subject to the approval of the Commissioner. No transfer of any interest

in and to any of the unitized lands or affecting the production therefrom shall be binding upon the Unit Operator until the first day of the next calendar month after the Unit Operator has been furnished with an original, photostatic or certified copy of the instrument of transfer.

19. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM. This agreement shall become effective on the first day of the calendar month next following approval by the Secretary and the Commissioner, provided however that nothing herein shall be construed to waive or limit the right of the Commission to approve this agreement pursuant to applicable state law. Except as otherwise provided by the second paragraph of section 17 hereof, this agreement shall terminate on July 1, 1951, unless (1) such date of expiration is extended by the Secretary and the Commissioner; or (2) a discovery of unitized substances in paying quantities has been made on the unitized lands, in which case this agreement shall remain in effect as long as unitized substances can be produced from the unitized lands in paying quantities; or (3) it is reasonably determined prior to the expiration of the fixed term hereof or any extension thereof that the unitized lands are incapable of production of unitized substances in paying quantities, and with approval of the Secretary and the Commissioner, notice of termination is given by Unit Operator to all parties in interest by letter addressed to them at their last known places of address; or (4) it is terminated as provided in section 6 hereof. This agreement may be terminated at any time with the consent of the owners of not less than seventy-five per cent (75%), on an acreage basis, of the Working Interest Owners signatory hereto with the approval of the Secretary and the Commissioner.

20. <u>RATE OF PROSPECTING</u>, <u>DEVELOPMENT AND PRODUCTION</u>. All production and the disposel thereof, shall be in conformity with allocations, allotments and quotas made or fixed by the Commission under any state statute; provided however that the Secretary is vested with authority pursuant to the amendatory acts of Congress of March 4, 1931, and August 21, 1935, <u>supra</u>, to alter or modify from time to time in his discretion the rate of prospecting:

20,

and development, and, within the limits made or fixed by the Commission, to modify the quantity and rate of production under this agreement, such authority being hereby limited to alteration or modification in the public interest, the purpose thereof and the public interest to be served thereby to be stated in the order of alteration or modification; provided further that no such alteration or modification shall be effective as to any lands of the State of New Mexico as to the rate of prospecting and development in the absence of the specific written approval thereof by the Commissioner and as to any lands of the State of New Mexico or privately owned lands subject to this agreement as to the quantity and rate of production in the absence of specific written approval thereof by the Commission.

21. FORCE MAJEURE. Failure or delay in the performance of the terms, conditions, and covenants hereof shall not cause this contract to expire, terminate, or be forfeited in whole or in part, nor subject the Unit Operator or other party otherwise liable therefor to liability in damages, to the extent and so long as such prompt performance is hindered, delayed or prevented by any federal or state law, executive order, rule or regulation, or to the extent and so long as such performance is hindered, delayed or prevented by an act of God, of the public enemy, governmental interference or restraint, inability to obtain material or equipment, labor disputes, failure of transportation, or other cause, whether similar or dissimilar, beyond the control of the party in interest.

22. <u>CONFLICT OF SUPERVISION</u>. Neither the Unit Operator nor the Working Interest Owners nor any of them shall be subject to any forfeiture, termination or expiration of any rights hereunder or under any leases or contracts subject hereto, or to any penalty or liability for delay or failure in whole or in part to comply therewith to the extent that said Unit Operator, Working Interest Owners or any of them are hindered, delayed, or prevented from complying therewith by reason of failure of Unit Operator to obtain the joint consent of the representatives of the United States and the representatives of the State of New Mexico in and about any matter or thing concerning

which it is required herein that such joint consent be obtained. The parties hereto and consenting hereto, including the Commission, agree that all powers and authority vested in the Commission in and by any provision of this contract are vested in the Commission and shall be exercised by it pursuant to the provisions of the laws of the State of New Mexico and are subject in any case to appeal or judicial review as may now or hereafter be provided by the laws of the State of New Mexico.

23. <u>NON-DISCRIMINATION</u>. The Unit Operator expressly agrees that in any and all operations conducted hereunder it shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color or national origin, and shall require an identical provision to be included in all subcontracts.

24. <u>SUBSEQUENT JOINDER</u>. Any person owning oil and gas rights in the unit area who does not commit such rights hereto prior to the effective date hereof, may thereafter commit such rights hereto by subscribing to a counterpart of this agreement, or by a separate ratification or consent hereto, and if such parties are Working Interest Owners they shall also subscribe the operating contract and comply with all terms and conditions therein set forth. Such subsequent joinder shall be effective on the first of the month following the filing of five counterparts thereof with the Supervisor. A counterpart thereof shall also be filed with the Commissioner and with the Commission.

25. <u>FAILURE OR DEFECT IN TITLE</u>. This agreement shall not be affected by any failure or defect in the title of any Working Interest Owner or Royalty Owner to land or leases or operating agreements in the unit area, but if at any time title to any of said land, leases, or operating agreements shall be disputed or clouded by court action or otherwise so as to jeopardize the right of Unit Operator to operate such lands in the manner and for the purposes herein set forth, the Unit Operator, during the period of such jeopardy, may impound the unitized substances produced therefrom, or the proceeds of the sale thereof except royalties due the United States or the

State of New Mexico until the right to operate sold lands shall be satisfactorily cleared. If a party here to shall lose title, in whole or in part, to land or leases or operating agreements made subject to this agreement by such party, such party's participation hereunder as to the lands or leases or operating agreements as to which such title shall be lost, shall be cancelled to the extent of such failure of title, and on such cancellation such party shall refund and repay to that Operator all profits, monies, oredits and the value of unitized substances received in kind under this agreement, and shall be entitled to a refund of any costs and expenses therefore paid by such party by reason of the land, leases or operating agreements to which title has been lost. Unit Operator shall be under no obligation to defend title to lands or leases, operating a greements or other contracts covering lands subject to this agreement be longing to any party subscribing or consenting hereto, but may do so at its election.

26. NOTICES. All notices to all parties subscribing or consenting hereto herein provided for shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in the United States mail as registered mil, with postage thereon fully prepaid, addressed to such parties, and if their addresses are set forth under their respective signatures here to, then at such addresses, or when filed as a telegram with the Western Union Telegraph Company or any successor in interest of said tele graph company, addressed a salowe provided, with all charges thereon fully prepaid. Any such party by notice in writing to Unit Operator shall be privileged to charge its address.

27. HEIRS AND ASSIGNS. This agreement shall externed to and be binding upon the respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

28. <u>COUNTERPARTS</u>. This agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts with the same force and effect as if all parties had signed the same document, and shall be binding upon all those who execute a counterpart hereof, regardless of whether or not it is executed by all other parties, coming or claiming an interest in the lands affected here by,

Com. Rev. -9-18-46

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this agreement to be executed and have set opposite their respective names the date of execution and a list of the lands made subject to this agreement.

DESCRIPTION OF LANDS

New Mexico Principal Meridian

T. 10 S., R. 25 E.,

Sec. 36, S2SE1,

- T. 10 S., R. 26 E.,
 - Sec. 31, Lots 3, 4, $E_{2}^{1}SW_{4}^{1}$, SE_{4}^{1} , Sec. 32, NW4SW4, $SE_{4}^{1}SW_{4}^{1}$, Sec. 33, S_{2}^{1} .
- T. 11 S., R. 25 E., Sec. 1, Lots 1, 2, 3, $S_{2}^{1}NE_{4}^{1}$, $SE_{4}^{1}NW_{4}^{1}$, ESE2, Sec. 12, ENE2, Sec. 14, SE2NE2, Sec. 24, SW2, Sec. 25, NE2NW2, NW2NE2, Sec. 13, SE2, Sec. 13, SE2, Sec. 14, NE2NE2,) as to an un-Sec. 24, NE2NE2,) as to an un-Sec. 24, NE2NE2,) as to an un-Sec. 24, NE2NE2,) interest there-Sec. 25, ENE2, NE2S3,) in.

T. 11 S., R. 26 E.,

Sec. 1, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, $S^{\frac{1}{2}}$, Sec. 2, Lots 5, 6, $NW^{\frac{1}{4}}SW^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 3, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, $SW^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $N^{\frac{1}{2}}SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 4, Lots 2, 3, 4, 5, $SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 9, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, $NW^{\frac{1}{4}}NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 10, $S^{\frac{1}{2}}NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $NW^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $NE^{\frac{1}{4}}SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 11, All, Sec. 12, All, Sec. 13, All, Sec. 14, $S^{\frac{1}{2}}NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 15, $S^{\frac{1}{2}}NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 16, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, $S^{\frac{1}{2}}NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $NW^{\frac{1}{4}}NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 21, $NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $E^{\frac{1}{2}}SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 22, All, Sec. 24, All, Sec. 26, $W^{\frac{1}{2}}NW^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $NE^{\frac{1}{4}}SW^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 26, $SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $E^{\frac{1}{2}}NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 27, $NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $E^{\frac{1}{2}}NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $NE^{\frac{1}{4}}SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 34, $NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $SE^{\frac{1}{4}}NW^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $NE^{\frac{1}{4}}SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 34, $NE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $SE^{\frac{1}{4}}NW^{\frac{1}{4}}$, $N^{\frac{1}{2}}SE^{\frac{1}{4}}$, Sec. 35, $N^{\frac{1}{2}}$, $N^{\frac{1}{2}}SW^{\frac{1}{4}}$,

RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION

Bν resident R Secretary 774 UNIT OPERATOR AND WORKING INTEREST OWNER Address: 555 South Flower Street,

Address: 555 South Flower Street, Los Angeles 13, California.

Executed this day of 1946.

Com. Rev. 9-18-46

DESCRIPTION OF LA	MUS (CONTINUED)	

T. 11 S., R. 26 E. (continued)

Sec. 21, W2SE1,)as to an undi-) Sec. 28, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4,)vided 88. %) W2NE2,)interest there-) in.) Sec. 21, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4.)as to an undi-))vided 94.6%))interest there-))in.

T. 11 S., R. 27 E.,

Sec. 6, Lot 1, SE¹, Sec. 7, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, E¹₂, Sec. 19, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4.

Witnesses to signature of RICHFIELD, OIL CORPORATION

Witness:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA) SS. COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES) On this <u>19</u> that a signally appeared <u>FRANKA MORGAN</u>, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn did say that he is the vice President of the

RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of said corporation and that said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors, and said FRANKA MORGAN acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal on this the day and year first above written.

Karkan И властван

My commission expires: My Commission Mer. 5, 1947

Other Working InTerest Owners

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 062044 are also set forth opposite the signature of Richfield Oil Corporation

T. 10 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M.,

Sec. 31, Lots 3 and 4, E2SW2, SEŻ Sec. 33, S¹/₂

T. 11 S., R. 26 E.,

Sec.	3.	NISEI SINEI
Sec.	10,	SZNEZ
Sec.	п,	NWà
Sec.	24.	All

By Vice President of Right leld Off TR . Corporation as their Attorney-infact

910 South Main Street Address: Roswell, New Mexico.

Executed this 19 th day of 1946. ntember Witnesses:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

SS.

On this 19 day of estember, 1946, before me person-red FRANKA MORGAN, Vice President of Richfield Oil ally appeared Corporation, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Bess V. Ballard and Bert Ballard, her husband, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Bess V. Ballard and Bert Ballard.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Raibaug otary Public

My commission expires: My Commission · . · 10 · · 5, 1747

DESCRIPTION OF LANDS The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces O61461 are also set forth opposite the signature of Richfield Oil Corporation T. 11 S., R. 25 E., N.M.P.M., alle By Sec. 1, Lots 1, 2, 3, SE4NW4, StNE4, E2SE4 Vice President of Richfield/011 ma Corporation as their Attomney-infact T. 11 S., R. 26 E. 305 North Missouri Avenue Address: Sec. 3, Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4 Sec. 4, Lots 2, 3, 4 and 5, SET Roswell, New Mexico. Executed this 19 th Sec. 9, Lots 1 and 2 eptember . 1946. and as to Serial Number Las Cruces 063540 Witnesses: T. 11 S., R. 26 E. torkweather Sec. 11, 12, SW2 STATE OF CALIFORNIA SS. COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ally appeared Corporation, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of S. W. Lodewick and Laura Lodewick, his wife, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Kailaagh Notary Public

My commission expires: My Commission E 1947

S. W. Lodewick and Laura Lodewick.

The following lands under Serial Number Las Ornees 052045 are also set forth opposite the signature of Richfield Oil Corporation

T. 11 S., R. 25 E., N.H.P.M.,

Sec. 12, E2NE4

By <u>Vice President of Richfield Oil</u> Corporation as their Attorney-infact

722

Address: 910 South Main Street Roswell, New Mexico.

Executed this 19 day of , 1946. stember Witnesses: an kineat

STATE OF CALIFORNIA COUNTY OF LOS ANDELES

On this 19 day of Loten ber, 1946, before me personally appeared FRANKA MORGAN Vice President of Richfield Oil Corporation, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Bert Ballard and Bess V. Ballard, his wife, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Bert Ballard and Bess V. Ballard.

SS.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

My commission expires: My C

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 061517 are also set forth opposite the signature of Richfield Oil Corporation

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M.,

Sec. 1, Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4

By Vice President of Richffeld Oil Corporation as their Attorney-inme fact Address: 1105 West Main Artesia, New Mexico. Executed this 19 day of 1946. Witnesses:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

On this <u>19</u> day of <u>Leften ber</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>FRANKA MORGAN</u>, Vice President of Richfield Oil Corporation, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Virginia Shaw and Jack Shaw, her husband, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Virginia Shaw and Jack Shaw.

SS,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Varban

Notary Public

My commission expires: My Content

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 062042 are also set forth opposite the signature of Richfield Oil Corporation

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec.	1,	512	
Sec.	9,	NWINEI	
Sec.	10,	NEISEI	
Sec.	12,	A11	
Sec.	13,	AIL	
Sec.	15.	Sheit,	SE

Cora Lodewick, # #1	Ç u
By <u>Wice President of Richfield Of</u> Corporation as her Attorney-in fact	TR
Address: 305 North Missouri Aven Roswell, New Mexico	ue
Executed this 19 th day of	

taileveathe

STATE OF CALIFORNIA)) SS. COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES)

On this <u>19</u> day of <u>kptamber</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>FRANKA MORGAN</u> Vice President of Richfield Qil Corporation, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Cora Lodewick, a widow, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Cora Lodewick.

Witnesses:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 062043 are also set forth opposite the signature of Richfield 011 Corporation

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.H.

Sec. 3, SW2 Sec. 10, NW2 Sec. 14, String, St Sec. 22, All Sec. 23, All

and as to Serial Number Las Cruces 064651

T. 11 S., R. 26 E.

Sec. 9, Lots 3 and 4

By The Vice President Richfield 011 of Corporation as their Attorney-infact Address 305 North Missouri Avenue Roswell, New Mexico Executed this 19 th day of 1946. ptamber diama

STATE OF CALIFORNIA COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

19 day of Splan bor, 1946, before me person-FRANKA MORGAN Vice President of Richfield Oil On this ally appeared Corporation, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Laura Lodewick and S. W. Lodewick, her husband, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Laura Lodewick and S. W. Lodewick.

Witnesses:

IN WITNESS MHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

SS.

Ardaugh Notary Public

My commission expires: My Commission 120.5, 1947

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 063855 are also set forth opposite the signature of Richfield Oil Corporation

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 26,	WINNI, SWA NEA, EINWA, NEASWA, NEA, EINWA, NEASWA, NASEA, SEASEA
Sec. 27,	NEZ, EZNWZ, NEZSWZ,
	N2SE2, SE2SE2
Sec. 34,	NEZ, SEZNWZ, NZSEZ
Sec. 35,	NEŻ, SEŻNWŻ, NŻSEŻ Nż, Nżswż

	James Q. Marshall	
	Virginia C. Marshall, his vir	ee
	Virginia C. Marshall, his wife	
Ву	Vice President of Richfield Oll Corporation as their Attorney-in- Fact	שרד

uls D. Marshall

Tarkui

Address: P. O. Box 206, Roswell, New Mexico.

Executed this 19 th day of 1946. otambe,

Witnesses:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

) ss.)

On this 19 day of $\frac{19000 \text{ bey}}{19000 \text{ bey}}$, 1946, before me personally appeared FRANKA MORGAN, Vice President of Richfield Oil Corporation, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of James Q. Marshall and Virginia C. Marshall, his wife, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said James Q. Marshall and Virginia C. Marshall.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

12 CONDER augs Notary/Public

My commission expires: My Consult States of 5, 1947

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 062020 are also set forth opposite the signature of Richfield Oil Corporation

T. 11 S., R. 27 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 7, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, E

By TR Vice President of Richfield Qil Corporation as their Attorney-infact Address: 200 South Penn Avenue Roswell, New Mexico. Executed this 19 day of , 1946. September de Witnesses; tacherveith

STATE OF CALIFORNIA COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

ss.

On this <u>19</u> day of <u>eptember</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>FRANKA MORGAN</u>, Vice President of Richfield Oil Corporation, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Lillian Coll and N. W. Coll, her husband, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Lillian Coll and N. W. Coll.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

to may Yu R. Notary Public

My commission expires: My Consection of the offer 5, 1947

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 061266 are also set forth opposite the signature of Richfield Oil Corporation

T. 11 S., R. 27 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 19, Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4

	Mangen Rohen
Ma	irion Roney, also known as Marian
Ro	oney, a single woman
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	man benefit
Bj	Vice President of Richfield-Oll
	Corporation as her Attorney-in-
	fact
	Among OOD IT Dawn Among
AC	Idress: 809 N. Penn Avenue
	Roswell, New Mexico.
	.t-/
R	recuted this 19 day of
	epternber, 1946.
₩:	Itnesses: Channa 7. Arco
	Y L. I K
	L. Atachementher

 $\boldsymbol{\Lambda}$

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

On this 19 day of Septamber, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>FRANKA MORGAN</u>, Vice President of Richfield Oil Corporation, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Marion Roney, also known as Marian Roney, a single woman, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Marion Roney.

SS.

)

1.

°°.≱

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

OTHER WORKING INTEREST OWNERS

DESCRIPTION OF LANDS

New Mexico Principal Meridian

T. 10 S., R. 26 E.,

Sec. 32, W2SE2.

T. 11 S., R. 25 E.,

Sec. 11, SEANEA Sec. 12, SANWA, NEASWA, NEASEA

T. 11 S., R. 26 E.,

Sec. 2, Lots 7 and 8, NWASEA, SEASEA Sec. 9, EANEA, SWAMEA, SEA Sec. 10, SWA, WASEA, SEA Sec. 15, NAMEA, WASEA Sec. 25, WAS Sec. 26, EA

T. 11 S., R. 27 E.,

Sec. 6, Lots 3, 4, 5, 6, $E_{2}^{\frac{1}{2}}SW_{4}^{\frac{1}{2}}$ Sec. 7, NE $\frac{1}{4}$ Sec. 18, Lots 2, 3, $SE_{4}^{\frac{1}{2}}NW_{4}^{\frac{1}{2}}$, NE $\frac{1}{4}SW_{4}^{\frac{1}{2}}$ DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC.

By Prosident

Address: De Kalb, Illinois

day of Executed this / ettinder , 1946.

(0)18/el Witnesses: (

COUNTY OF Contract

On this ____ day of _____, 1946, before me personally appeared _____, to me personally known, who, being by me duly

SS.

sworn did say that he is the President of DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC., and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of said corporation and that said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors, and said

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal on this the day and year first above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires: July 13-1988

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 063854 are also set forth opposite the signature of De Kalb Agricultural Association, Inc.

T. 11 S., R. 25 E., N. M.P.M.

Sec. 11, SEANE

ĨŨ

By President of De Kalb Agricultural Associetion, Inc. as their Attorney-in-fact

Address: c/o The First National Bank Roswell, New Mexico.

Executed this. hu, 1946.

O. C. Miles Witnesses:

Delinais STATE OF ss. De Kall COUNTY OF

On this day of dept, 1946, before me personally appeared Agricultural Association, Inc., to me known to be the person who execut-ed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Margaret W. Childress and Floyd Childress, her husband, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Margaret W. Childress and Floyd Childress.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

My commission expires: ______

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 064119 are also set forth opposite the signature of De Kalb Agricultural Association, Inc.

T. 11 S., R. 25 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 12, SINWI, NEISWI, NEISEI

Ola Winderle

By President of De Kalb Agricultural Association, Inc. as fur

Attorney-in-fact

Box 88 Address: mex.

Executed this // day of

sten

P. O. Mela Witnesses:

Cu 1946.

STATE OF ss . COUNTY OF all

On this day of <u>feat</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>President</u>, President of De Kalt Agricultural Association, Inc. to me known to be the person who executed President of De Kalb the foregoing instrument in behalf of Ola Wimberly

, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Ola Wimberly

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

By commission expires:

19. 1998
The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 026468 are also set forth opposite the signature of De Kalb Agricultural Association, Inc.

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 9, NEANEL, SHEA, SEA Sec. 10, SWA, WASEA, SEASEA Sec. 15, NANEL Sec. 15, NANEL

Ceraldine Johnson By Bresident of De Kalb Agricul-tural Association, Inc. as their Attorney-in-fact Address: J. P. White Bld. Roswell S ... sex. Executed this / - day of stender, 1946. POBel Witnesses:

COUNTY OF <u>Contract</u> SS.

On this day of <u>Freshold</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>Agricultural Association, Inc.</u>, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of S. W. Lodewick and Laura Lodewick, his wife, and S. P. Johnson, Jr., and Geraldine Johnson, his wife, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said S. W. Lodewick and Laura Lodewick and S. P. Johnson, Jr., and Geraldine Johnson.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public July 19, 1948 My commission expires:

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 029232 are also set forth opposite the signature of De Kalb Agricultural Association, Inc.

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 15, Wh

and as to Serial Number Las Cruces 062043

T. 11 S., R. 26 E.

Sec. 26, E2

Lodencel

By resident of De Kalb Agricul-

tural Association, Inc. as their Attorney-in-fact

Address: 305 North Missouri Avenue Roswell, New Mexico

iay of Executed this

ptent Witnesses:

STATE OF ss. COUNTY OF

On this <u>a</u> day of <u>left</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>President</u>, President of De Kalb Agricultural Association, Inc., to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of S. W. Lodewick and Laura Lodewick, his wife, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said S. W. Lodewick and Laura Lodewick.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 062042 are also set forth opposite the signature of De Kalb Agricultural Association, Inc.

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 25, Wz

Cora Lodewick

By Kalb Agricul-0 President

tural Association, Inc. as her Attorney-in-fact

Address: 305 North Missouri Avenue Roswell, New Mexico.

Executed this /)

P. C. Nelsm Witnesses:

STATE OF SS. De Yall COUNTY OF

On this day of <u>fear</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>Agricultural Association, Inc.</u>, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Cora Lodewick, a widow, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Cora Lodewick.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public July 19, 1.288.

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 062020 are also set forth opposite the signature of De Kalb Agricultural Association. Inc.

T. 11 S., R. 27 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 7, NET

Sec. 18, Lots 2, 3, SE4NW4, NEASWA

n ll

By

Kalb Agricul-President 'of tural Association, Inc. as their Attorney-in-fact

Address: 200 South Penn Avenue Roswell, New Mexico.

day of Executed this / 1946.

stem Nilum Witnesses:

STATE OF SS. KOR a Oo COUNTY OF

On this _____ day of _____ 1946, before me person-Rude, _____ President of De Kalb ally appeared ally appeared Agricultural Association, Inc. to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Lillian Coll and M. W. Coll, her husband, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Lillian Coll and M. W. Coll.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public My commission expires: July 1918

Las Cruces 063687 T. 10 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. N. 1110 Sec. 34, SSASE4 Hukle her husband OK. CEH XIERCEX AGAX RECEXCE Claronce L. 40 containing 20 acres, more or less. Address: Box 614, Las Cruces 062020 Reswell, New Mexico. T. 11 S., R. 27 E., N. M. P. M. Sec. 18, Lots 1, 4, HEANNA Executed: this Star day of SE4SW4 1946. containing 149,30 acres, more or less. Witnesses: Mule STATE OF NEW MEXIC SS. COUNTY OF CHAVES ., 1946, before me personally On this Sth day of August appeared <u>1.1111an T. Hinkle and husband Clarence E. Minkle</u> to me known to be the persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that the yexecuted the same as Their free act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Nctary Fuclio

ŝ

Life the gal

My commission expires: Actober 3, 1949

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 062020 are also set forth opposite the signature of Clarence E. Hinkle

T. 11 S., R. 27 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 18, Lots 1, 4, $NE_4^1NW_4^1$, SE $_4^1SW_4^1$

husband By Clarence E. Hinkle. their Actorney-83 in-fact

Address: 200 South Penn Avenue Roswell, New Mexico.

Executed this zeed day of

, 1946. Witnesses:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

) SS.

On this 2 day of <u>(11. 41.07</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared CLARENCE E. HINKLE, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Lillian Coll and M. W. Coll, her husband, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Lillian Coll and M. W. Coll.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

My commission expires: 16 Tale 9 3 19 49

Las Cruces 063540

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M.

Seo. 14, N2N3

containing 160 acres, more or less.

Lodewic

Address: 305 North Missouri Ave.,

Roswell, New Mexico.

Executed this lat day of

1946. August

Witnesses

STATE OF COUNTY OF

SS

On this 121 day of huganet , 1946, before me per-

sonally appeared S. W. Lodewick and wife, Laura Lodewick

to me known to be the person⁸ described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that the y exocuted the same as their free act and deeds

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written,

Notary Public

My commission expires: actober 3, 1949

Las Cruces 062042

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M.

Sco. 25, NE4

containing 160 acres, more or less.

1]. H. P. Saunders minue Jimmie Saunders, his

£

Address: Roswell, New Mexico

Executed this 14th day of

, 1946. August

Witnessesı

75

STATE	OF	NEW	MEXICO)
COUNTY	OF	CHA	VES) 55

S .

On this 14th day of <u>August</u> Jr. , 1946, before me personally appeared H. P. Saunders/and wife, Jimmie Saunders to me known to be the person 8 described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate writton.

Notary Public

My commission expires: October 3, 1949

free act and deed.

The following Lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 0620h2 are also set forth opposite the signature of H. P. Saunders

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 25, NE4

L. 7 es Cora Lodewick, a wie

8 - 4

By H. P. Saunders, as her Attorney

in-fact Jr.

Address: 305 North Missouri Avenue Roswell, New Mexico.

Executed this 14th day of

August , 1946.

Harris Witnesses:

STATE OF NEW MEXICO)
) SS.
COUNTY OF CHAVES)

On this 14th day of August , 1946, before me personally appeared H. P. SAUNDERS, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Cora Lodewick, a widow, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Cora Lodewick.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

My commission expires: October 3, 1949

1

W. C. Lawrence and a single ma Las Cruces 062043 a. T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M. Sec. 26, ENW Art 41.3

containing 80 acres, more or less.)

Address: Rosusel N.M.

Executed this Ist day of

Witnessessi HeuryShow Mul Brown

STATE OF	\$\$.
COUNTY OF CHAVES	
On this 1st day of August	1946, before me personally
W G. Lawrence, a bach	elor and a single man
to me known to be the person description of the going instrument, and acknowledged the	at he executed the same as
free act and decur	hand and affixed my
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here official seal the day and year in th	eunto set my hand and affixed my is certificate written.
	Notary Public

My commission expires: October 3, 1949

The following lands under Serial Number Las Cruces 062043 are also set forth opposite the signature of W. C. Lawrence

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M.

Sec. 26, EINWA

B -In-C Lawrence, their Attorn 83 fact

Address: 305 North Missouri Avenue Roswell, New Mexico.

Executed this / iay of

1946.

Witnesses: had

STATE OF SS. COUNTY OF

On this 19 day of 1946, before me personally appeared W. C. LAWRENCE, to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument in behalf of Laura Lodewick and S. W. Lodewick, her husband, and acknowledged that he executed the same as the free act and deed of said Laura Lodewick and S. W. Lodewick.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

1949

Notary Public

My commission expires: (states) 3.

4 Cartes Stato Leaso No. B-10516-10 T. 10 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M. his wife Sec. 32, EESE4. containing 80 acres, more or 4237 Hollistor Avonuo, Santa Barbara, California. Addrossi 1088. Excouted this 13th day of , 1946. September Tittac

6

SS. CALIFORNIA 1946, before me personally STATE OF SANTA BARBARA COUNTY OF September to mo known to be the persons described in and who exceuted the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they exceuted the same as their free act and deed. On this 13th day of ERIEST N. CARTER and RUBY I. CARTER, his wife. IN HITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto sot my hand and affixed my official soal the day and year in this cortificate written appeared aot and dood.

Ny commission explates a sission Expires October 23. 1949

State Lease No. B-7282-25

T. 10 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M.,

Sco. 32, NETSTA

containing 40 acres, more or less.

Fred U willo L. Bohrondt Ma The Addross: 1154 East 20th Street Long Beach, California, Executed this 30 th day of lugust > 1946. Witnessos Van OUVER

STATE OF <u>California</u> COUNTY OF <u>Les Angeles</u> SS.

30th day of <u>August</u>, 1946, before no personally On this appoared Fred A. Behrendt and Mirtle L. Behrendt, his wife

to me known to bo the person Second in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they exceuted the same as their free act and deed.

IN VI TNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto sot my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Frank Hoover Notary Public

My commission expires: Sent 5-19

NOTARY I CHERCERED for the County of Los Angenes, State of California.

State Lease No. B-8023-5

T. 10 S., R. 26 B., N. M. P. M.,

Sec. 32, 51:251:2,

containing 40 acres, more or loss.

Hellie E K		
Hottio E	Rogors,	
Ralist D. Roy	Rogors	
Celeste W.	Rogers.	his wif

Address: 4616 Oakwood Avenue,

Los Angeles, California.

Executed this 12th day of

September , 1946.

Witnessos:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ss. COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

appeared HETTIN E. ROGERS, a vidow, JOHN M. ROGERS & CELESTE D. POWERS his wife,

to me known to be the persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

IN HITNESS HEREOF, I have herounto sot my hand and affixed my official scal the day and year in this certificate writton.

Oris Man Haorhis Notary Publio

My commission expires : My Commission Expires February 3. 1950

Stato Loaso No. B-8850-14

T. 10 S., R. 26 E.,

Soc. 34, STIZSTIZ,

containing 40 acros, more or loss.

borge Addross: 3204 West 79th Stroot, Inglowood, California. Excouted this 27 day of lunis 1946. Withossos:

STATE OF 68. COUNTY OF J

On this <u>19</u> day of <u>lingust</u>, 1946, bofore no porsonally appeared <u>Linge E. Schultz and Clara K. Schultz his wife</u>, to no known to be the persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have horounto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this cortificate written.

Doris Van Voorhis Notary Public

My commission expires My Commission Expires February 3. 1950

State Lease No. B=10517-3) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M.	Alleung Raine
Sec. 2, NEISTII, SISTII, Sec. 3, SISSII, Sec. 10, NI NEI,	H. Rummol Anderson Anne D. anderson
containing 280 acres, more or loss.	Address: 35 Calle Claravista,
	Tucson, Arizona
	Excouted this 15 day of
), 1946.
	Witnessos:
	Patharine F. Wienhant
	Marine J. Merchand
STATE OF	
COUNTY OF PERA	SS.
On this 15th day of September	
Y. Wester .	, 1946, before me personally a. ANDERSON, his vice
to me known to be the porson described instrument, and acknowledged that he act and doed.	in and who executed the foregoing executed the same as free free
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have heroun official boal the day and year in this	to sot my hand and affixod my cortificate written.
	Motary Public
My commission expires: March 13, 1950	-

۴.

Stato Lease No. B-8463 T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M.

800. 16, NELIEL,

containing 40 acros, more or 1088.

HONOLULU OIL CORPORATION, By in tory By 215 Market Street. San Francisco, California. Address: Excouted this 13 day of , 1946. SEP Witnessos: No

yet.

CALIFORNIA \$5. STATE OF On this 13th. day of September, 1946, before no personally CITY AND COUNTY OF appeared U. P. Noth to mo personally known, who, boing by me duly sworn did say that he is the me President of the HONOLULU OIL CORPORATION, and that the scal affixed to the foregoing instant Who, buing up me auty sworn all say that no 18 the freshaent of the HONOLULN OIL CORPORATION, and that the soal affixed to the foregoing instru-NUNULULW ULL UURFURBILUN, and THAT THE SUAL ATTIXED to THO FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS mont is the corporate seal of said corporation and that said instrument was monte is the corporate seul of suid corporation and that said instrument was signed and sealed in bohalf, of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors, and said <u>lice. President</u> acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said corporation instrument to be the free act and doed of said corporation. IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have horounto set my hand and affixed my official scal on this the day and year first above written. Ala Ort Killy Notary Public H

My commission expires: December 23 1948

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. H.,

Sec. 4, Lot 1,

containing 5.63 acres, more or less.

VIIO Ma 24 Address Executed this / day of X 1946.

Witnesses: ton

en la STATE OF 85. COUNTY OF tra ker sten day of , 1946, before mu porgonally On th and artilly Greenwood ί the 7000 appeared 100

his wife, to no known to be the person 5 described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as there free act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

By commission expires, (ct. 3, 1949

بالمرجع المحرب الأن

T. 11 S., R. 27 E., N. M. P. M.,

Sec. 6, Lot 2,

Y 3

containing 6.58 acres, more or less.

and H. Rice. vire June H. Rice, Ms mell Address: ٥ TODe Executed this day of 1946. Witnosses: 12 W

Kaytum 718 Tries

Rayburn H. Rice

his with

one STATE OF SS. \circ COUNTY OF ĺv 1946, before me personally day of X On this

appeared to no known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as them free act and deed. act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public My commission expires

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. H.,

Sec. 2, NEASEA,

containing 40 acres, more or less. 114

CITIES SERVICE OIL COMPANY By ĺn Secrebery

Address: Bartlesville, Oklahoma.

Executed this _11th day of

September , 1946.

Witnesses:

arlen Chase

STATE OF OKLAHOMA COUNTY OF WASHINGTON) ss

On this the <u>11</u> day of September, 1946, personally appeared J. C. Kennedy to me personally known, who being by me duly sworn did say that he is the Attorney-in-Fact of Cities Service Oil Company and that said instru-ment was signed in behalf of said componation by authonity of its board of ment was signed in behalf of said corporation by authority of its board of directors, and said J. C. Kennedy acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of said corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate above written.

Ly commission expires

Notary Public

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N.M.P.M.,

Sec. 2, NEISEZ,

containing 40 acres, more or less, as to an undivided 1/2 in the leasehold interest therein.

A COM	
Ву	1 acles
Dana B. Relies	President
	MANS
By	
A. D. BATTUS	Secretary
Ø	
Address:	A
and	anoma
	and a state of the second s
Executed this 15	day of
Keptembe	<u>v</u> , 1946.
- and the set	interest and a second s
Ŧ	
Witnesses:	
Witnesses:	0
Witnesses:	iname
Witnesses:	ingino
Witnesses:	izimo

REPOLLO OIL COMPANY

STATE OF SS. COUNTY OF

. On this 18 day of <u>Metherniker</u>, 1946, before me personally

appeared <u>Maas M Relsey</u>, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn aid say that he is the <u>V(C &</u> President of REPOLLO OIL COMPANY, and that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of said corporation and that said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors, and said <u>Dava H. Kelsey</u> ment to be the free act and deed of said corporation.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal on this the day and year first above written.

Notary Public B.W. KNOPP

My commission expires: MY COMMISSION EXPIRES AUGUST 22. 1948

T. 11 S., R. 26 E.,

Sec. 34, N¹₂SW¹₄,

containing 80 acres, more or less.

Inso far as authority extende STATE OF NEW MEXICO By

Address: Santa Fe, New Mexico.

Executed this 22 day of , 1946. temper

Witnesses:

Las Cruces 063687	VALLEY REFINING COMPANY
T. 10 S., R. 26 E., N. H. P. H., Sec. 35, SW15W1,) By President
containing 40 acres, more or less.) By Secretary
)) Address: Roswell, New Mexico.)
) Executed this day or), 1946.
	Witnesses:
STATE OF) STATE OF) STATE OF) STATE OF) STATE OF) STATE OF)) SS.
	, 1946, before me personally
appeared being by me duly sworn did say that I REFINING COMPANY, and that the seal a is the corporate seal of said corpora	, to me personally known, who, ne is the President of VALLEY affixed to the foregoing instrument ation and that said instrument was corporation by authority of its Board acknowledged

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal on this the day and year first above written.

Notary Public

lao Onu	
Las Cruces 063850	
T. 11 S., R. 25 E., N. M. P. M.) BARNSDALL OIL COMPANY
Sec. 1, lot 4,) By
•) President
containing 40.18 acres, more or less.)
) By
	Secretary
	Address: Tulsa, Oklahom
) Address: Tulsa, Oklahoma
	ί.
) Executed this day of
), 1946.
)
f	Tare a.
Į	Witnesses:
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
STATE OF	
)	
)	
On this day of	
appeared	, 1946, before me personally
appeared who, being by me duly sworn did say that the BARNSDALL OIL COMPANY, and that the s instrument is the corporate seal of paid	to me pomon as
the BARNSDALL OIL COMPANY, and that the sinstrument is the corporate seal of said instrument was signed and sealed in behal authority of its Board of Directors	he is the President of
instrument was signed and seal of said	corporation to the foregoing
The Board of Date in Denal	I of eath and in mildy said
deed of said corporation.	said polacion by
The port portion,	said ent to be the free act and
official and	
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto a official seal on this the day and year fir	set my hand and affixed my
official seal on this the day and year fir	at above written.
	•
	10-1-1-
Commission emi-	Notary Public
The state of the second	

ssion expires:

Las Cruces 063876	\rangle
T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M.,	
Sec. 33, Lots 1, 2, WHEL, NELNEL,	Lorens F; Wilhite
containing 133.70 acres, more or less.	Address:
) Executed this day of), 1946.
)) Witnesses:)
	}
•)
STATE OF) > SS.
On this day of	
appeared to me known to be the person describ- instrument, and acknowledged that he act and deed.	ed in and who executed the foregoing executed the same as free

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

State Lease No. E-107	
T. 10 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M.,	
Sec. 34, SEASTIA, STASEA,	LaDora Lucas
containing 80 acros, more or less.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Addross: Roswoll,
	Now Mexico.
	Exocuted this day of, 1946.
	Witnossos:
)
STATE OF)) SS.
COUNTY OF	
On this day of,]	1946, boforo me porsonally appeared
to me known to be the person describe instrument, and acknowledged that he act and deed.	

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have herounto sot my hand and affixed my official soal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

My commission oxpires:

. .

Stato Loaso No. B=8716-15	
T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M.,	
Sec. 2, Sii_4SE_4 ,	Alexandor Soules
containing 40 acros, more or	
1050.	
	Maltor M. Soules
	Addross: 743 Santoe Street,
	Los Angeles, California.
) Executed this day of
	, 1946.
) Witnesses:
	/
· · · · ·	
SUP US	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
STATE OF	SS.
COUNTY OF)
On this day of	, 1946, before me personally
appeared	

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same as _____ free act and deed.

IN ...ITNESS .. HEREOF, I have horeunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this cortificate writton.

Notary Public

T. 11 S., R. 25 E., N. M. P.	е Мер
------------------------------	-------

Sec. 1, WASWA,	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Sec. 2, ESSE	J. D. Zimmerman
Sec. 11, NELNEL,	
containing 200 acres, more or less.	Address:
	Executed this day of, 1946.
) Witnesses:
	}
STATE OF	85.
On this day of	, 1946, before me personally

appeared

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same as free act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

T.	11	Seg	R.	25	Ε.,	N.	М.	\mathbf{P}_{\bullet}	Mi,	
----	----	-----	----	----	-----	----	----	------------------------	-----	--

Seo. 13, SVI14:

containing 160 acres, more or less.

)) Address:)))	o/o.N. H. Bruchney, Ath 1903 this Building Tolate ty Oth
)) Executed	this day of
{	. 1946.
Witnesses	31
}	

.....

÷.

				• *
STATE OF)		
COUNTY OF) SS.		¢
On this	day of		, 1946, before	me personally
appeared				

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same as free act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official scal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

T. 11 S., R. 25 E., N. M. P. M.,) GULF OIL CORPORATION
Sec. 14, E ¹ SE ¹ ,	/)) By
Sec. 23, ENE,) President
Sec. 24, NW_4^2 ,	By
containing 320 acres, more or less.) Secretary))
) Address: Tulsa, Oklahoma.
)) \
	Executed this day of
	, 1946.
•	
)) Witnesses: }
χ., .α.	
	/ /
	/ }
)
STATE OF)	
COUNTY OF	SS.
On this day of	, 1946, before me personally
appeared being by me duly sworn did say that h GULF OIL CORPORATION, and that the se ment is the corporate seal of said co was signed and sealed in behalf of sa Board of Directors, and said said instrument to be the free act an	al affixed to the foregoing instru- rporation and that said instrument id corporation by authority of its acknowledged
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereu official seal on this the day and yea	nto set my hand and affixed my r first above written.

My commission expires:

Notary Public

T. 11 S., R. 25 E., N. M. P. M.,	
Sec. 24, NWANEA, containing 40 acres, more or less.	C. A. Ward
) Address: A P. O. Due 187
	} Requell, Num Murice
)) Executed this day of
))))
)) Witnesses:)
STATE OF)	
COUNTY OF) St	5.
On this day of	, 1946, before me personally
appeared	
to me known to be the person describe instrument, and acknowledged that he act and deed.	ed in and who executed the foregoing e_executed the same as free
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereur official seal the day and year in this	nto set my hand and affixed my scertificate written.

Notary Public

T. 11 S., R. 25 E., N. M. P. M.,	
Sec. 25, SWANEL,	
) containing 40 acros, more or less.)	
ý	
a de la companya de l	
5	and and a stand a stand and a stand and a stand a stand I Stand a stand
)	
)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Address:
Į	
ξ.	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
)	Executed this day of
)	, 1946.
	Witnesses:
Ś	
) 	
STATE OF	
STATE OF > COUNTY OF >	SS.
	, 1946, before me personally
appeared	**************************************

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same as free act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M.,

Sec. 27, Wing, SELSW1,

none mis uzust prénuét	Andrew J. Couto
containing 200 acres, more or less.	}
	<
)
	<u></u>
	`
	<u>۲</u>
	}
	Address: 4/0 Joe A. Coubs
	State Land Office
) <u>Seate Po, Herr Mectico</u>
	(
	\$
	Executed this day of
	, 1946.
	/ Witnesses:
	}
	3
STATE OF	2
COUNTY OF	SS.
UN THIS day of	, 1946, before me personally

)

appeared

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he executed the same as _____ free act and deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M., Sec. 33, $SE_{4}^{1}NE_{4}^{1}$))) Francis Leonard Richards
Sec. 34, $N_{2}^{1}NN_{4}^{1}$, $SN_{2}^{1}NN_{2}^{1}$,))
containing 160 acres, more or less.)
) Address:
	<pre> Executed this day of , 1946. </pre>
	<pre>> Witnesses: > Witnesses:</pre>
	<pre></pre>
	3
STATE OF	SS.
COUNTY OF)	
On this day of	, 1946, before me personally
	, 1740, before me personally
to me known to be the person describ instrument, and acknowledged that he act and deed.	ed in and who executed the foregoing executed the same as free
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereu official seal the day and year in thi	

Notary Public

Com. 9-18-46

T. 11 S., R. 25 E.,	
Sec. 13, SE $\frac{1}{4}$, Sec. 14, NE $\frac{1}{4}$, Sec. 24, NE $\frac{1}{4}$, S $\frac{1}{2}$ NE $\frac{1}{4}$, SE $\frac{1}{4}$, Sec. 25, E $\frac{1}{2}$ NE $\frac{1}{4}$, NE $\frac{1}{4}$ SE $\frac{1}{4}$.	C. M. Barr
T. 11 S., R. 26 E.,	
Sec. 21, W2SE2,) Sec. 28, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, W2NE2.)	Address: Peoples National Bank Bldg., Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.
containing 787.84 acres, more or less) as to an undivided 6.25% interest) therein.	Executed this day of
	, 1946.
	Witnesses:
) 	
ι	
)))	
	S.
COUNTY OF)	
On this day of	, 1946, before me personally
appeared	,
to me known to be the person_describe instrument, and acknowledged that he act and deed.	
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereun	to set my hand and affixed my official

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public

Com. 9-18-46

~	
T. 11 S., R. 25 E.,)
Sec. 13, SEA, Sec. 14, NFANEA, Sec. 24, NEANEA, SANEA, SEA, Sec. 25, EANEA, NEASEA,	A. W. Wilson
T. 11 S., R. 26 E.,	<pre>}</pre>
Sec. 21, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, W2SE2, Sec. 28, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, W2NE2.) Address:
containing 813.44 acres, more or less, as to an undivided 2.57% interest therein.	<pre> Executed this day of, 1946. Witnesses:</pre>
STATE OF) SS	
COUNTY OF) 55	
On this day of	, 1946, before me personally
appeared	,
to me known to be the person_describ instrument, and acknowledged that _he act and deed.	ed in and who executed the foregoing executed the same as free

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate written.

Notary Public
Com. 9-18-46

T.	11	8	R.	25	Ε.,
	aller alle	Ve e	11.	62	D • •

T. 11 S., R. 26 E.

T. 11 6., R. 25 E.,)
Sec. 13, SE $\frac{1}{4}$, Sec. 14, NEANEA, SANEA, SE $\frac{1}{4}$, Sec. 24, NEANEA, SANEA, SE $\frac{1}{4}$, Sec. 25, ENEA, NEASEA.	R. R. Culbertson
T. 11 S., R. 26 E., Sec. 21, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, WESE, Sec. 28, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, WENE,)) Address: Maud, Oklahoma.)
containing 813.111 acres, more or less, as to an undivided 2.68% interest therein.) Executed this day of, 1946.
	Witnesses:
STATE OF SS	3.
On this day of	, 1946, before me personally
to me known to be the person describe instrument, and acknowledged that he act and deed. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereun official seal the day and year in this	executed the same as free

by commission expires:

Notary Public

EXHIBIT "B"

SCHEDULE SHOWING THE NATURE AND EXTENT OF OWNERSHIP OF OIL AND GAS RIGHTS IN ALL LAND IN THE UNIT AREA TO WHICH THE FOREGOING UNIT AGREEMENT WILL BECOME APPLICABLE BY SIGNATURE THERETO, OR TO A COUNTERPART THEREOF, BY THE OWNERS OF SUCH RIGHTS.

FEDERAL LANDS

	ويواسم سترسيب المرجب فيستكروا المتر		
Description	No. of Acres	Las Cruces Serial No.	Ownership of Application or Oil and Gas Lease
New Mexico Principal Meridia	n		
T. 10 S., R. 26 E.			
Section 31 Lots 3 and 4, ESW, and SE	320 . 38	062044	Bess V. Ballard
Section 33 Sż	320	062044	Bess V. Ballard
Section 34 SE4SE4	40	06368 7	Lillian T. Hinkle
Section 35 SW 1 SW1	40	063687	Lillian T. Hinkle
T. 11 S., R. 25 E.	•		
Section 1 Lots 1, 2, 3, $SE_{4}^{1}NW_{4}^{1}$, $S_{2}^{1}NE_{4}^{1}$, $E_{2}^{1}SE_{4}^{1}$	320.22	061461	S. W. Lodewick
Lot 4	40.18	063850	Frank E. Wimberly
Section 11 SEANEA	40	Q63854	Margaret W. Childress
Section 12 BENE ¹ /4	80	062045	Bert Ballard
Sźnwą, neąswą, neąseą	160	064119	Ola Wimberly
T. 11 S., R. 26 E.			
Section 1 Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4	23,79	061517	Virginia Shaw
Sz	320	062042	Cora Lodewick
Section 3 Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4	24.64	061461	S. W. Lodewick
Nasea	80	062044	Bess V. Ballard
SW ¹	160	062043	Laura Lodewick

1.

BXHIBLT B

Description	No. of Aores	Las Cruces Sorial No.	Ownership of Application or Oil and Gas Lease
T. 11 S., R. 26 E. (continued)		1847 - 1847 - 19
Section 4 Lots 2, 3, 4, and 5, SE	1 171	061461	S. W. Lodewick
Section 9 Lots 1 and 2	7,65	061461	S. W. Lodewick
Lots 3 and 4	8.15	084651	Laura Lodewick
manet	40	062042	Cora Lodewick
NETNET, SENET, SET	280	026468	S. W. Lodewick and S. P. Johnson, Jr.
Section 10 Save $\frac{1}{4}$	80	06 20 44	Bess V. Ballard
NTA	160	062043	Laura Lodewick
SW2, W2SE2, SE2SE2	280	026468	S. W. Lodewick and S. P. Johnson, Jr.
ne l se l	40	062042	Cora Lodewick
Section 11	160	062044	Bess V. Ballard
L法,STV社	480	063540	S. W. Lodewick
Section 12 All	640	062042	Cora Lodewick
Section 13 All	640	062042	Cora Lodewick
Section 14 NaNa	160	063540	S. W. Lodewick
sana, sa	480	062043	Laura Lodewick
Section 15 NaNEZ	80	026468	S. W. Lodewick and S. P. Johnson, Jr.
sznez, sez	240	062042	Cora Lodewick
Pfg	320	029 232	S. W. Lodewick
Section 22 All	640	062043	Laura Lodewick
Section 23 All	640	062043	Laura Lodewick
Section 24 All	640	062044	Bess V. Ballard

De	acription	No. of Acres	Las Cruces Serial No.	Ownership of Application or Oil and Gas Lense
<u>T.</u>	11 S., R. 26 E. (continued)			
	Section 25 N2, SW1	480	062042	Cora Lodewick
1	Suction 26 Ez, EzNWZ	400	062043	Laura Lodewick
	WZNWŻ, SWŻ	240	063855	James Q. Marshall
	Section 27 NB $\frac{1}{4}$, $E\frac{1}{2}NW\frac{1}{4}$, $NE\frac{1}{4}SW\frac{1}{4}$, N $\frac{1}{2}SE\frac{1}{4}$, $SE\frac{1}{4}SE\frac{1}{4}$	400	063855	James Q. Marshall
	Section 33 Lots 1 and 2, $W_2^1NE_4^1$, $NE_4^1NE_4^1$	133,70	063876	Lorene F. Wilhite
	Section 34 NE $\frac{1}{4}$, SE $\frac{1}{4}$ NW $\frac{1}{4}$, N $\frac{1}{2}$ SE $\frac{1}{4}$	280	063855	James Q. Marshall
	Section 35 Nz, NzSW1	400	063855	James Q. Marshall
<u>T.</u>	11 S., R. 27 E.			
	Section 7 Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4, $E_2^{\frac{1}{2}W_2^{\frac{1}{2}}}$, $NE_4^{\frac{1}{4}}$	460,24	062020	Lillian Coll
	Section 18 Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4, $E_2^{\frac{1}{2}W_2^{\frac{1}{2}}}$	298,60	062020	Lillian Coll
	Section 19 Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4	139,76	061266	Marion Roney, also known as Marian Roney

STATE LANDS

Description	No. of <u>Acres</u>	State Lease No. and Exp. Date	. Oil and Gas Lease Ownership
New Mexico Principal Meridian			
<u>T. 10 S., R. 25 E.</u> Section 36 $S_2^{\frac{1}{2}}SE_4^{\frac{1}{4}}$	80	E-354-2 Exp, 6-11-55	Richfield Oil Corporation 555 South Flower Street Los Angeles 13, California

Description	No. of Acres	State Lease No. and Exp. Date	Oil and Gas Lease Ownership
T. 10 S., R. 26 E.			
Section 32 EasEa	80	B-10516-10 Exp. 8-10-53	Ernest N. Carter, 4237 Hollister Ave., Santa Barbara, Calif.
गर्इडिट्रे	80	E=354=1 Exp. 6=11=55	DeKalb Agricultural Association, Inc. DeKalb, Illinois.
NE JSWZ	40	B=7282=25 Exp. 10=28=47	Fred A. and Kytld L. Behrendt, 1154 E. 20th St., Long Beach 6, Calif.
NW JSW J SEJSW J	80	E=354=2 Exp. 6=11=55	Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif.
SW45SW4	40	8-8023-5 Exp. 2-17-49	Hettie E. and John M. Rogers, 4616 Oakwood Avonue, Los Angeles, Calif.
Section 34 SW12SW2	40	B=8850=14 Exp. 10-19=50	Geo. E. Schultz, 3204 W. 79th St., Inglewood, Calif.
SB ¹ 2SW ¹ 2, SW ¹ 2SB ¹ 2	80	E=107 Exp. 2-10=55	LaDora Lucas, Roswell, New Mexico.
T. 11 S., R. 26 E.			
Section 2			
Lots 7 and 8, $NW_{4}^{+}SE_{4}^{+}$, $SE_{4}^{+}SE_{4}^{+}$	91 . 47	E=354-1 Exp. 6-11-55	DeKalb Agricultural Association, Inc., DeKalb, Illinois.
SWIJSE?	40	B-8716-15 Exp _{\$} 6=25-50	Alexander Soules and Walter M. Soules, 743 Santee Street, Los Angeles, Calif.
NE ¹ ₄ SW ¹ ₄ , S ¹ ₂ SN ¹ ₄	120	B=10517=3 Exp ₀ 8=10=53	H. Rummel Anderson, 35 Calle Claravista, Tucson, Arizona.
Lots 5 and 6, $N7/\frac{1}{4}SV/\frac{1}{4}$	51.93	E-354-2 Exp. 6-11-55	Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif.
Section 3 S 25 E 4	80	B-10517-3 Exp. 8-10-53	H. Rummel Anderson, 35 Calle Claravista, Tucson, Arizona.
Section 10 NaNE $\frac{1}{4}$	80	B=10517=3 Exp. 8=10=53	H. Rummel Anderson, 35 Callo Claravista, Tucson, Arizona

.....

4.

Com Rev. Exhibit B 9-17-46

÷

Description	No. of Acres	State Lease No. And Exp. Date	Oil and Gas Lease Ownership
T. 11 S., R. 26 E. (continu	ed)		
Section 16 NEINEI	40	B-8463 Exp. 1-8-50	Honolulu Oil Corp., 215 Market Street, San Francisco, Calif.
Lot 1, NWINEI	ЦЦ • 38	E-848 Exp. 5-10-56	Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif
Lots 2, 3, and 4, S ¹ 2NE ¹ 4, SE ¹ 4	255.22	E-958 Exp. 8-10-56	Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif (in Bottomless Lakes State Monument)
Sectida 21 EžNE4, NE4SE4	120	E-958 Exp. 8-10-56	Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif (in Bottomless Lakes State Monument)
Section 27 SW4SE4	40	E-958 Exp. 8-10-56	Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif (in Bottomless Lakes State Monument)
Section 34 N ¹ ₂ SW ¹ ₄ T. 11 S., R. 27 E.	80		State of New Mexico (1/8 State Lands Commissioner) (7/8 Science Com- mission)
ection 6			
Lot 1, $SE_{\frac{1}{4}}$	166.70	B-8443-3 Exp. 12-12-49	Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif
Lots 3, 4, 5, and 6, $E_{2}^{1}SW_{4}^{2}$	164.06	в-8443-2 Ехр. 12-12-49	DeKalb Agricultural Association, Inc. DeKalb, Illinois.
1	PRIVATELY	OWNED LANDS	
Description	No. of Acres	Landowner	Oil and Oas Lessee
New Mexico Principal Meridia	an		
T. 11 S., R. 25 E.			
Section 1 W2SE4, E2SW4	160	Clara Goodart Rt 1, Box 185 Roswell, N. Mex.	DeKalò Agricultural Association, Inc., DeMalb, Illinois

1

Description	No. of Acres	Landowner	Oil and Gas Lessee
T. 11 S., R. 25 E. (continue	ed)		
Section 1 (continued)			
WZSWZ	80	J. D. Zimmerman Mt. Carmel, Ill.	•
sw 1 nw1	40	D. R. Britt, Jr. Roswell, N. Mex.	DeKalb Agricultural Association, Inc., DeKalb, Illinois.
Section 2 $E_2^{1}SE_4^{1}$	80	J. D. Zimmerman Mt. Carmel, Ill.	
Section 11 NEINEI	40	J. D. Zimmerman Mt. Carmel, Ill.	
E2SE4	80	D. R. Britt, Jr. Roswell, N. Mex.	BeKalb Agricultural Association, Inc., DeKalb, Illinois
Section 12 $W_{2NE_4}^1$, N_{2}^1 , W_4^1 , W_2^2 S W_4^1 , SE4SW4, W_2^2 SE4, SE4SE4	400	D. R. Britt, Jr. Roswell, N. Mex.	DeKalb Agricultural Association, Inc., DeKalb, Illinois
Section 13 N 2	320	D. R. Britt, Jr. Roswell, N. Mex.	DeKalb Agricultural Association, Inc., DeKalb, Illinois
SWI	160	Helen Chittenden McBride c/o W. H. Brackne 1903 Ohio Buildir Toledo 4, Ohio	
SE ¹ /4	160	Charles M. Sawey, R.R.Culbertson, A.W.Wilson, C.M.Barr, and A.W.Hockenhull	Sr., Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif., covering an undivided 88.4% interest therein.
Section 14 NE ¹ 4NE ¹ 4	ĻО	Charles M. Sawey, R.R.Culbertson, A.W.Wilson, C.M.Barr, and A.W.Hockenhull	Sr., Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif., covering an undivided 88.4% interest therein.
SE ¹ / ₄ NE ¹ / ₄	40	Charles M.Sawey,S Roswell, N. Mex.	Sr., Richfield Oil Corp., 555 So. Flower St., Los Angeles 13,Calif.
e l se l	80	Paul King	Gulf Oil Corporation P. O. Box 787 Roswell, New Mexico

6.

Com Rev. Exhibit B 9-17-46

Description	No. of Acres	Landowner	Oil and Gas Lessee
T. 11 S., R. 25 E. (continue	ed)		
Section 23 Elnel	80	Paul King	Gulf Oil Corporation P. O. Box 787 Roswell, New Maxico
Section 24 NEINEI, SINEI, SEI	280	Charles M.Sawey,Sr R.R.Culbertson, A.W.Wilson, C.H.Barr, and A.W.Wockenhull	Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif., covering an undivided 88.4% interest therein.
NM\$NE\$	ЦO	Walter C.Lindley	C. A. Ward P. O. Box 457 Blackwell, Oklahoma
₩¥	160	Paul King	Gulf Oil Corporation P. O. Box 787 Roswell, New Mexico
SW	160	Christian Juelfs 616 SW Avenue Mexico, Missouri	Richfield Oil Corp. 555 South Flower St. Los Angeles 13, Calif.
Section 25 Eanea, neasea	120	Charles M.Sawey,S R.R.Culbertson, A.W.Wilson, C.M.Barr, and A.W.Hockenhull	Richfield Oil Corp. 555 South Flower St. Los Angeles 13, Calif., covering an undivided 88.4% interest therein.
nwinei, neinni	80	Christian Juelfs 616 SW Avenue Mexico, Missouri	Richfield Oil Corp. 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif.
SW4NE4	40	Ownership not det minable at presen	
T. 11 S., R. 26 E.			
Section 2 NEZSEZ	цo	Rayburn F.H. Rice Roswell, N. Mex.	Cities Service Oil Co. Bartlesville, Okla. and Repollo Oil Company Tulsa, Oklahoma (Jointly)
Section 4 Lot 1	5.63	Orvel Greenwood Box 245 Roswell, N. Mex.	

Com Rev. Exhibit B 9-17-46

Description	No. of Acres	Landowner	Oil and Gas Lessee
T. 11 S., R. 26 E. (c	-		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Section 21 Lots 1, 2, 3, an	dl 25.60	Charles M.Sawey,S R.R.Culbertson, A.W.Wilson, and A.W.Hockenhull,	Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif., covering an undivided 94.6% interest therein.
Wasea	80	Charles M.Sawey,S R.R.Culbertson, A.W.Wilson C.M.Barr, and A.W.Hockenhull	r., Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif., covering an undivided 88.4% interest therein.
SE 1 SE1	40		r. Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif.
WZNEZ	80	Richfield Oil Cor 555 South Flower : Los Angeles 13, C	Št.,
Section 27			-
WZWZ, SEZSWZ	500	Andrew J. Combs c/o Joe A. Combs State Land Office Santa Fe, N. Mex.	
Section 28			
Lots 1, 2, 3, an W2NE4	id 4, 107.84	Charles M.Sawey,S R.R.Culbertson, A.W.Wilson C.M.Barr, and A.W.Hockenhull	r., Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13, Calif., covering an undivided 88.4% interest therein.
SE_4^1	160	Charles M.Sawey,S Roswell, N. Mex.	r., Richfield Oil Corp., 555 South Flower St., Los Angeles 13,Calif.
E≹NE‡	80	Richfield Oil Cor 555 South Flower S Los Angeles 13, Ca	St.,
Section 33			
seanea	40	Francis Leonard R. et al., Lovingto	
Section 34 Nanua, Swanwa	120	Francis Leonard R et al., Lovingto	-
<u>T. 11 S., R. 27 E.</u>			
Section 6 Lot 2	6.58	Rayburn F.H. Rice Roswell, N. Mex.	
TOTAL		icrea	

16,907.72 8.

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that-all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated: 3-1-46 , 1946.

Witness:

2U. Colloro Boss V. Bal

Address; Bert Ballard , her husband

Rosedly Hew Mexico

STATE OF <u>New Medico</u> SS COUNTY OF Chaves

On this <u>fail</u> day of <u>dargers</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared **New 7. Bileri and hert Bileri, her includ** to me known to be the person[®] described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that <u>they</u> executed the same as <u>theor</u> free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public an

My commission expires:

lotohen? 949

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves Courity, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production the reof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofor entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and anended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

8-1-46 Dated:

Witness:

S. V. Lodeniok

1946 -

Address: Sol Konrth Liteour 1 Avanue

INMALL, HAW HAXLOO

STAT E OF - Maria) SS COUN TY OF

On this <u>and</u> day of <u>descriped</u>, 1946, before no personally appeared <u>solutions and under the solution of the solution</u> to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that <u>the</u> executed the same as <u>the</u> free act and dee d.

Witness my hand and of ficial seal the day and year last above written.

Nota ry Public

(Catorhere) 3 19 49

ky comis sion expires;

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Commone Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Nexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Nexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or Interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our moyalty interests, or other interests the rein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit a greement and committing said leases, contracts and lands there to, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, sub scribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated : ______ 2 2, 1946.

Witness:

aa

1!

Hoya Childress, her Liusband Address : olo "The FL rot Hestiones Banke

Home all, Lion Home too

STATE OF New Mex) SS COUNTY OF Charles On this 22 day of anna ,1946, before me personally appeared Mugnet W. Childrens and Flayd Childrens, her

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

IJ.

6 . S.

My commission expires: ct. 3 19×9

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Infust Dated:

Witness:

Heursche

Ola Simberly E Л÷ 11 Brank H. Winder 2018 hand Address:

Los Curro, n. my

- <u>)</u>

STATE OF New Metico, COUNTY OF Cherrels ss

On this 29 day of August	,1946, before
me personally appeared Old Winherly	
and Tranks E Wimblely	, her husband,
to me known to be the person? described in and who exe	1 //
instrument, and acknowledged that they executed th	e same as they
free act and deed.	

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires: Qt - 3 194

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated: July 3/

Witness:

Vinginia Bhan sok Uhes, her husbund 1106 West Main Str Address:

Artosia, New Marico

41 C-

STATE OF Ten Mayrice) COUNTY OF Eddy SS

free act and deed.

On this <u>3</u>, day of <u>July</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared **Vinginia Show and Jack Show, her instrud** to me known to be the person**e** described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that <u>ther</u> executed the same as <u>instr</u>

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Elsie J. Horman Notary Public

My commission expires:

June 29-1947

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in soid leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated: 8-13-46, 1946.

Witness:

Venny hans

Address: C/O S. S. L.O.Conick 300 Nor Ch LE LESCUI AVENUE Roswell ... XVGW Mestico

12-10-

STATE OF <u>Ment Produces</u>) COUNTY OF <u>Cleanes</u> SS On this 13th day of Augu Cars Lot me personally appeared 4 134 ntek.

to me known to be the person_described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that ______ executed the same as _______ free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

N 16

My commission expires:

October 3, 1949

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, couracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated: _____ ligned lit 1946.

Witness:

Merle Grown Margie Caldwell

Geraldine Johnson DIS Address: elo a. A. Lixtonick J. P. Maite Bullding Boewell, New Maxico

STATE OF Man Merica)
COUNTY OF Chanes) SS

·	his wife		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
me personally appeared	S. P. Johnson, Jr.	, and Geraldine	Johnson,
On this 1	day of	"quit	,1946, before

to me known to be the person[®] described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that **they** executed the same as **their** free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

atober 3, 1949

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in cil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated: 8-14-46, 1946.

Witness:

Marsha Virelaia 0. Karshall, his wife Address O. Hor 206

Bossell, Hew Mexico

仏

STATE OF	Two menie))
COUNTY OF	Chance	SS

*

On	this 14	day of	un	ut	_,1946, before
me personally	appeared	James 4. Mar		Vinginia C.	Marghell
		his sife			
		the second s			d the foregoing

instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires: - Tober 3, 1549

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and edopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated: 8-2-46

Witness:

Henry & haws Mark Brown

To Uoll, her husband Address: 200 South Fean Avenue

1946.

Rosvell, New Mexico

STATE OF <u>Marine</u> SS

On this <u>2716</u> day of <u>Guyenst</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared **Lilling Call and N. T. Coll. her humbund**

to me known to be the person² described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that ______ executed the same as ______ free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary maa Public

+ de

My commission expires:

Cetaper 3. 12

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

, 1946. Dated:

Witness:

Merli Brown

Marion Concy Marion Ronoy, also more us Eurian Ronoy, a glagle worsen

Address: 809 North Penn Avenue

Noswell, New Mexico

STATE OF Jun Defice SS	
COUNTY OF Chanes	0. Cu., 1946, before
on this <u>3/st</u> day of	Les Alexani: as Marine Balley.
me personally appeared	in and who executed the foregoing
to me known to be the person_described instrument, and acknowledged that.	executed the same as
instrument, and acknowleds	the day and year last above
free act and Witness my hand and official	seal the day and year last above

written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Merico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applice'le to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or othe literests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated: Unpust P , 1946.

Witness:

Merle Brown

Claronae BIERLO 111107 **b1s** Address; Box 614

Homell, Han Herico

STATE OF <u>New Mexico</u>) SS COUNTY OF <u>Clauses</u> SS

and the second			Wenter a
ne personally appeared	Clarence I.	LILLING TO	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>

to me known to be the parsons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that <u>they</u> executed the same as <u>their</u> free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

ateler 3, 1949

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated: ______, 1946.

Witness:

uer la Charles M. Sever, Sr.

a single man

Address:

Roswell, New Maxico

STATE OF Meneo COUNTY OF) ss

On this 19 day of Mayral, 1946, before me personally appeared the X. Surey,

to me known to be the person_described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that _____ executed the same as ______ free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Henry-

My commission expires:

3-18-19 +7

به له م

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

luguet, 2.30 1946. Dated

Witness:

Hale Nookenhall, his wife Address:

Olovia, New Mexico

STATE OF Montan Marian	.).	
COUNTY OF Curry	_}	SS

mamie Hockenhal	l		vife.
me personally appeared <u><i>A.</i></u> <i>W. Ho</i>		R	
On this 23 A day of	august	,1946,	béfore

to me known to be the persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as they free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Č

My commission expires: My Commission Expires April 22, 1956

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and ges and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do hereby, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms thereof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest Owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands heretofore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreement, are hereby modified and amended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreements to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated: September 9 th , 1946.

Witness:

angulf als se Avenue Address:

Mexico, Missouri
STATE OF	Missouri	Ì
COUNTY OF	Audrain	SS

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above

written.

and-

My commission expires:

Narch 22nd, 1948.

ROYALTY OWNERS ! CONSENT

In consideration of the execution of the Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Coman che Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, in the form approved by the Secre tary of the Interior, the Oil Conservation Commission of the State of New Mexico, and the Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, the undersigned, owners of royalties in, or interests in oil and gas and/or production thereof in, or other interests in the leases, contracts and lands described in, committed to, and made subject to said unit agreement by the owners of working interests therein, do here by, severally, each to the extent of his particular ownership or interest in said leases, contracts and lands, approve and ratify the said and foregoing unit agreement, and join in and adopt the terms the reof as applicable to said leases, contracts and lands and our royalty interests, or other interests therein, and hereby consent to the Working Interest owners under said leases, contracts and lands becoming a party to said foregoing unit agreement and committing said leases, contracts and lands thereto, and the undersigned further agree that all leases, contracts and agreements concerning said lands hereto fore entered into by the undersigned with any of the parties approving, subscribing or consenting to said unit agreenent, are hereby modified and anended in all particulars necessary to conform said leases, contracts and agreenents to the provisions of said unit agreement.

Dated: 8-18-16, 1946 .

Witness : Hur yo havo

hayburn FIS Kie mura I. H. Rice Jun He EZIN, Addre ss:

STATE OF <u>NEW MEXICe</u>) SS COUNTY OF <u>CHAVES</u>) SS On this <u>28th</u> day of <u>August</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>Rayburn F. H. Rice and wife. Jane H. Rice</u> to me known to be the person^B described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that <u>they</u> executed the same as <u>their</u> free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

october 3, 1949

11

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number <u>Law Crucce CERO14</u>, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

> To 10 S., Ro 36 Roy N.M.P.M., Soc. 29, R. 9984, R.M.P.M., Soc. 31, All; Soc. 33, All;
> To 11 S., Ro 36 Roy Note, Patter.

> > 300. 3, MARA; Soc. 10, Gana; Soc. 11, NPA; Soc. 24, All;

and

WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION irrevocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the

+ne

interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to 'xecute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this fat day of duquet, 1946.

Geos U. Ballard

77.2

STATE OF Medice) ss COUNTY OF

On this <u>far</u> day of <u>function</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>Bees V. Ballard and Pert Pollard</u>, <u>her husband</u> to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that <u>they</u> executed the same as <u>their</u> free act and deed.

Witnf is my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

6. 1. 4. 9 4 9

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number for Grance Collect , covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit: T. 11 3., R. 20 K., N.K.-P.K.,

> 500. 1. 181. Billit, Billit; T. 11 S., R. 26 S., N.M.P.S.,

> > See. 3, Lots 1, 2, 3, and 4; See. 4, Lots 2, 3, 4, and 5, 583; See. 9, Lots 1 and 3;

and

WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPOFATION irrevocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to 'xecute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this & day of lenguet 1946.

-+ x g.

STATE OF There Man COUNTY OF Traves (ss

on this 127 day of <u>Current</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>is no Lodenick and Laura Lodenick, his wife</u>

to me known to be the person_described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that ______ executed the same as _______ free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

1. Taken 3. 1949

A.C.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number _________, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

> 300. 18, 2004; T. 10 3., R. 26 S., H.N.P.N.,

> T. 11 S., R. 25 No, Holl, P. H.,

300. 29, 33333; 300. 30, 821

and

WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION irrevocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this lat day of <u>august</u>, 1946. Berg Ballard

mener ss COUNTY OF

On this			· /		
personally appeared	Dert Ball	Land and Se	188 ¥. Agl	lard, his wi	
		6			
to me known to be the	person d	escribed in	n and who	executed th	e foregoing
instrument, and ackno	wledged th	at they	executed	the same as	thoip
free act and deed.					

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above oritten.

Notary

My commission expires:

Lev. 3, 1949

art

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number ________, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit: T. 11 S., N. 28 S., N. 2. P.N.,

300. 1, Lots 1, 8, 3, and 41

and

WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, has ' an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION irrevocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this 31.24 day of Acly , 1946. Lorginin Shaw Vinginia 3hon ach Shout

STATE OF <u>Hew Med ics</u>) SS COUNTY OF <u>Eddy</u>

On this 3, day of July, 1946, before me personally appeared Virginia show and Jack show, her backend

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Elsie J. Jornan

My commission expires;

June 29-1944

, ra

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number ________, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

> 300. 1, 31; 500. 9, 30;30;; 500. 10, 30;30;; 500. 12, All; 500. 15, 50; 9;30;;

T. 11 S., R. 26 S., N.M. P.N.,

and

WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be **made** the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPOFATION irrevocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the

My commission expires: Octuber 3+ 19.49

written.

Notary Public

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that executed the same as ber Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above free act and deed.

STATE OF Den State State State of SS On this 12 th day of _______, 1946, before me personally appeared _ Core Logenick. 9 Nice

Executed this (3th day of <u>anguet</u>, 1946. burg Lodennek, a viden agreement effective.

interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit

415

- A

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number _______, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit: 7, 11 3., N. 25 S., Mod. Pol.,

and

WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement the reon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be **made** the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPOFATION irrevocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the

interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this st day of august _, 1946. Senach

her husban

Sec.

STATE OF <u>Medice</u>) SS COUNTY OF <u>Manage</u>) SS

On this day of <u>day of the provided</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared at the said of

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that ______ executed the same as ______ free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

- R1413,11495

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number ________, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

To 11 Hoy Bo 16 Noy HollaVolley

See. 9, Lots 3 and 4;

and

• WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION irrevocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this lat day of august , 1946.

STATE OF <u>Deux Media</u> COUNTY OF <u>Olanco</u>) ss

On this day of <u>lugar</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared Laura Lodewick and S. W. Lodewick, her husband

to me known to be the persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that **they** executed the same as **their** free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

or hus band

My commission expires:

T. A. 13 1949

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number **Life Origins OSING**, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

T. 11 S., No M S., M.H.P.M.,

800. 11, 83, 802;

and

WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPOFATION irrevocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any partthereof, to the extent of the

A Mar

interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to 'xecute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this fat day of duques 1946.

Sec.

STATE OF <u>Men Medics</u>) SS COUNTY OF <u>Mense</u>

On this <u>for</u> day of <u>durant</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared **B. W. Lobartok and Laure Lotenick, his wife** to me known to be the person[®] described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that **they** executed the same as **their** free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

stahle 2

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Intertor of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number <u>Les Croses 65005</u>, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

T. 11 S., R. 38 R., N.M. Palle,

946. 20, 1927, 1923 966. 27, 182, 2022, 183,27, 183,27, 1922 968. 34, 182, 22,282, 183,27, 1923 968. 34, 182, 22,282, 193,382, 193,3 968. 35. 411; 17

and

WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPOFATION in revocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this 14 th day of <u>august</u>, 1946. James Wharshell ginia C. Marshall, his vire

STATE OF Two mexico) SS

On this 11 day of august, 1946, before me Tomos to Maraball and Vinginia C. Maraball,

personally appeared

his wife

to me known to be the person_described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as sucir free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

Cetolan 3, 19 4 9

11

work

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number <u>ine Gruece Office</u>, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

To 11 Bay Ro 87 No. NotePolloy

348. 7, 3283, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4; 345. 18, 382;

and

WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION irrevocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any partthereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this zee day of deguest 1946. Coll

R. R. Coll, her making

4 n.C

STATE OF <u>New Merics</u>) SS COUNTY OF (News) SS

On this 2. day of <u>under</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared **24114 Coll and M. W. Coll. her hubbend**

to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that **they** executed the same as **their** free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

tary Public

My commission expires:

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number _______, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

T. 11 S., R. #7 S., K.H.F.H.,

800. 19, 1992, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4) 500. 10, 592;

and

WHEREAS, RICHFIELD OIL CORPOFATION, a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of RICHFIELD OIL CORPOFATION irrevocably as their attorneyin fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any partthereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

4.94

Executed this <u>31</u> day of <u>Mar</u> 1946. Marian Sr

STATE OF <u>Man Medico</u>) SS COUNTY OF <u>Manage</u>) SS COUNTY OF

On this <i>F</i>	at day of <u>Guily</u> , 1946, before me Marina Appey, Also kanna as Marina Acces ,				
	a single vocum		د		
to me known to be th	e person_described in and	who executed the	foregoing		
instrument, and ackn	cwledged that execu	ited the same as	ber		
free act and deed.					

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written,

Notary

My commission expires:

Cetolun 3, 1949

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number **Lee Gruees 043364**, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wite **T. 11** S., R. 25 S., Made, F.M., F

301. 11, Stillig

and

WHEREAS, DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC., a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Lomanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC. irrevocably as their attorney-in-fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to exocute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this 22 day of Current, 1946.

Margantry Childress

STATE OF Rev Prices } ss On this 22 day of and, 1946, before me personally appeared ber kanband

to me known to be the person**0** described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My_commission expires: Oct. 3, 1949

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (4) Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number **ise Green UALD**, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

T. 11 S., R. 25 S., N.M. P.M.,

300.12, 30W2, M28W1, 382882;

and

WHEREAS, DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC., a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lambs to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC. irrevocably as their attorney-in-fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and dr all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this 2 day of Cufust, 1946.

Ola statesty Frank & Winhuly

STATE OF <u>Medico</u> } ss

On this 22 day of august, 1946, before me personally appeared Oly Uniterly and Frank E. Winberly her husband

to me known to be the person S described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires: Oct. 3, 1949

11

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 137), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number <u>Las Orners Office</u>, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

T. 11 S., R. 26 R., M.M. P.M.,

Sec. 0, 10, 2012, Sint, Sitt Sec. 10, SV2, WySE2, SittST2; Sec. 18, 2002;

and

WHEREAS, DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC., a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC. irrevocably as their attorney-in-fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this let day of aquet ___, 1946.

STATT. OF <u>Ment Police</u> } SS COUNTY OF <u>Chaves</u>

On this <u>for</u> day of <u>luguet</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared 3. W. Ledewick and Laura Ledewick, his wife, and <u>S. P. Johnson, Jr. and Geraldine Johnson, his wife</u>, to me known to be the person **a** described in and who executed the foregoing

instrument, and acknowledged that **they** executed the same as **their** free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary

My commission expires:

Taber 3, 19 49

ل المرب ا

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number _________, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit: To 11 S., P. 20 No.

308. 15, Hit

and

WHEREAS, DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC., a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any exacutive officer of DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC. irrevocably as their attorney-in-fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this lat day of august , 1946.

STATE OF <u>New Medica</u> } ss

On this <u>lot</u> day of <u>ductor</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared <u>3. W. index ink and Laure Lodmink, his wife</u>

to me known to be the person_s described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

Pin 3, 19 49

<u>1997</u>

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number **Les Cruses CECLS**, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

To 11 Hoy He B& Bey Halls Polley

See. #5, Wat

and

WHEREAS, DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC., a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC. irrevocably as their attorney-in-fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this 13th day of acquist, 1946.

bora Lodewick

1.186

an medice } ss STATE OF COUNTY OF

On this 13 thay of Chaques, 1946, before me personally appeared Com Lodenten, a wide

to me known to be the person____ described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that are executed the same as har free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

ary Public

My commission expires:

10 Taken 3, 1949

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (hl Stat. h37), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number ________, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit: T. 11 S., R. 20 N. N. N. P. H.

800. **85**, 821

and

WHEREAS, DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC., a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC. irrevocably as their attorney-in-fact for them and each of ther in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the
extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this fat day of desguet, 1946. auro Lodenick LANCE LOSS 3.

×. Lodeniek her husband

400

STATE OF <u>Ment Mening</u> SS COUNTY OF A

On this Aday of Accessor, 1946, before me Laura Loden tak and S. S. Lodenick, her bushand personally appeared

to me known to be the persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires:

a) 3.1199

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing serial number **Lee Croses Cases**, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit: T. 11 S., R. 17 S., N.M. P.M.,

> Soc. 7, Mais Soc. 18, Lote R. 5, Stimula, Missings

and

WHEREAS, DE KALB AGRICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC., a Delaware corporation, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain ""Init Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint any executive officer of DE KALB AORICULTURAL ASSOCIATION, INC. irrevocably as their attorney-in-fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this Zeck day of <u>acquest</u>, 1946.

Lielian Call

ant

Men Merico }ss STATE OF COUNTY OF

On this <u>free</u> day of <u>capter</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared **1111100 Cell and 25. 3. Cell, her burbond**

to me known to be the persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that where executed the same as their free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary

My commission expires:

Caliber 3. 19 49

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned is the owner of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing Serial Number Las Cruces 062042, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

> <u>T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. H. P. M.</u>, Sec. 25, NE¹/₄

and

÷

WHEREAS, H. P. SAUNDERS, has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consents that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby makes, constitutes and appoints H. P. SAUNDERS irrevocably as her attorney-in-fact for her in her place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to

the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this 13 day of August, 1946.

Cora Lodewick, .

STATE OF NEW MEXICO

STATE OF NEW MEXICO) SS. COUNTY OF CHAVES) On this <u>3</u> day of <u>Augura</u>, 1946, before me person-ally appeared CORA LODEWICK, a widow, to me known to be the person described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that she executed the same as her free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires: Catalas 3, 199

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing Serial Number Las Cruces 062043, covering the following described land situate in the County o. Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

T. 11 S., R. 26 E., N. M. P. M.,

Sec. 26, EANNA

and

WHEREAS, W. C. LAWRENCE has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint W. C. LAWRENCE irrevocably as their attorney-in-fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this fat day of august, 1946.

Jama Godewick Laura Lodewick hor husband Loder ick.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO COUNTY OF CHAVES

)) ss.

On this lat day of <u>luquet</u>, 1946, before me personally appeared LAURA LODEWICK and S. W. LODEWICK, her husband, to me known to be the persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

My compission expires: Molader 3. 1949

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, WHEREAS, the undersigned are the owners of an oil and gas lease issued by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States pursuant to the Act of Congress approved February 25, 1920, (41 Stat. 437), as amended, upon land belonging to the United States of America, bearing Serial Number Las Cruces 062020, covering the following described land situate in the County of Chaves, State of New Mexico, to wit:

> <u>T. 11 S., R. 27 E., N. M. P. M.</u>, Sec. 18, Lots 1, 4, NE¹₄NW¹₄, SE¹₄SW¹₄

and

WHEREAS, CLARENCE E. HINKLE has an option to commit said lease and lands to that certain "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico" in the form approved by the Secretary of the Interior of the United States, and to acquire an operating agreement thereon covering all or a part of said land;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the undersigned hereby consent that the above described land, or any part thereof, may be made the subject of or committed to said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, under said Act of Congress, as amended, and hereby make, constitute and appoint CLARENCE E. HINKLE irrevocably as their attorney-in-fact for them and each of them in their place and stead at any time to commit said lease and land, or any part thereof, to the extent of the interests of the undersigned therein, to the aforesaid unit agreement, and to execute such unit agreement on behalf of the undersigned, subject to the final approval of said unit agreement by the Secretary of the Interior, and to execute all instruments and do all things necessary to make said unit agreement effective.

Executed this zul day of august, 1946.

Lillian Coll W. Coll, byr hu

STATE OF NEW MEXICO COUNTY OF CHAVES

On this 2 day of dugue, 1946, before me personally appeared LILLIAN COLL and M. W. COLL, her husband, to me known to be the persons described in and who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that they executed the same as their free act and deed.

) ss.

Witness my hand and official seal the day and year last above written.

Notary Public

My commission expires: Colour 3, 1949

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

The undersigned, having this day examined an agreement for the cooperative or unit operation and development of a prospective oil or gas field or area, which agreement is entitled "Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico", entered into between RICHFIELD OIL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation, as Unit Operator, and likewise subscribed by numerous Working Interest Owners and Royalty Owners, to which agreement this certificate is attached; and WHEREAS, upon examination thereof the Commissioner finds;

(a) that such agreement will tend to promote the conservation of oil and gas and the better utilization of reservoir energy in said field;

(b) that under the operations proposed the State will receive its fair share of the recoverable oil or gas in place under its lands in the area affected;

(c) that the agreement is in other respects for the best interests of the State;

(d) that the agreement provides for the unit operation of the field, for the allocation of production and the sharing of profits from the lands within the unit area covered by said agreement and committed thereto on an acreage basis, as specified in said agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, by virtue of the authority conferred upon me by Chapter 88 of the Laws of the State of New Mexico, 1943, approved April 14, 1943, I, the undersigned, Commissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico, for the purpose of more properly conserving the oil and gas resources of the State, do hereby consent to and approve the said agreement as to the lands of the State of New Mexico included in said Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico, and subject to all the provisions of the aforesaid Chapter 88 of the Laws of the State of New Mexico, 1943.

0

Executed this <u>yy</u> and day of <u>September</u>, 1946.

Amissioner of Public Lands of the State of New Mexico

COPY OF ORDER OF OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

"BEFORE THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COLMISSION OF THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

CASE NO. 73

ORDER NO. 648

THE APPLICATION OF THE RICHFTELD OIL CORPORATION FOR AN ORDER OF APPROVAL OF THE UNIT AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOP-MENT AND OPERATION OF THE COMANCHE AREA WITHIN T. 10S, R. 25E, and T. 11S, R. 25E, AND T. 10S, R. 26E, AND T. 11S, R. 26E, AND T. 11S, R. 27E, N. M. M., CON-STITUTING A COMPACT UNIT AREA OF 16,901.14 ACRES, CHAVES COUNTY, NEW MEXICO.

ORDER OF THE COMMISSION

BY THE COMMISSION:

This cause came on for hearing at ten o'clock A. M., May 8, 1946 at Santa Fe, New Mexico before the Oil Conservation Commission of New Mexico, hereinafter referred to as the 'Commission'.

NOW, on this 8th day of May, 1916, the Commission having before it for consideration the testimony adduced at the hearing of said case and being fully advised in the premises;

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that:

The Order herein shall be known as:

'COMANCHE UNIT AGREEMENT ORDER'

SECTION 1. (a) That the project herein shall be known as the Comanche Unit Agreement and shall hereinafter be referred to as the 'Project'.

(b). That the plan by which the Project shall be operated shall be embraced in the form of unit agreement designated as 'Unit Agreement for the Development and Operation of the Comanche Area, Chaves County, New Mexico', annexed to petition mis petition as Familit A, and such plan shall be known as the Comanche Unit Agreement Plan.

SECTION 2. That the Comanche Unit Agreement plan shall be and is hereby approved.

SECTION 3. (a) That the Unit Area shall be:

New Mexico Principal Meridian, Chaves County, New Mexico: T. 10S, R. 25E, Sec. 36, $S_{12}^{+}SE_{11}^{+}$; T. 11S, R. 25E, Sec. 1, all; Sec. 2, $E_{2}^{+}SE_{11}^{+}$; Sec. 11, $E_{2}^{+}E_{22}^{+}$; Secs. 12 and 13; Sec. 14, $E_{2}^{+}E_{22}^{+}$; Sec. 23, $E_{2}^{+}NE_{22}^{+}$; Sec. 24, all Sec. 25, NE_{11}^{+} , $NE_{2}^{+}NW_{42}^{+}$, $NE_{4}^{+}SE_{24}^{+}$. T. 10S, R. 26E, Sec. 31, lots 3, 4, $E_2^{1}SW_4^{1}$, SE_4^{1} ; Sec. 32, S_2^{1} ; Sec. 33, S_2^{1} ; Sec. 34, $S_3^{1}S_2^{1}$; Sec. 35, $SW_4^{1}SW_4^{1}$. T. 11S, R. 26E, (fractional) Sec. 1, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, S_2^{1} ; Sec. 2, Lots 5, 6, 7, 8, S_2^{1} ; Sec. 3, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, S_2^{1} ; Sec. 4, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, SE_4^{1} ; Sec. 9, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, E_2^{1} ; Sec. 10, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, E_2^{1} ; Sec. 15, all; Sec. 16, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, E_2^{1} ; Sec. 21, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, E_2^{1} ;

(b) The Unit Area may be enlarged or diminished as provided in said plan.

T. 11S, R. 27E, Sec. 6, Lots 1 to 6, inclusive, $E_2^1SW_4^1$, SE_4^1 ;

Sec. 21, hors 1, 2, 3, 4, L_2 , Secs. 22, 23, 24; Sec. 25, $N_2^{\frac{1}{2}}$, $SW_4^{\frac{1}{4}}$; Secs. 26 and 27; Sec. 28, Lots 1, 2, 3, 4, $E_2^{\frac{1}{2}}$;

Sec. 33, Lots 1, 2, NE_{4}^{1} ; Sec. 34, N_{2}^{1} , $N_{2}^{1}SE_{2}^{1}$; Sec. 35, N_{2}^{1} , $N_{2}^{1}SW_{4}^{1}$.

SECTION 4. The Unit Operator shall file with the Commission an executed original, or executed counterparts thereof, of the Comanche Unit Agreement not later than 30 days after the effective date thereof.

SECTION 5. Any party owning rights in the unitized substances who does not commit such rights to said Unit Agreement before the effective date thereof may thereafter become party thereto by subscribing to such Agreement or a counterpart thereof. The Unit Operator shall file with the Commission within 30 days an original of any such counterpart.

SECTION 6. The order herein shall become effective on the first day of the calendar month next following the approval of the Commissioner of Public Lands and the Secretary of the Interior and shall terminate ipso facto on the termination of said Unit Agreement. The last Unit Operator shall immediately notify the Commission in writing of such termination.

Done at Santa Fe, New Mexico as of the day and year hereinabove designated.

OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

John J. Dempsey, Chairman /s/ John J. Dempsey

John E. Miles, Member

/s/ R. R. Spurrier

R. R. Spurrier, Secretary"

(SEAL)

CERTIFICATION-DETERMINATION

A. Certify and determine that the unit plan of development and operation in the attached agreement for the development and operation of the _______ Unit Area, _______ Chaves ______ County, _____ Nex Mexico ______, is necessary and advisable in the public interest for the purpose of more properly conserving the natural resources therein.

B. Certify and determine that the drilling, producing, rental, minimum royalty, and royalty requirements of all Federal leases committed to said agreement are hereby established, altered, changed, or revoked to conform with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

Hind Douid con

Assistant Secretary of the Interior.